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PART |

The information in this annual report contains eéntforward-looking statements, including staterseetated to our business prospects,
the markets for our products and services, anddsen our business that involve risks and uncetiain Our actual results may differ
materially from the results discussed in these &wdalooking statements. Factors that might causghsudifference include those discussed in
“Risk Factors,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysf Financial Condition and Results of OperatigriBusiness” and elsewhere in this
annual report.

Item 1. Busines:
Overview

We are a provider of communications networléggipment, software and services that supportr#msport, switching, aggregation and
management of voice, video and data traffic. OwkE&Optical Transport, Packet-Optical Switchingl &arrier Ethernet Service Delivery
products are used, individually or as part of aagrated solution, in networks operated by commatitos service providers, cable operators,
governments and enterprises around the globe.

We are a network specialist targeting thediteon of disparate, legacy communications netwdoksonverged, next-generation
architectures, optimized to handle increased trafflumes and deliver more efficiently a broadex ofi high-bandwidth communications
services. Our communications networking produtit®ugh their embedded software and our network gemant software suites, enable
network operators to efficiently and cost-effeclyvdeliver critical enterprise and consuntfented communication services. Together witr
comprehensive design, implementation and supporices, our networking solutions offering seekemable software-defined, automated
networks that address the business challenges, aoioations infrastructure requirements and serd@e/ery needs of our customers. Our
customers face a challenging and rapidly changingr@nment that requires their networks be robusiugh to address increasing capacity
needs from a growing set of consumer and busingsgations, and flexible enough to quickly adapekecute new business strategies and
support the delivery of innovative, revenue-creaservices. By improving network productivity angd@mation, reducing network costs and
providing flexibility to enable differentiated séce offerings, our networking solutions offeringeates business and operational value for our
customers.

Acquisition of Nortel Metro Ethernet Networks Besis (the‘MEN Acquisition™)

On March 19, 2010, we completed our acquisitibsubstantially all of the optical networkingda@arrier Ethernet assets of Nortel's Metro
Ethernet Networks business (the “MEN Business”e MEN Business that we acquired is a leading pexvid next-generation,
communications network products, with a significglabal installed base and a strong technologytdgei The MEN Business is a leader in
high-capacity 40G and 100G coherent optical trartdpohnology that enables network operators tontessly upgrade their existing 2.5G and
10G networks, thereby enabling a significant inseeim network capacity without the need for neverfideployments or complex reengineet
The product and technology assets that we acqurickade Nortel’s:

. long-haul optical transport portfolic
. metro optical Ethernet switching and transport Sofs;
. Ethernet transport, aggregation and switching teldgy;
. multiservice SONET/SDH product families; a
. network management software produ
In addition to these products, we also acquirechtétesork implementation and support service resmsirelated to the MEN Business.

We believe that our acquisition of the MEN Biess represents a transformative opportunity fen& We believe that this transaction
strengthens our position as a leader in mExteration, converged optical Ethernet networkimg @ccelerates the execution of our corporate
research and development strategies. We believé¢hdadditional geographic reach, expanded custoategionships, and broader portfolio of
complementary network solutions derived from theNVEBusiness allow us to better compete with trad#iplarger communications network
equipment vendors. We also believe that our broadi@noduct and services portfolio positions usddrass a wider range of customer
segments, applications and service delivery oppiiés. As a result of the MEN Acquisition, we addgpproximately 2,000 employees,
including significant additional engineering talewhich nearly doubled our headcount. We expecimareased scale will enable additional
operating leverage and optimize our research anelolement investment toward next-generation teagiek and product platforms.
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See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial 8tategs found under Item 8 of Part Il of this anmeglort for additional information relating to
the purchase price of the MEN Business, and “Mameage’'s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Comaitand Results of Operations” in
Item 7 of Part Il of this annual report, for addital information describing the effect of this tantion on our business, results of operations
and financial position.

Segment Data and Certain Financial Information

Effective upon the completion of the MEN Acsjtibn, we reorganized our internal organizaticstalcture and the management of our
business. See Note 20 to the Consolidated FinaBtaéments found under Item 8 of Part Il of tliawal report. We currently organize our
operations into four separate operating segmeRtcKet-Optical Transport,” “Packet-Optical Switaiih*Carrier Ethernet Service Delivery,”
and “Software and Services.” The matters discusséus “Business” section should be read in conjiom with the Consolidated Financial
Statements found under Item 8 of Part Il of thiswal report, which include additional financialonfation about our operating segments, 1
assets, revenue, measures of profit and loss,iaadcfal information about geographic areas antbooers representing greater than 10% of
revenue.

We generated revenue of $1,236.6 million$ecdi 2010, as compared to $652.6 million in fik209. Annual revenue growth in large part
reflects the addition of the MEN Business on Matéh2010. For more information regarding our resaftoperations, see “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations” in Item 7 of Part Il of thisnual report.

Corporate Information and Access to SEC Reports

We were incorporated in Delaware in Novemt92, and completed our initial public offering oalffuary 7, 1997. Our principal execut
offices are located at 1201 Winterson Road, LinthicMaryland 21090. Our telephone number is (4B%-8500, and our web site address is
www.ciena.com We make our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarteports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form, &id amendments to
those reports, available free of charge on thedtoreRelations page of our web site as soon asmeha$y practicable after we file these reports
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SR@)routinely post the reports above, recent newlsssmouncements, financial results
other important information about our business onvweebsite at www.ciena.comninformation contained on our web site is not & pathis
annual report.

Industry Background

The markets in which we sell our communicatiortworking solutions have been subject to dynaimémges in recent years, including
increased competition, growth in traffic, broadernvice offerings, and evolving technologies, madgbortunities and challenges.

Increased Capacity Requirements and Multiserviefitr Driving Increased Transmission Spe:

Today’s networks are experiencing strong icaffowth and new service demands. Increasing nétaapacity requirements are being
driven by growing use of and reliance upon commationis services by consumer and enterprise end fmea wide range of personal and
business tasks, as well as the expansion of highvaidth, wireline and wireless service offerings.

Business customers seeking to improve autemggifficiency and productivity have become inciegly dependent upon enterprisgentec
communications and data services. Enterprisesmequibust networks to facilitate global expansibomerations, enable employee mobility
and utilize video services. As their workforces laeeoming more mobile, enterprises are driving dehfar seamless access to critical busi
applications and data. In addition, enterprisernetdgy trends such as IT virtualization and cloothputing are also placing new capacity and
service requirements on networks. Growth in entegporiented communications applications has reduit expanded carrier-managed
offerings of these and other business serviceaddiition, a number of large enterprises, governragehcies and research and education
institutions have decided to forego these trad#imommunications service offerings in favor oflding their own, secure private networks.

At the same time, an increasing portion ofwoek traffic is being driven by consumer-orientgapbcations. Growing consumer adoption of
broadband technologies, including peer-to-peerrteteapplications, residential video services,mntjaming and music downloads, as well as
expanding mobile video data services, are draniticecreasing network traffic. This multiserviceffic growth requires the transition to
higher capacity networks with increased transmissjmeeds, often with lower latency, such as our @0 100G coherent optical transport
technology.
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Multiservice Traffic Growth Requiring Transition Edexible Network Architecture

A broadening mix of high-bandwidth, data amew communications services, together with growirahility and expanding wireless
applications, will require upgrades to existingwatk infrastructure, including mobile backhaul aretitional wireline networks. The growing
mix of high-bandwidth and latency-sensitive traffind an increased focus on controlling networks;age driving a transition from multiple,
disparate SONET/SDH-based networks to more efficemverged, multi-purpose Ethernet/IP-based nétwechitectures. The industry has
seen network technology transitions like this ie gast. These large investment cycles tend to Imagyper multi-year periods. For instance,
from the mid 1980s to the mid 1990s, service prersdocused network upgrades on the transitioniredjto digitize voice traffic. From the
mid 1990s to the mid 2000s, service providers fedugetwork upgrades on the transition to SONET/3Btvorks designed to reliably handle
substantially more network traffic. We believe ttteg industry is currently in the early stages etfvork transition to multi-purpose
Ethernet/IP-based network architectures that mffigently handle a growing mix of multiservice ffi@ with a greater concentration of data.

We refer to our implementation of next-genierahetwork architectures that address this traoms#s “converged optical Ethernet.” Our
converged optical Ethernet approach brings togetieereliability and capacity of optical networkingth the flexibility and economics of
Ethernet, unified by our embedded and network mamegt software. These attributes enable a netvhatkig resilient, reconfigurable and
automated. These network attributes are esseatslgport next-generation services and applicatibtise performance level required by end
users. We see opportunities in providing a poufoli carrierelass solutions that facilitate this transitiorcemverged optical Ethernet netwol

Value Transition from Networks to Applications

In the past, enterprises and consumers pedeialue in network connectivity. End users of rets now place a higher value on the
services or applications accessed and deliveredtbeenetwork. As a result, in order to competeyise providers need to create, market, and
sell profitable services as opposed to simplysglionnectivity. Some of the areas that servicgigess are pursuing to compete and drive end
user value include.

. IT Virtualization.IT Virtualization moves a physical resource froms&r's desktop into the network, thereby makingeredficient
use of information technology resources. This appinchas many appealing attributes such as lowedngers of entry into new
markets, and adding flexibility to scale certaipexgs of a business faster and with less exp:

. “Cloud” Services.Cloud services are characterized by the sharimpwiputing, storage and network resources to improve
economics through higher utilization efficienci€sand network service providers are centralizimgse resources in order to offer
usage-based and metered services that are hosietehe across a network. Smaller enterprises andwuoers can subscribe to
cloud services to replace local, on-site facilitiwhile larger enterprises and data center opeyaay use private clouds to
consolidate their own resources and public cloodsctommodate peak demand situations, often in ratidn.

. Mobility. The emergence of smart mobile devices that delintegrated voice, audio, photo, video, email anditeoveb
capabilities, like Apple’s iPhone™ and Android ™-edsmart phones, are rapidly changing the seryjme and magnitude of data
traffic carried by wireless networks. The incre@savailability and improved ease of use of webelobapplications from mobile
devices expands the reach of virtualized serviegsid a wireline connection. For instance, constuneen video and gaming are
being virtualized, allowing broad access to thggdieations, regardless of the device or the netwsed.

We believe these shifts, and end user expectategesding quality of service for these applicatiom#l require communications network
infrastructures to be more automated, robust andbile.

Market Conditions and Effect on Network Investn

As a result of the sustained period of ecormomgakness and uncertainty surrounding global neaommomic conditions, our industry has
experienced cautious capital expenditures, padituamong large service provider customers, ag ltla@e sought to conserve capital or
address uncertainties or changes in their own basimodels brought on by broader market challefigese dynamics have placed increased
scrutiny and more rigid prioritization on networhending. Our customers seek to create and rapéliyed new, robust service offerings and
dedicated communications at increasing speeddfayetitiate from competitors and grow their busges the same time, they are increasil
seeking ways to optimize their network operating eapital costs. We believe that these dynamidsr@sult in a shift in network spending
toward high-capacity, next-generation network asgttures. By utilizing scalable networks that &sslcomplex, less expensive to operate and
more adaptable, network operators can derive iseckgalue from their network investments throughrtipid, efficient and profitable delivery
of new services.
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Strategy
Key components of our corporate strategy ardosth below:

Maintain and extend technology leadership in cogedroptical Ethernet networking to drive sales asrproduct portfolio Through
continued investment and innovation, our stratsgy ienhance our leading, next generation coh&namgport technology for high capacity
long-haul and metro networks. We intend to extemdtechnology leadership and leverage our markaatesim Packet-Optical Transport
products to drive sales of our Packet-Optical Svittg and Carrier Ethernet Service Delivery produdts intend to expand our datgtimized
Packet-Optical Switching solutions, specificallyr dictivFlex 5400 family of Reconfigurable SwitchifBystems, to enable an end-to-end OTN
and Ethernet-based architecture that offers bettetrper bit, more flexibility, and higher reliahjlfor network operators. We also seek to
expand our Carrier Ethernet Service Delivery pdidfancluding high-capacity (terabit scale) Ethetrmetro aggregation switches, for mobile
backhaul and business Ethernet services. An impioctamponent of our research and development girageto enhance our embedded and
network management software. By creating a comnetwark management software platform across ourrmkgé product portfolio, we seek
to enable service level management across netagetd, rapid service provisioning, increased autmmand leverage across our customer
solutions.

Diversify our customer segments and customer agpdic of our productsHistorically, service providers have representedléngest
portion of our revenue, with their application efrgoroducts largely supporting terrestrial, wirelimetworks. Part of our strategy is to seek
opportunities to address new customer segmentsnarehse our sales to wireless providers, caldenauitiservice operators, enterprises,
government agencies and research and educatiatiliiions. We are also seeking to sell our produmct service solutions to support
additional network applications, including in sulvima networks, content delivery networks, busire$gernet services and mobile backhaul.
While we seek to penetrate new customer segmedtbraaden the applications for which customerscseler solutions, we also intend to win
new service provider customers in existing markets expand our market share in existing accountsdss-selling our broader portfolio.

Expand our geographic reachiWe seek to build upon the broader global presehoer business provided by the MEN Acquisitiorotigt
expansion of our geographic reach and market shap@wing markets including Brazil, the Middle EaRussia and India. We intend to
penetrate new geographies through a combinatialireft resources and third party channels, suckssdler, service providers and integrators,
for marketing, selling and distributing our solutso We also intend, through cross-selling and athéss initiatives, to increase sales of our
Packet-Optical Switching and Carrier Ethernet SErielivery products in international markets. Vismaeek to build the Ciena brand
globally through additional marketing initiatives.

Leverage our consultative, network specialist appto Our close relationship with customers in the giesdevelopment, implementation
and support of our solutions offering is a key@iéintiator for our business and provides us witlquainsight into their business and network
needs. We believe that by offering an expandedgmriof professional services that meets the besimeeds of our customers, we bring
strategic value to customer relationships beyopdstie of our next-generation communications nékimgrproducts. This service-oriented
solutions offering allows us to work closely withstomers in their design, deployment and delivényesv services. By understanding and
addressing their network infrastructure needsgctrepetitive landscape, and the evolving and chgilenmarkets in which our customers
compete, we believe our customized solutions affgrincluding advanced services, creates additionsihess and operational value for our
customers, enabling them to better compete in Beclging environment.

Successfully complete the integration of the MEBi&ss and achieve desired operating leverdge continue to make significant
progress on activities relating to the integratbbthe MEN Business. We have completed our orgéinizal structure, sales coverage plans and
decisions regarding the rationalization of our camab product portfolio. We have also realized alitiperating synergies from the combined
company and are approaching an exit from the tiansservices currently provided by an affiliateMidrtel. We intend to devote the necessary
time and resources toward the successful complefioemaining integration activities. A number bése are complex, including the
rationalization of our supply chain, third party migacturers and facilities, the complete integratid our networking equipment offering, the
development of a common network management systeossiour expanded portfolio, and the winding dofviransition services. We seek to
leverage the longer-term opportunities, includimpioved operating efficiencies, presented by tlaesgities.

Customers and Markets

Our customer base, and the geographic masketgustomer segments into which we sell our prizdared services, have expanded in re
years, in part as a result of the acquisition efMEN Business. The network infrastructure needsuofcustomers vary, depending upon tl
size, location, the nature of their end users hedapplications or services that they deliver amgpsert. We sell our product and service
offerings through our direct sales force and tipagty channel partners to end user network operatahe following customer segments:
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Communications Service Providers

Our service provider customers include rediomational and international, wireline and wiredesrriers. These customers include AT&T,
Bell Canada, BT, Cable & Wireless, CenturyLink, &igire, France Telecom, Korea Telecom, Qwest, $pFeta Communications,
Telefonica, Telmex, Telus, Verizon and XO Commutiarss. Traditional telecommunications service pdevs are our historical customer b
and continue to represent the largest contributiarur revenue. We provide service providers withdpicts, from the network core to its edge,
that address growing bandwidth demand from voimeo/and data service applications. Our producablena flexible, high-capacity,
converged network that enables service providensa@ase revenue through new service offerings@ameduce capital and operating network
costs by aggregating multiservice traffic. Our prois also enable service providers to support kgjications for enterprise users, including
carrier-managed services, wide area network caesibin, inter-site connectivity, storage extenslmusiness continuity and Ethernet services.

Cable Operators

Our customers include leading cable and naritise operators in the U.S. and internationallyede customers include Comcast, Cox, F
Rogers, Time Warner and Cogeco. Our cable and senlice operator customers rely upon us for cagiade, optical Ethernet transport and
switching products to support enterprise-orienteises. Our platforms allow cable operators tegnate voice, video and data applications
over a converged infrastructure and scale theiwording infrastructure to keep ahead of the bantiwéhd application demands of their
subscribers. Our products support key cable aggitsiincluding broadcast and digital video, vobser IP, video on demand and broadband
data services.

Enterprise

Our enterprise customers include large, nuitéi-commercial organizations, including particifgain the financial, healthcare, transportat
utilities and retail industries. Our solutions eleaénterprises to achieve operational improvemémtseased automation and information
technology cost reductions. Our products enabgr-site connectivity between data centers, salesasfimanufacturing plants, retail stores
research and development centers, using an owrleds®d private fiber network or a carrier-managgdice. Our products facilitate key
enterprise applications including data, voice aigée transport, Ethernet business services, stagigasion, business continuity, online
collaboration, video conferencing, cloud computilogy latency networking and wide area network (WAdcryption. Our products also
enable our enterprise customers to prevent unesgertwork downtime and ensure the safety, secamitiyavailability of their data.

Government, Research and Education

Our government customers include federal sae: ;gencies in the U.S. as well as governmeitissnoutside of the U.S. Our customers
also include domestic and international researchegiucation institutions seeking to take advantddechnology innovation, improve their
information infrastructure, and facilitate incredsmllaboration. Our solutions feature ultra-higtpacity, reconfigurability and service
flexibility to meet the requirements of superconipgtsystems. Our products, software and servicablerthese customers to improve network
performance, capacity, security, reliability anekfbility. We collaborate with leading institutiots provide government and research and
education communities with optimized networks tiné&timize cost and complexity, through initiativésit support intelligent control plane
technologies, interoperability and scalability.

Products and Services

We offer a portfolio of communications netwimidk products that form the building blocks of resit and automated, next-generation
networks. Our product portfolio consists of our IRgeOptical Transport, Packet-Optical Switching &watrier Ethernet Service Delivery
products, as well as the embedded and network neamat software that supports these platforms.

We have focused our product and service oifisrio address the following network prioritiestecand metro network modernization,
managed services and enterprise applications,eC&tihernet-based mobile backhaul and high-capaatiynarine networks. In the network’s
core, we deliver high-capacity transport and svititglproducts that create an automated, dynamicalgtifrastructure supporting a wide
variety of network services. In the metro portidritee network, we deliver a comprehensive, conveitgensport and switching solution that
manages circuits, wavelengths and packets. In neahseyvices applications and enterprise networksnable enterprise-oriented services
including storage, data connectivity, video andifess Ethernet services. In mobile backhaul apjitics, we provide wireline and wireless
carriers with the tools to migrate their networastipport mobile data applications and enable B#tdrased backhaul. In submarine networks,
we enhance existing submarine network fiber asseteasing bandwidth capacity and enabling higheiability services and differentiated
customer-focused offerings.
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Packe-Optical Transport

Our Packet-Optical Transport portfolio inclsdedustry leading, high-capacity transport platfersuch as our ActivFlex 6500 Packet-
Optical Platform, which features coherent, 40G &0dG optical transport. Our Packet-Optical Transptatforms include flexible, scalable
wavelength division multiplexing (WDM) solutionsahenable cost-effective and efficient transponaite, video and data related to a variety
of services for core networks as well as regiondl metro networks. We offer scalable Packet-Opficahsport platforms, including several
chassis sizes and a comprehensive set of line,daatscan be utilized from the customer premisdgre space and power are critical, to the
metropolitan/regional core, where the need for ltigpacity and carrier-class performance are esdeBt automating optical infrastructures,
our Packet-Optical Transport products support ffieient delivery of a wide variety of consumer-ented network services, as well as key
managed service and enterprise applications.

Our Packet-Optical Transport family of produfticuses on high-capacity optical transport actides reconfigurable optical add-drop
multiplexer (ROADM) capability. In addition to o@N 4200® FlexSelect® Advanced Services Platform (fAativSpan 4200”) and our
Corestream® Agility Optical Transport System, oacket-Optical Transport portfolio includes the doling products acquired from the MEN
Business:

. Optical Multiservice Edge 6500 (ncActivFlex 6500 Packet Optical Platfo”)

. Optical Multiservice Edge 6110 (nc“ActivFlex 6110 Multiservice Optical Platfor’)
. Optical Metro 5200 (nov*ActivSpan 520”)

. Common Photonic Layer (no“ActivSpan CPI")

. Optical Multiservice Edge 1000 series (OME 10

. Optical Metro 3500 (OM 350(

Our Packet-Optical Transport solutions also incliedmcy SONET/SDH products and legacy data netwgrgroducts, as well as certain
enterprise-oriented transport solutions that supgtorage and LAN extension, interconnection oadagnters, and virtual private networks.

Packe-Optical Switching

Our Packet-Optical Switching family of prodsigrovides TDM switching and packet switching calitstbOur principal Packet-Optical
Switching product is our CoreDirector® MultiserviGgptical Switch. CoreDirector is a multiservice, Itiprotocol switching system that
consolidates the functionality of an add/drop nplétker, digital cross-connect and packet aggregattar a single, high-capacity intelligent
switching system. CoreDirector’s mesh capabilitaldas more efficient and more reliable networksaddition to its application in core
networks, CoreDirector may also be used in mettavowks for aggregation and forwarding of multipkrgces, including Ethernet/TDM
Private Line, Triple Play and IP services. We arthe early stages of a technology transition withir Packet-Optical Switching platform,
from our CoreDirector platform toward our ActivFI&400 family of Reconfigurable Switching Systembe$e multi-terabit OTN and packet
switching systems with integrated transport funeidgy can be flexibly configured to implement aad range of network elements, includir
scalable optical cross-connect, feature-rich CaEtbernet switch, or a fully converged packet-cgitiransport and switching system. These
new platforms provide the capabilities and reli@pibf CoreDirector, while providing service proeid the ability to scale to higher capacities
and transition to packet-based networks.

Carrier Ethernet Service Delivery

Our Carrier Ethernet Service Delivery produtave applications from the edge of metro and weteorks to the customer premises. These
products allow customers to utilize the automatad capacity created by our Packet-Optical Trargpoducts in core and metro networks
and deliver new, revenue-generating services tsuoers and enterprises. Our Carrier Ethernet Sebtivery offering primarily consists of
our ActivEdge service delivery switching produdstivEdge service aggregation platforms and legaoadband access products for
residential services.

Our ActivEdge service delivery and aggregatiasitches provide True Carrier Ethernet, a morialé and feature rich type of Ethernet that
can support a wider variety of services. These yotsdsupport the access and aggregation tiersnofnemications networks, and are typically
deployed in metro and access networks. Serviceatglproducts are often used at customer premisagibns while aggregation platforms are
used to combine services to improve network resoutitization. Employing sophisticated carrier Etiet switching technology, these prodt
deliver quality of service capabilities, virtuathkl area networking and switching functions, armglieagrade operations, administration, and
maintenance features. In 2010, we introduced skadditions to our service delivery and aggregatiffering intended to increase capacity for
higher bandwidth user connections and a broadexfsejgregation and switching capabilities, suckraerprise locations, backhaul from
wireless cell sites, multi-tenant unit buildingslasutside plant cabinets. Initial deployment ofsta@roducts have principally been in support of
wireless backhaul deployments, including, in lgpget, 4G WiMax, and business data services.
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Our principal product for consumer broadbandur CNX-5 Broadband DSL System. This broadbarwésscplatform allows service
providers to transition legacy voice networks tpgsart next-generation services such as Interneteb@®) telephony, video services and DSL,
and enable cost-effective migration to higher badtwEthernet network infrastructures.

Unified Software and Service Management Tools

Our Packet-Optical Transport, Packet-Optiagit&hing and Carrier Ethernet Service Delivery pros include a shared suite of embedded
operating system software and network managemémtase tools that serve to unify our product pditf@nd provide the underlying
automation and management features. Our embedftedhs®is a robust, service aware framework thgtrowes network utilization and
availability, while delivering enhanced performameenitoring and reliability. By increasing netwalkitomation, minimizing network
downtime and monitoring network performance andisermetrics, our embedded software and networkag@ment software tools enable
customers to improve cost effectiveness, whilegasing the performance and functionality of theirmrork operations. To consolidate our
software offerings, we have introduced the Ciena 6uftware suite. This suite will be the framewfmkharmonizing the embedded software
and the network management software from the pgeisition Ciena portfolio and the MEN portfolio.

ON-CenteP Network & Service Management Suite, our pre-actjoisiCiena integrated network and service managesuwdtware, is
designed to simplify network management and op@naitross our portfolio. ON-Center can track indlisl services across multiple product
suites, facilitating planned network maintenanegage detection and identification of customerseswices affected by network troubles. The
MEN Acquisition added network and service managamsesducts, such as OMEA and Preside, which areifipéo the products of the MEN
Business and are included in our combined prodoitfgdio.

Consulting and Support Services

To complement our product portfolio, we offebroad range of consulting and support servicatshtblp our customers design, deploy and
operationalize their communications services. Wavigle these services through our internal resouasesell as through qualified, third party
service partners. Our services and support pastfotiludes the following offerings:

. Network analysis, planning and desit
. Network optimization and tuning
. Project management, including staging, site preémarand installation activitie:
. Deployment services, including turnkey installataord turi-up and test services; a
. Maintenance and support services, includ
o helpdesk, technical assistance and trair
0  spares and logistics managem:t
o] engineering dispatch and-site professional service
o] equipment repair and replacement,
o software maintenance and upda

We believe that our broad service set of serviferiofgs is an important component of our networkcsalist approach and a significant
differentiator with customers. We believe that services offering enables a solutiamméented approach to network challenges that bwidise
in a customer relationship that extends beyondoonnluct and software offering. We believe that acosdrs will continue to place significant
value on these types of strategic engagementssaegsvendors on their capability to partner viigmt effectively in these areas.

Product Development

Our industry is subject to rapid technologidavelopments, evolving standards and protocot$ saifts in customer demand. To remain
competitive, we must continually enhance existimdpct platforms by adding new features and fumetiity and introducing new product
platforms that address multiservice traffic growghable new service offerings and facilitate tiaasition to converged optical Ethernet
networking. Within our global products group, weintain a team of skilled engineers with extensixpegience in the areas of photonics,
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packet and circuit switching, network system des@mbedded operating system and network managesafiwiare. Through our acquisition
the MEN Business, we attained leading 40G and 1i®&port technologies and added significant erging talent and considerable
investment scale to our research and developméniti@s. Our current development investments aiged upon:

. Extending our Pack-Optical Transport leadership in 40G and 100G loagl transport through development of our cohe
transmission technolog

. Enhancing our data-optimized, Packet-Optical &hititg solutions and the evolution from our Corebiioe family to our ActivFlex
5400 family of Reconfigurable Switching Solutio

. Expanding our Carrier Ethernet Service Deliverytimtio, including higt-capacity Ethernet metro aggregation switches fdvila:
backhaul and business Ethernet services

. Interoperability and creating a common networlkhagement software platform across our expandeduptgubrtfolio and enabling
service level management across network la

Product development initiatives also include siigaifit design and development work intended to enedst reductions relating to the
manufacture of our products.

Our product development investments are drisemarket demand and technological innovationglivimg close collaboration among our
product development, marketing and global fieldamigations, and input from customers. In some ¢asesvork with third parties pursuant to
technology licenses, OEM arrangements and othategfic technology relationships or investmentsigeelop new components or products,
modify existing platforms or offer complementargheaology to our customers. In addition, we partitipin industry and standards
organizations, where appropriate, and incorpordterination from these affiliations throughout theguct development process.

We regularly review our existing product offgys and prospective development projects to detertheir fit within our portfolio and
broader corporate strategy. We assess the manketrak technology evolution, prospective returnrarestment and growth opportunities, as
well as the costs and resources necessary to geartbsupport these products. In recent yearsstaategy has been to pursue technology and
product convergence that allows us to consolidatkipte technologies and functionalities on a senglatform, or to control and manage
multiple elements throughout the network from damn management system, ultimately creating mobaisband coseffective network tools
We have also shifted our strategic developmentaggbr from delivering point products to compreheasietworking equipment, software and
service solutions that address the current anddliusiness needs of our customers.

Our research and development expense was®fiilion, $190.3 million and $327.6 million, foistal 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.
The increased expense in 2010 was driven primbyilthe MEN Acquisition, including the related adlofits to our product portfolio, expanded
development initiatives and increased engineergggbount and overhead. For more information reggrdur research and development
expense, see “Management’s Discussion and Analj$ighancial Condition and Results of Operatiomsitem 7 of Part Il of this report.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our communications networking produetd services through our direct sales resourcegthas through channel relationships. In
addition to securing new customers, our salesegjyatas focused on building long-term relationskifil existing customers that allow us to
leverage our incumbency by extending existing ptatls and cross-selling additional products thap kkelstomers address multiservice traffic
growth and facilitate new service offerings.

Within our global field operations team, weintain a direct sales presence that is organizedrgphically around the following markets:
(i) U.S. and Canada,; (ii) Caribbean and Latin Arceer{iii) Europe, Middle East and Africa; and (&¢ia-Pacific. These regions include sales
personnel that focus on one or more of the follgngnstomer segments: communications service prvideluding wireless providers, cable
and multiservice operators, enterprise customeaitggamernment, research and education. Within eaclgrgphic area, we maintain regional,
country and/or customer-specific teams, includiogoant salespersons, systems engineers and stratagieting, services and commercial
management personnel, who ensure we operate choghland provide a high level of support to ousttumers.

We also maintain a global channel programaks with resellers, systems integrators, serpicwiders, and other third party distributors
to market and sell our products and services. fitdt party channel sales and other distributioargements enable us to leverage our direct
sales resources and reach additional geographimnsegnd customer segments. These relationshipeaible us to sell our products as a
complement to a broader offering of other vendorisitegrators, or in support of a service providerarrier managed service offering. Our use
of channel partners has been a key component inades to government, research and education aarpere customers. We believe our
channel strategy affords us expanded market oppitigtst and reduces the financial risk of enteriegymarkets and pursuing new customer
segments.
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To support our sales efforts, we engage irketarg activities intended to position and promoté¢h our brand and our product, software
service offerings. Our marketing team supportsssafforts through direct customer interaction, stdy events, public relations, social media,
general business publications, tradeshows, ouriteednsd other marketing channels for our custoraatschannel partners.

Manufacturing, Operations and Supply Chain Managemat

Our operations personnel manage our relatipashith our third party manufacturers and managesopply chain. In addition, this team
also addresses component procurement and soupcodyct testing and quality, and logistics relatiogpur sales, maintenance and
professional services, and distribution efforts.

We utilize a global sourcing strategy that bagizes procurement of materials in lower costoregiiWe rely upon third party manufactur
with facilities in Canada, China, Mexico, Thailaaudd the United States, to perform nearly all ofrttenufacturing of our products. This
activity can include design and prototype developtyill production, final assembly, testing andpshent. We utilize a direct order fulfillme
model for certain products, which allows us to retyour third party manufacturers to perform figgétem integration and testing prior to
shipment of products directly from their facilitissour customers. For certain product lines, watioae to perform a portion of the module
assembly, final system integration and testingrivetly. We believe that our sourcing and manufantustrategy allows us to conserve capital,
lower costs of product sales, adjust quickly tonges in market demand, and operate without dedigaignificant resources to manufacturing-
related plant and equipment. The integration of ufacturing, operations and supply chain activitesulting from our acquisition of the MEN
Business, while complex and potentially disruptiegsents longer-term opportunities to further oedilne cost to manufacture our products,
including through higher purchasing volumes andsotidation of manufacturers, suppliers, warehousing distribution centers and service
logistics partners.

Our manufacturers procure components necefsaagsembly and manufacture of our products baesealir specifications, approved
vendor lists, bill of materials and testing andlgyatandards. Our manufacturers’ activity is lthsa rolling forecasts that we provide to them
to estimate demand for our products. This buildetecast purchase model exposes us to the rislotlratustomers will not order those
products for which we have forecast sales, orpuilichase less than we have forecast. As a reseiitpay incur carrying charges or obsolete
material charges for components purchased by onufaeturers. We work closely with our manufactutersmanage material, quality, cost
delivery times, and we continually evaluate theivgces to ensure performance on a reliable andeftective basis.

Shortages in product components have occumrtee past and remain possible. Our products dechome components that are proprietary
in nature and only available from one or a smathhar of suppliers. In addition, some of our apgiaaspecific integrated circuits (ASICs)
are manufactured by sole or limited sources thatesponsible for production. Significant time wibbk required to establish relationships
alternate suppliers or providers of critical comgts. We do not have long-term contracts with appber or manufacturer that guarantees
supply of components or manufacturing servicesotfiponent supplies become limited, productionragaufacturer is disrupted, or if we
experience difficulty in our relationship with ayksupplier or manufacturer, we may encounter mastufang delays that could adversely aff
our business.

Backlog

Generally, we make sales pursuant to purchiders issued under framework agreements that gakergeneral commercial terms and
conditions of the sale of our products and servitegse agreements do not obligate customers thase any minimum or guaranteed order
guantities. At any given time, we have orders fadopicts that have not been shipped and for sertliegéhave not yet been performed. We also
have accepted orders relating to products that haea delivered and services that have been pegtbthat are awaiting customer acceptance
under the applicable purchase terms. We considérdighese situations in our calculation of bagkiGenerally, our customers may cancel or
change their orders with limited advance noticghey may decide not to accept these products emites. As a result, backlog should not be
viewed as an accurate indicator of future revenusny particular period. In particular, the comioletof the MEN Acquisition during fiscal
2010 makes the period to period comparisons bets® ineaningful. As of October 31, 2009 and 2010backlog was approximately
$291.0 million and $591.0 million, respectively.dgég includes product and service orders from cemuial and government customers
combined. Backlog at October 31, 2010 includes @pprately $56.0 million primarily related to ordds maintenance and support services
that we do not reasonably expect to be filled witihie next fiscal year. Our presentation of backi@y not be comparable with figures
presented by other companies in our industry.
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Seasonality

Like other companies in our industry, we haxperienced quarterly fluctuations in customengtidue to seasonal considerations. As a
result, we have experienced reductions in custardar volume for product sales toward the end tdradar year and again early in the
calendar year as annual capital budgets of soroarafustomers are finalized. Conversely, we mayggpce increased services order flow
in the calendar year as maintenance service teneaewed. We have also experienced reductiooglgr volume, particularly in Europe,
during the late summer months. As a result of tlsessonal effects, we have experienced reduced actieity during our fiscal first quarter,
which ends on January 31 of each year, and ouwalfisrd quarter, which ends on July 31 of eachry€hese seasonal effects do not apply
consistently and do not always correlate to ouarfial results. Accordingly, they should not besidared a reliable indicator of our future
revenue or results of operations.

Competition

Competition among communications networkinlgiion vendors is intense. In addition to the efffeicbroader market conditions, the level
of competition we experience has intensified, irt,gdue to our increased market share, technoleggdrship and global presence resulting
from the MEN Acquisition. Competition has also imtdied as we and our competitors more aggressa@ak to secure market share,
particularly in connection with new network builgportunities, and displace incumbent vendors gelaarrier customers.

The markets for our products and serviceshagacterized by rapidly advancing and converganognologies. Competition in these markets
is based on any one or a combination of the folhmwactors:

. product functionality, speed, capacity and perfaroga

. price;

. incumbency and existing business relationst

. product development plans and the ability of prasland services to meet custon’ immediate and future network requiremei
. capacity, flexibility, speed and scalability of grets;

. manufacturing and le-time capability; anc

. installation, services and support capabil

Competition for sales of communications netimy solutions is dominated by a small number af/uarge, multi-national companies. Our
competitors have included Alcatel-Lucent, Ciscd¢c&son, Fujitsu, Huawei, Nokia Siemens Networks &elthbs. Many of these competitors
have substantially greater financial, operatiomal marketing resources than Ciena and have significbroader product offerings. Many of
our competitors also have more extensive customsedand well-established relationships with laeggice providers. In recent years,
mergers among some of our larger competitors haeasified these advantages. Our industry hasexiserienced increased competition from
larger, low-cost producers in China, who are attémgpto penetrate U.S. markets.

We also compete with several smaller, butidistaed, companies that offer one or more prodietscompete directly or indirectly with our
offerings or whose products address specific nigtien the markets and customer segments we asldfégse competitors include ADVA
and Infinera. In addition, there are a variety aflier-stage companies with products targeted etifip segments of the communications
networking market. These competitors often emplgyrassive competitive and business tactics asgbek to gain entry to certain customers
or markets. Due to these practices and the narrfiogas of their development efforts, these compegitnay be able to develop and introduce
products more quickly, or offer commercial termattare more attractive to customers.

Increased competition could result in pricprgssure, reduced demand, lower gross margindpasaf market share that could harm our
business and results of operations.

Patents, Trademarks and Other Intellectual PropertyRights

The success of our business and technologitship are significantly dependent upon our peipriy and internally developed technology.
We rely upon patents, copyrights, trademarks, eadktsecret laws to establish and maintain prapgietghts in our technology. We regularly
file applications for patents and trademarks angteasignificant number of patents and trademarkke United States and other countries
where we do business. As of December 1, 2010, Wedweived 1,244 U.S. patents and had pending 385gdatent applications. We also hi
over 400 non-U.S. patents.

We also rely on non-disclosure agreementsofimel contracts and policies regarding confideityialvith employees, contractors and
customers to establish proprietary rights and ptdtade secrets and confidential information. Puarctice is to require employees and
consultants to execute non-disclosure and propyieights agreements upon commencement of emplotoreronsulting arrangements with
us. These agreements acknowledge our ownershipiadlieictual property developed by the individuatidg the course of his or her work with
us. The agreements also require that these pemsaingain the confidentiality of all proprietary orfation disclosed to them.

Enforcing proprietary rights, especially paseran be costly and uncertain. Moreover, momitptinauthorized use of our technology is
difficult, and we cannot be certain that the stifyad we are taking will detect or prevent unauthedliuse. In recent years, we have filed suit to
enforce our intellectual property rights and hagerbsubject to several claims related to pateringgment. Third party infringement
assertions could cause us to incur substantias.cste are not successful in defending theserdaive could be required to enter into a
license agreement requiring ongoing royalty paysieme may be required to redesign our producteieomay be prohibited from selling any
infringing technology



12




Table of Contents

Our operating system, element and network gremant software and other products incorporateveoét and components under licenses
from third parties. We may be required to licenddigonal technology from third parties in orderdevelop new products or product
enhancements. Failure to obtain or maintain swem$es or other rights could affect our developreéfotts, require us to re-engineer our
products or obtain alternate technologies, whiaiiccbarm our business, financial condition and apeg results.

Among the patent and other third party intlel property licenses to which we are a partgannection with the MEN Acquisition, we
obtained a non-exclusive license to use patentotrat intellectual property controlled or excludivowned by Nortel in connection with our
manufacture, sale and support of a broad rangetafad networking and Carrier Ethernet products sexvices and natural evolutions of such
products and services. This license also providesith an exclusive license to use a narrower spatents and other intellectual property
owned by Nortel in connection with Ciena’s manufiaet sale and support of optical networking andi€aEthernet products and services
within a narrower field of use and subject to dertemitations. As part of this license, we granfedrtel a non-exclusive license to use the
patents and other intellectual property (excemtenaarks) that we acquired as part of the MEN Bssitfie connection with the manufacture
sale of products and services in the fields of ltstother businesses (including those businessesrdltb be sold to other parties) and na
evolutions of such fields.

Environmental Matters

Our business and operations are subject twemaental laws in various jurisdictions around therld, including the Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment (WEEE) and Restriction of e of Certain Hazardous Substances in ElectrizdlEdectronic Equipment (RoHS)
regulations adopted by the European Union. We 8eekerate our business in compliance with sucls laehating to the materials and content
of our products and product takeback and recychimyironmental regulation is increasing, particiylautside of the United States, and we
expect that our domestic and international openatimay be subject to additional environmental céangke requirements, which could expose
us to additional costs. To date, our compliancéscesdating to environmental regulations have estited in a material cost or effect on our
business, results of operations or financial camalit

Employees

As of October 31, 2010, we had 4,201 employdéshave not experienced any work stoppages anmbnsder the relationships with our
employees to be good. Competition to attract atalnénighly skilled technical, engineering and athersonnel with experience in our industry
is intense. We believe that our future successripin critical part on our continued ability tereit, motivate and retain such qualified
personnel. None of our employees is bound by arlmgnt agreement.

Directors and Executive Officers

The table below sets forth certain informatimmcerning our directors and executive officers:

Name Age Position

Patrick H. Nettles, Ph.C 67 Executive Chairman of the Board of Direct:

Gary B. Smitt 50 President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc
Stephen B. Alexande¢ 51 Senior Vice President, Chief Technology Offi
Michael G. Aquinc 54 Senior Vice President, Global Field Operati
James A. Frodsha 44 Senior Vice President, Chief Strategy Offi
Philippe Morin 45 Senior Vice President, Global Products Gr
James E. Moylan, J 59 Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Finar@féiter
Andrew C. Petrik 47 Vice President and Controll

David M. Rothensteil 42 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segr
Stephen P. Bradley, Ph.D. (2)i 69 Director

Harvey B. Cash (1)(¢ 72 Director

Bruce L. Claflin (1)(2) 59 Director

Lawton W. Fitt (2) 57 Director

Judith M. C'Brien (1)(3) 60 Director

Michael J. Rowny (2 60 Director

Patrick T. Gallagher (Z 55 Director

(1) Member of the Compensation Commit
(2) Member of the Audit Committe
(3) Member of the Governance and Nominations Comm
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Our Directors hold staggered terms of offexepiring as follows: Ms. @rien and Messrs. Cash and Smith in 2011; MesgexllBy, Claflin
and Gallagher in 2012; and Ms. Fitt, Dr. Nettled 8r. Rowny in 2013.

Patrick H. Nettles, Ph.Dhas served as a Director of Ciena since April 18%d as Executive Chairman of the Board of Direcsimse
May 2001. From October 2000 to May 2001, Dr. Nettkas Chairman of the Board and Chief Executivéc®ffof Ciena, and he was Presic
and Chief Executive Officer from April 1994 to Obgr 2000. Dr. Nettles serves as a Trustee for #Hi€othia Institute of Technology and
serves on the board of directors of Axcelis Tecbg@s, Inc. and The Progressive Corporation. Dttlé&ealso serves on the board of directors
of Optiwind Corp, a privately held company.

Gary B. Smithjoined Ciena in 1997 and has served as PresidenChief Executive Officer since May 2001. Mr. Srriitaas served on
Ciena’s Board of Directors since October 2000. Radhis current role, his positions with Cienalitted Chief Operating Officer, and Senior
Vice President, Worldwide Sales. Mr. Smith previgiserved as Vice President of Sales and Markdon$NTELSAT and Cray
Communications, Inc. Mr. Smith also serves on thart of directors for CommVault Systems, Inc. Mmif is a member of the President’s
National Security Telecommunications Advisory Cortied, the Global Information Infrastructure Comridasand the Center for Corpore
Innovation (CClI).

Stephen B. Alexandejoined Ciena in 1994 and has served as Chief Téopp®fficer since September 1998 and as a Seniwe V
President since January 2000. Mr. Alexander hagiqusly served as General Manager of Products &ifelogy and General Manager of
Transport and Switching and Data Networking.

Michael G. Aquinojoined Ciena in June 2002 and has served as Gi&waiior Vice President, Global Field OperationseiOctober 200:
Mr. Aquino served as Senior Vice President of Wittt Sales from April 2006 to October 2008. Mr. Amupreviously held positions as
Ciena’s Vice President of Americas, with resporiybfor sales activities in the region, and ViceeBident of Government Solutions, where he
focused on supporting Ciena’s relationships withthS. and Canadian government.

James Frodshanjoined Ciena in May 2004 and has served as Seria@ Rresident and Chief Strategy Officer since M&@10 with
responsibility for our strategic planning and cogie development activities. In August 2010, Modsham also assumed responsibility for
ongoing integration of the MEN Business. Mr. Fraalshpreviously served as Senior Vice President, @éManager of Ciena’s former
Broadband Access Group from October 2004 to Octdb8b and Metro and Enterprise Solutions Group fiday 2004 to October 2004. Fr
August 2000 to January 2003, Mr. Frodsham servethia$ operating officer of Innovance Networks,aptical networking company. On
December 23, 2003, Innovance filed a Notice ofritte make a proposal pursuant to Part Ill of teBuptcy and Insolvency Act (Canada).
Prior to that, Mr. Frodsham was employed for mbntten years in senior level positions with Noketworks in product development and
marketing strategy, lastly as Vice President, Pcotline Marketing, Optical Networking Group, fromeBPember 1998 to June 2000.

Mr. Frodsham serves on the board of directors wéwance Networks.

Philippe Morin joined Ciena in March 2010 in connection with Cisrecquisition of Norte6 MEN Business and has served as Senior
President, Global Products Group since that timehis capacity, Mr. Morin oversees our engineersupply chain, product line management,
quality/customer advocacy, product marketing ardt®ms organizations on a global basis. Mr. Mgrieviously served as President of
Nortel's MEN Business from May 2006 until Ciena’s comjatof the MEN Acquisition in March 2010. In Jany&009, Nortel Networks
Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries fileduntary petitions in the United States under Ceapf of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. From
January 2003 to May 2006, Mr. Morin held the positof Nortel’'s General Manager of Optical Networlkk. Morin previously held other
positions at Nortel in manufacturing, marketindesaand product management both in North AmerichEaurope.
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James E. Moylan, Jrhas served as Senior Vice President, Finance aied Elhancial Officer since December 2007. FromeJ2006 to
December 2007, Mr. Moylan served as Executive Wmsident and Chief Financial Officer of Swett &a@ford, a wholesale insurance
broker. From March 2004 to February 2006, Mr. Moy$&rved as Executive Vice President and Chiefrieiah Officer of PRG-Shultz
International, Inc., a publicly held recovery auatitd business services firm. From June 2002 tol 2013, Mr. Moylan served as Executive
Vice President in charge of Composite Panels Distion and Administration for Georgia-Pacific Coration’s building products business.
From November 1999 to May 2002, Mr. Moylan servedanior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficeECI Systems, Inc., an
electronics contract manufacturing company.

Andrew C. Petrikjoined Ciena in 1996 and has served as Vice Prasi@entroller since August 1997 and served asstnea from
August 1997 to October 2008.

David M. Rothensteijoined Ciena in January 2001 and has served a®Séige President, General Counsel and Secretaogsi
November 2008. Mr. Rothenstein served as Vice easiand Associate General Counsel from July 20@ctober 2008 and previously
Assistant General Counsel.

Stephen P. Bradley, Ph.has served as a Director of Ciena since April 1998fessor Bradley is the Baker Foundation Profeasd
William Ziegler Professor of Business AdministratiBmeritus at the Harvard Business School. A merabtre Harvard faculty since 1968,
Professor Bradley is also Chairman of Harvard'sdtkige Program in Competition and Strategy: Buiddand Sustaining Competitive
Advantage. Professor Bradley serves on the boadéreftors of Transatlantic Reinsurance Holdings the Risk Management Foundation of
the Harvard Medical Institutions,.

Harvey B. Casthas served as a Director of Ciena since April 1884 Cash is a general partner of InterWest Pastreewenture capital
firm in Menlo Park, California, which he joined 1985. Mr. Cash serves on the board of directofsrst Acceptance Corp., Silicon
Laboratories, Inc. and Argonaut Group, Inc.

Bruce L. Claflin has served as a Director of Ciena since August.2006Claflin served as President and Chief Exeeu@®fficer of 3Com
Corporation from January 2001 until his retiremienfebruary 2006. Mr. Claflin joined 3Com as Presidand Chief Operating Officer in
August 1998. Prior to 3Com, Mr. Claflin served &nidr Vice President and General Manager, Saledvarketing, for Digital Equipment
Corporation. Mr. Claflin also worked for 22 yeatdBM, where he held various sales, marketing amthagement positions, including general
manager of IBM PC Company’s worldwide research @exklopment, product and brand management, asas/gliesident of IBM PC
Company Americas. Mr. Claflin also serves on thard®f directors of Advanced Micro Devices (AMD) &k he is currently Chairman of the
Board.

Lawton W. Fitthas served as a Director of Ciena since Novemb@d.Zrom October 2002 to March 2005, Ms. Fitt sdrae Director of
the Royal Academy of Arts in London. From 1979 tt@ber 2002, Ms. Fitt was an investment banker @itthdman Sachs & Co., where she
was a partner from 1994 to October 2002, and a giagalirector from 1996 to October 2002. In additto her service as a director of non-
profit organizations, Ms. Fitt serves on the boafrdirectors of Thomson Reuters and The ProgressSorgoration,

Judith M. O’Brien has served as a Director of Ciena since July 2B@e November 2006, Ms. O’'Brien has served as liikexVice
President and General Counsel of Obopay, Inc.o@ger of mobile payment services. From Februai®120ntil October 2006, Ms. O’'Brien
served as a Managing Director at Incubic Ventuned;-a venture capital firm. Ms. O'Brien was a lawygth Wilson Sonsini Goodrich &
Rosati, where, from February 1984 to February 280&,was a partner specializing in corporate fisantergers and acquisitions and general
corporate matters.

Michael J. Rownyhas served as a Director of Ciena since August.2d@4Rowny has been Chairman of Rowny Capitalriegpe equity
firm, since 1999. From 1994 to 1999, and previotisiyn 1983 to 1986, Mr. Rowny was with MCI Commuations in positions including
President and Chief Executive Officer of MCI's Imtational Ventures, Alliances and Correspondentigracting Chief Financial Officer,
Senior Vice President of Finance, and TreasurerRdwny’s career in business and government hasatfuded positions as Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Ransohoff Companjel Executive Officer of Hermitage Holding Compaiixecutive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of ICF Kaiser Internationaic., Vice President of the Bendix Corporationd &eputy Staff Director of the White
House. Mr. Rowny also serves on the board of dirsadf Neustar, Inc.

Patrick T. Gallagherhas served as a Director of Ciena since May 2009Q€dllagher currently serves as Chairman of Ulsigmiitd., a
leading developer and supplier of femtocells fa& gfobal 3G mobile wireless market. From Januag82antil February 2009, Mr. Gallagher
was Chairman of Macro 4 plc, a global software sohs company, and from May 2006 until March 208&yved as Vice Chairman of Golden
Telecom Inc., a leading facilities-based provideintegrated communications in Russia and the €t8m 2003 until 2006, Mr. Gallagher was
Executive Vice Chairman and served as Chief Exeeuifficer of FLAG Telecom Group and, prior to thale, held various senior
management positions at British Telecom. Mr. Gdl&galso serves on the board of directors of Harenloie. and Sollers JSC.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Risks relating to our acquisition of the MEN Busirss

During the second quarter of fiscal 2010, wepleted our acquisition of the MEN Business. Basgncombinations of the scale and
complexity of this transaction involve a high degod risk. You should consider the following risicfors before investing in our securities.

We may fail to realize the anticipated benefits anaperating synergies expected from the MEN Acquisiin, which could adversely affec
our operating results and the market price of our ommon stock.

The success of the MEN Acquisition will depgimdsignificant part, on our ability to successfuhtegrate the acquired business, grow the
combined business’s revenue and realize the aatedpstrategic benefits and operating synergies fh® combination. We believe that the
addition of the MEN Business will accelerate the@xion of our corporate and product developmeatesjy, enable us to compete with larger
equipment providers and provide opportunities ttnoize our product development investment. Achiguinese goals requires growth of the
revenue of the MEN Business and realization otdingeted sales synergies from our combined custbamgs and solutions offerings. This
growth and the anticipated benefits of the transaahay not be realized fully or at all, or mayedknger to realize than we expect. Actual
operating, technological, strategic and sales gyegrif achieved at all, may be less significéatt we expect or may take longer to achieve
than anticipated. If we are not able to achievedhmbjectives and realize the anticipated benafitsoperating synergies of the MEN
Acquisition within a reasonable time, our result®perations and the value of Ciena’s common stoal be adversely affected.

The MEN Acquisition will result in significant inte gration costs and any material delays or unanticiped additional expense may harm
our business and results of operations.

The complexity and magnitude of the integmragdfort associated with the MEN Acquisition argréficant and require that Ciena fund
significant capital and operating expense to supberintegration of the combined operations. A©®ofober 31, 2010, we have incurred
$101.4 million in transaction, consulting and thiraity service fees, $8.5 million in severance espeand an additional $12.4 million,
primarily related to purchases of capitalized infation technology equipment. We anticipate thatwes incur approximately $58.0 million in
additional integration costs during fiscal 2011. W&e incurred and expect to continue to incurtamthl operating expense as we build up
internal resources, including headcount, facilifes information systems, or engage third partyipers, while we simultaneously continue to
rely upon and transition away from critical trafmitsupport services provided by an affiliate ofrtébduring a transition period. In addition to
these transition costs, we have incurred and expeaszintinue to incur increased expense relatingnmng other things, restructuring and
increased amortization of intangibles and inventiiygolescence charges. Any material delays, diffésuor unanticipated additional expense
associated with integration activities may harm lousiness and results of operations.

The integration of the MEN Business is a complex wertaking, involving a number of operational risks,and disruptions or delays coulc
significantly harm our business and results of opeations.

Because of the structure of the MEN Acquisités an asset carve out from Nortel, in a numbareds we did not acquire back-office
systems and processes that support the operatitie dlisiness. The MEN Acquisition therefore reggithat we build new organizations, gr
Ciena’s existing infrastructure, or retain thirdtgaservices to ensure business continuity andipgpsrt and scale our business. As noted below,
we are currently relying upon an affiliate of Ndtie provide critical business support servicesddransition period and will ultimately have to
transfer these activities to internal or otherdtparty resources. As a result, integrating theatpms of the MEN Business will be extremely
complex and we could encounter material disruptidetays or unanticipated costs. Successful integranvolves numerous risks, including:

. assimilating product offerings and sales and margeiperations

. coordinating and implementing a combined reseanchdzvelopment strateg

. retaining and attracting customers following a @érf significant uncertainty associated with teguired busines:
. diversion of management attention from businessogredational matter:

. identifying and retaining key personn

. maintaining and transitioning relationships witty keendors, including component providers, manufastiand service providel
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. integrating accounting, information technology,ezptise management and administrative systems whiaghbe difficult or costly
. making significant cash expenditures that may lgiired to retain personnel or eliminate unnecessesgurces

. managing tax costs or liabilities for acquired og@iring corporate entitie:

. coordinating a broader and more geographicallyedtisgd organizatior

. maintaining uniform standards, procedures and jeslito ensure efficient and compliant administratib the organization; ar

. making any necessary modifications to internal mrib comply with the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 and related rules &
regulations

Disruptions or delays associated with theskaher risks encountered in the integration precesild have a material adverse effect on our
business and results of operations.

We are relying on an affiliate of Nortel for the peformance of certain critical business support serices during a transition period
following the closing of the MEN Acquisition and trere can be no assurance that such services will performed timely and effectively.

We currently rely upon an affiliate of Norfel certain key business support services relaig¢lda operation and continuity of the MEN
Business. These services will be transferred totakeh over by our organization over time as wédup the capability and to do so. These
services include key finance and accounting fumsticupply chain and logistics management, maintsnand product support services, order
management and fulfillment, trade compliance, afidrination technology services. Ciena’s adminigiraand oversight of these transition
services is complex, requires significant resousrebspresents issues related to the segregatiduties and information among the purchasers.
These transition services are costly and we caoddriapproximately $94.0 million per year, if althe transition services are used for a full
year. Relying upon the transition services providgperform critical operations and services rass@simber of significant business ¢
operational risks. The transition service providiso performs services on behalf of other purclsaskthe businesses that Nortel has recently
divested. There is no assurance the provider willesas an effective support partner for all ofNwetel purchasers and we face risks assoc
with the provider’s ability to retain experienceadeknowledgeable personnel, particularly as Ciemhather purchasers wind down support
services. Ciena expects to exit critical transisenvices during the second quarter of fiscal 20he. wind down and transfer to Ciena or other
third parties of these critical services is a carplndertaking and may be disruptive to our busiresl operations. Significant disruption in
business support services, the transfer of theséts to Ciena or unanticipated costs relateduoh services could adversely affect our
business and results of operations.

The MEN Acquisition may expose us to significant uanticipated liabilities that could adversely affectour business and results of
operations.

Our purchase of the MEN Business may expoge significant unanticipated liabilities relatibg the operation of the Nortel business.
These liabilities could include employment, retimrhor severance-related obligations under apgédal or other benefits arrangements,
legal claims, warranty or similar liabilities tostomers, and claims by or amounts owed to vendwiiding as a result of any contracts
assigned to Ciena. We may also incur liabilitieslaims associated with our acquisition or licegsaf Nortel's technology and intellectual
property including claims of infringement. Partiady in international jurisdictions, our acquisitiof the MEN Business, or our decision to
independently enter new international markets wiNergtel previously conducted business, could algmse us to tax liabilities and other
amounts owed by Nortel. The incurrence of such r@seen or unanticipated liabilities, should theigmificant, could have a material adve
affect on our business, results of operations arah€ial condition.

The MEN Acquisition may cause dilution to our earnngs per share, which may harm the market price of or common stock.

A number of factors, including lower than aitated revenue and gross margin of the MEN Busirasfewer operating synergies of the
combined operations, could cause dilution to ouniegs per share or decrease or delay any accreffiget of the MEN Acquisition. We could
also encounter unanticipated or additional integnatelated costs or fail to realize all of the béits of the MEN Acquisition that underlie our
financial model and expectations for future groatiu profitability. These and other factors couldsmadilution to our earnings per share or
decrease or delay the expected financial bendfitseoMEN Acquisition and cause a decrease in tiee f our common stock.
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The complexity of the integration and transition asociated with the MEN Acquisition, together with Cena’s increased scale and global
presence, may affect our internal control over finacial reporting and our ability to effectively andtimely report our financial results.

We currently rely upon a combination of Ciemfmrmation systems and critical transition sergipeovided by an affiliate of Nortel to
accurately and effectively compile and report anarficial results. The additional scale of our opers, together with the complexity of the
integration effort, including changes to or implertaion of critical information technology systearsd reliance upon third party transition
services, may adversely affect our ability to réparr financial results on a timely basis. In aiif we have had to train new employees and
third party providers, and assume operations isdiotions where we have not previously had openati We expect that the MEN Acquisition
may necessitate significant modifications to odetinal control systems, processes and informagietems, both on a transition basis, and over
the longer-term as we fully integrate the combinechpany. Due to the complexity of the MEN Acquiti we cannot be certain that changes
to our internal control over financial reportingrohg fiscal 2011 will be effective for any perioat, on an ongoing basis. If we are unable to
accurately and timely report our financial resuttsare unable to assert that our internal contreés financial reporting are effective, our
business and market perception of our financiatld@n may be harmed and the trading price of doclsmay be adversely affected.

Risks related to our business and operations

Investing in our securities involves a higlyaee of risk. In addition to the other informatioontained in this report, you should consider the
following risk factors before investing in our seities.

Our business and operating results could be adveriseaffected by unfavorable macroeconomic and marketonditions and reductions in
the level of capital expenditure by our largest cusmers in response to these conditions.

Broad macroeconomic weakness has previousbyitesl in sustained periods of decreased demaralfgoroducts and services that have
adversely affected our operating results. In respda these conditions, many of our customers fgignitly reduced their network
infrastructure expenditures as they sought to qoeseapital, reduce debt or address uncertaintiebanges in their own business models
brought on by broader market challenges. We coetiniexperience cautious spending among our cussoasea result of the recent period of
economic weakness and remain uncertain as to hagvtheese macroeconomic and industry conditionsaaititinue, the pace of recovery, and
the magnitude of the effect of these market comdition our business and results of operations.ii@ad or increased challenging economic
and market conditions could result in:

. difficulty forecasting, budgeting and planning dadimited visibility into the spending plans ofrcent or prospective custome
. increased competition for fewer network projectd aales opportunitie:

. increased pricing pressure that may adversely tafé@enue and gross marg

. higher overhead costs as a percentage of rev

. increased risk of charges relating to excess asdlete inventories and the write off of other inginle assets; an

. customer financial difficulty and increased diffitguin collecting accounts receivab

Our business and operating results could kenmdly affected by periods of unfavorable macasmmic and market conditions, globally or
specific to a particular region where we operatel, any resulting reductions in the level of capitgbenditure by our customers.

A small number of communications service providergccount for a significant portion of our revenue. he loss of any of these
customers, or a significant reduction in their speding, would have a material adverse effect on ourusiness and results of operations.

A significant portion of our revenue is contrated among a relatively small number of commuivcs service providers. One customer,
AT&T, accounted for greater than 10% of revenueaesenting approximately 21.6% of fiscal 2010 rewer@onsequently, our financial results
are closely correlated with the spending of a el small number of service providers and areiigantly affected by market or industry
changes that affect their businesses. The terraardfame contracts generally do not obligate theestomers to purchase any minimum or
specific amounts of equipment or services. Becthee spending may be unpredictable and sporadictevenue and operating results can
fluctuate on a quarterly basis. Reliance uponatixely small number of customers increases ouosupe to changes in their network and
purchasing strategies. Some of our customers aselipg efforts to outsource the management andatiparof their networks, or have
indicated a procurement strategy to reduce ormalipe the number of vendors from which they pusehequipment. These strategies may
present challenges to our business and could beneflarger competitors. Our concentration in rehas increased in recent years, in part,
as a result of consolidations among a number ofaygest customers. Consolidations may increasékibiéhood of temporary or indefinite
reductions in customer spending or changes in r&tatoategy that could harm our business and ojpgratsults. The loss of one or more le
service provider customers, or a significant reiducin their spending, as a result of the factdrsva or otherwise, would have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condisiod results of operations.
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Our revenue and operating results can fluctuate ungedictably from quarter to quarter.

Our revenue and results of operations carufate unpredictably from quarter to quarter. Ouwtdried expense levels depend in part on our
expectations of long-term future revenue and gnoayin, and substantial reductions in expense iffieult and can take time to implement.
Uncertainty or lack of visibility into customer sp#ing, and changes in economic or market conditioais make it difficult to prepare reliable
estimates of future revenue and corresponding esepkavels. Consequently, our level of operatingeese or inventory may be high relative to
our revenue, which could harm our ability to aclkeievw maintain profitability. Given market conditeand the effect of cautious spending in
recent quarters, lower levels of backlog ordersamihcrease in the percentage of quarterly reveslating to orders placed in that quarter
could result in more variability and less predidigbin our quarterly results.

Additional factors that contribute to fluctigats in our revenue and operating results include:
. broader economic and market conditions affectingndsour customer.
. changes in capital spending by large communicasengice providers
. the timing and size of orders, including our abitid recognize revenue under customer contr.
. the transition from selling legacy to n-generation technology platformr
. availability and cost of critical componen
. variations in the mix between higher and lower nraoducts and services; a
. the level of pricing pressure we encounter, paldity for our Packe-Optical Transport

Many factors affecting our results of openmasi@re beyond our control, particularly in the cafSkarge service provider orders and multi-
vendor or multi-technology network infrastructunglids where the achievement of certain threshaddsi€ceptance is subject to the readiness
and performance of the customer or other providerd,changes in customer requirements or instaflggians. As a consequence, our results
for a particular quarter may be difficult to pregliand our prior results are not necessarily indiesof results likely in future periods. The
factors above may cause our revenue and operasudis to fluctuate unpredictably from quarter tauder. These fluctuations may cause our
operating results to be below the expectationgofisties analysts or investors, which may causestack price to decline.

We face intense competition that could hurt our s&s and results of operations.

The markets in which we compete for salesetfvorking equipment, software and services areeextty competitive. Competition is
particularly intense in attracting large carriesttumers and securing new market opportunities itkting carrier customers. In an effort to
secure new or long-term customers and capture msinlaee, in the past we have and in the future @& agree to pricing or other terms that
result in negative gross margins on a particuldeoor group of orders. The level of competitiod @nicing pressure that we face increases
substantially during periods of macroeconomic weaknconstrained spending or fewer network projéats result of these market
conditions, we have experienced significant contipetiand increased pricing pressure, particulastyour Packet-Optical Transport products,
as we and other vendors have sought to retainoov grarket share.

Competition in our markets, generally, is lthge any one or a combination of the following ast price, product features, functionality
and performance, service offering, manufacturingabéity and lead-times, incumbency and existingibess relationships, scalability and the
flexibility of products to meet the immediate andure network requirements of customers. A smathber of very large companies have
historically dominated our industry. These compesithave substantially greater financial and mamgatsources, greater manufacturing
capacity, broader product offerings and more eistiaddi relationships with service providers and offegential customers than we do. Because
of their scale and resources, they may be perceovbd better positioned to offer network operatingnanagement service for large carrier
customers. We expect that the acquired productsesnihologies, increased market share and glokakpce resulting from the MEN
Acquisition will only intensify the level of compgbn that we face, particularly from larger venslowe also compete with a number of smi
companies that provide significant competitiondaspecific product, application, customer segmegeographic market. Due to the narrower
focus of their efforts, these competitors may ashieommercial availability of their products mongakly or may be more attractive to
customers.

Increased competition in our markets has teduh aggressive business tactics, including:

. significant price competition, particularly for oBacke-Optical Transport platform:
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. customer financing assistan:

. early announcements of competing products and sixtemarketing efforts
. competitors offering equity ownership positionststomers

. competitors offering to repurchase our equipmesrfexisting customer:

. marketing and advertising assistance;

. intellectual property assertions and dispu

The tactics described above can be partiguédféctive in an increasingly concentrated baspaténtial customers such as communications
service providers. If competitive pressures inceearswe fail to compete successfully in our markets sales and profitability would suffer.

Our reliance upon third party manufacturers exposeaus to risks that could negatively affect our busiass and operations.

We rely upon third party contract manufactarer perform the majority of the manufacturing af products and components. We do not
have contracts in place with some of our manufactido not have guaranteed supply of componentsaaoufacturing capacity and in some
cases are utilizing temporary or transitional conmruiaé arrangements intended to facilitate the iraéign of the MEN Business. Our reliance
upon third party manufacturers could expose uadteased risks related to lead times, continuegdlgupntime delivery, quality assurance ¢
compliance with environmental standards and otbgulations. Reliance upon third parties manufacsuegposes us to risks related to their
operations, financial position, business continaityl continued viability, which may be adverseligetied by broader macroeconomic
conditions and difficulties in the credit markdtsan effort to drive cost reductions, we anticgedtionalizing our supply chain and third party
contract manufacturers as part of the integraticdch@MEN Business into Ciena’s operations. Thene loe no assurance that these efforts,
including any consolidation or reallocation thedhparty sourcing and manufacturing, will not uléitely result in additional costs or
disruptions in our operations and business.

We may also experience difficulties as a tesugeopolitical events, military actions or héaghtandemics in the countries where our proc
or critical components are manufactured. Our prochanufacturing principally takes place in Mexi@anada, Thailand and China. Thailan
undergoing a period of instability and we havehia past experienced product shipment delays assdaiath political turmoil in Thailand,
including a blockade of its main international airp Significant disruptions in these countrieeafing supply and manufacturing capacity, or
other difficulties with our contract manufacturersuld negatively affect our business and resultspafrations.

Investment of research and development resources tachnologies for which there is not a matching maet opportunity, or failure to
sufficiently or timely invest in technologies for vhich there is market demand, would adversely affeabur revenue and profitability.

The market for communications networking equept is characterized by rapidly evolving techn@sgnd changes in market demand. We
continually invest in research and developmenugian or enhance our existing products and deva@l@equire new products technologies.
Our current development efforts are focused uperptatform evolution of our CoreDirector Multiserei Optical Switch family to our
ActivFlex 5400 family of Reconfigurable Switchingsems, the expansion of our ActivEdge serviceveeji and aggregation switches, and
our 40G and 100G coherent technologies and capabifor our Packet-Optical Transport platformsefihis often a lengthy period between
commencing these development initiatives and bmigngi new or improved product to market. During thige, technology preferences,
customer demand and the market for our productsnmae in directions we had not anticipated. Thenmed guarantee that new products or
enhancements will achieve market acceptance othbhatming of market adoption will be as predict&tere is a significant possibility,
therefore, that some of our development decisimejding significant expenditures on acquisitioresearch and development costs, or
investments in technologies, will not turn out aticpated, and that our investment in some prsjaéll be unprofitable. There is also a
possibility that we may miss a market opportuniggéuse we failed to invest, or invested too late, technology, product or enhancement.
Changes in market demand or investment prioritiag aiso cause us to discontinue existing or plamteselopment for new products or
features, which can have a disruptive effect onrelationships with customers. These product dereknt risks can be compounded in the
context of a significant acquisition such as theNMBusiness and decision making regarding our proportfolio and the significant
development work required to integrate the combjredluct and software offerings. If we fail to make right investments or fail to make
them at the right time, our competitive positionynsaffer and our revenue and profitability couldiz@med.
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Product performance problems could damage our busigss reputation and negatively affect our results afperations.

The development and production of highly techAihand complex communications network equipmsmimplicated. Some of our products
can be fully tested only when deployed in commutiicas networks or when carrying traffic with otregfuipment. As a result, product
performance problems are often more acute fomini@éployments of new products and product enhaan&nOur products have contained
may contain undetected hardware or software eaodefects. These defects have resulted in waraiymns and additional costs to remediate.
Unanticipated problems can relate to the desigmuf@aturing, installation or integration of our grets. Performance problems and product
malfunctions can also relate to defects in comptmeoftware or manufacturing services suppliethivyl parties. Product performance,
reliability and quality problems can negativelyeaff our business, including:

. increased costs to remediate software or hardwefext$ or replace produc
. payment of liquidated damages or similar claimspferformance failures or delay
. increased inventory obsolescen

. increased warranty expense or estimates restittng higher failure rates, additional field sewvigbligations or other rework costs
related to defect:

. delays in recognizing revenue or collecting acceuateivable; an
. declining sales to existing customers and ordecelfations.

Product performance problems could also damagéusiness reputation and harm our prospects withnpiad customers. These consequences
of product defects or quality problems, includimy aignificant costs to remediate, could negatiadfect our business and results of
operations.

Network equipment sales to large communications seice providers often involve lengthy sales cyclesd protracted contract
negotiations and may require us to assume terms a@onditions that negatively affect our pricing, paynent terms and the timing of
revenue recognition.

Our future success will depend in large parbar ability to maintain and expand our salesatgé communications service providers. These
sales typically involve lengthy sales cycles, paoted and sometimes difficult contract negotiati@mgl sales to service providers often involve
extensive product testing, and demonstration ldborar network certification, including network-egific or regionspecific processes. We ¢
sometimes required to agree to contract terms mditions that negatively affect pricing, paymemtris and the timing of revenue recognition
in order to consummate a sale. During periods afroeconomic or market weakness, these customerseqagst extended payment terms,
vendor or third-party financing and other altermatpurchase structures. These terms may, in tegatively affect our revenue and results of
operations and increase our risk and susceptittdityuarterly fluctuations in our results. Serviceviders may ultimately insist upon terms and
conditions that we deem too onerous or not in @st terest. Moreover, our purchase agreementraindo not require that a customer
guarantee any minimum purchase level and custoafitens have the right to modify, delay, reduce arae previous orders. As a result, we
may incur substantial expense and devote time esalrces to potential relationships that never raditee or result in lower than anticipated
sales.

Difficulties with third party component suppliers, including sole and limited source suppliers, couléhcrease our costs and harm our
business and customer relationships.

We depend on third party suppliers for ourdmet components and subsystems, as well as fopmguit used to manufacture and test our
products. Our products include key optical andteteic components for which reliable, hightume supply is often available only from sols
limited sources. Increases in market demand obgsrf economic weakness have previously resultstiartages in availability for important
components. Unfavorable economic conditions caecaffur suppliers’ liquidity level and ability t@ctinue to invest in their business and to
stock components in sufficient quantity. We havpegienced increased lead times and a higher incedehcomponent discontinuation. These
difficulties with suppliers could result in lostvenue, additional product costs and deploymentydetzat could harm our business and cust
relationships. We do not have any guarantee oflgdppm these third parties, and in many casedirglao the MEN Business, are relying
upon temporary or transitional commercial arrangesetended to facilitate the integration. As sulg there is no assurance that we will be
able to secure the components or subsystems thagquée in sufficient quantity and quality on reasable terms. The loss of a source of
supply, or lack of sufficient availability of keymponents, could require that we locate an altersatirce or redesign our products, each of
which could increase our costs and negatively afiac product gross margin and results of operati@ur business and results of operations
would be negatively affected if we were to expecgeany significant disruption of difficulties wiltey suppliers affecting the price, quality,
availability or timely delivery of required compants.
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We may not be successful in selling our products tm new markets and developing and managing new salehannels.

We expanded our geographic presence signtficas a result of the MEN Acquisition, and we doag to take steps to sell our products
new geographic markets outside of our traditionatkats and to a broader customer base, includimgr ¢drge communications service
providers, enterprises, wireless operators, cgbdeators, submarine network operators, contentigeos, and federal, state and local
governments. In many cases, we have less experieticese markets and customers have less fanyligiih our company. To succeed in
some of these markets we believe we must develdpremage new sales channels and distribution seraegts. We expect these relations!
to be an important part of our business internatigras well as for sales to federal, state andllgovernments. Failure to manage additional
sales channels effectively would limit our abilitysucceed in these new markets and could adveaffelst our ability to expand our customer
base and grow our business.

We may experience delays in the development of oproducts that may negatively affect our competitiveposition and business.

Our products are based on complex technolagy,we can experience unanticipated delays in dpivgl, manufacturing or deploying the
Each step in the development life cycle of our piaid presents serious risks of failure, reworkeday, any one of which could affect the cost-
effective and timely development of our productse Tevelopment of our products, including the irdaégn of the products acquired from the
MEN Business into our portfolio and the developmafran integrated software tool to manage the captbportfolio, present significant
complexity. In addition, intellectual property digps, failure of critical design elements, and pthescution risks may delay or even prevent
the release of these products. Delays in produaldpment may affect our reputation with custonsard the timing and level of demand for
our products. If we do not develop and successfaothpduce products in a timely manner, our competiposition may suffer and our busine
financial condition and results of operations wolbédharmed.

We may be required to write off significant amountsof inventory as a result of our inventory purchasepractices, the convergence of ot
product lines or unfavorable macroeconomic or indugy conditions.

To avoid delays and meet customer demandhfanter delivery terms, we place orders with ourtrasct manufacturers and suppliers to
manufacture components and complete assemblied bapart on forecasts of customer demand. Asaltresir inventory purchases expost
to the risk that our customers either will not arthe products we have forecasted or will purcHesgr products than forecasted. Unfavorable
market or industry conditions can limit visibilitgto customer spending plans and compound thecdiffi of forecasting inventory at
appropriate levels. Moreover, our customer purclagseements generally do not guarantee any minipunchase level, and customers often
have the right to modify, reduce or cancel purcltasntities. As a result, we may purchase invenitoanticipation of sales that do not occur.
Historically, our inventory write-offs have resudtérom the circumstances above. As features anctiimalities converge across our product
lines, and we introduce new products, however,age fan additional risk that customers may foregohmses of one product we have
inventoried in favor of another product with simifanctionality. If we are required to write off arite down a significant amount of inventa
our results of operations for the period would kaerially adversely affected.

Restructuring activities could disrupt our businessand affect our results of operations.

We have previously taken steps, including ctiduas in force, office closures, and internal gaorizations to reduce the size and cost of our
operations and to better match our resources wéttkeh opportunities. We may take similar stephanfuture, particularly as we seek to ree
operating synergies and cost reductions assooEtedhe MEN Acquisition. These changes could srufitive to our business and may result
in significant expense including accounting chargesnventory and technology-related write-offsonkforce reduction costs and charges
relating to consolidation of excess facilities. Stalmtial expense or charges resulting from restring activities could adversely affect our
results of operations in the period in which weetakich a charge.

Our failure to manage effectively our relationshipswith third party service partners could adverselyimpact our financial results and
relationship with customers.

We rely on a number of third party servicetpars, both domestic and international, to complaroer global service and support resour
We rely upon these partners for certain maintenandesupport functions, as well as the installatibaur equipment in some large network
builds. In order to ensure the proper installafod maintenance of our products, we must iderttif§yn and certify qualified service partners.
Certification can be costly and time-consuming, endpartners often provide similar services fdrestcompanies, including our competitors.
We may not be able to manage effectively our retethips with our service partners and cannot biaicethat they will be able to deliver
services in the manner or time required. If ouviserpartners are unsuccessful in delivering sestic

. we may suffer delays in recognizing reven
. our services revenue and gross margin may be adyefected; ani

. our relationship with customers could sufi
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Difficulties with service partners could cause aisransition a larger share of deployment and odkerices from third parties to internal
resources, thereby increasing our services overtestd and negatively affecting our services gnoaggin and results of operations.
Our intellectual property rights may be difficult and costly to enforce.

We generally rely on a combination of pateatgyrights, trademarks and trade secret lawstabksh and maintain proprietary rights in
products and technology. Although we have beeredswmerous patents and other patent applicatiensuarently pending, there can be no
assurance that any of these patents or other ptapyirights will not be challenged, invalidatedcocumvented or that our rights will provide
us with any competitive advantage. In additionyeéh@an be no assurance that patents will be issaedpending applications or that claims
allowed on any patents will be sufficiently broadorotect our technology. Further, the laws of sdoneign countries may not protect our
proprietary rights to the same extent as do the lafithe United States.

We are subject to the risk that third partiesy attempt to use our intellectual property withauthorization. Protecting against the
unauthorized use of our products, technology ahdrgtroprietary rights is difficult, time-consumiagd expensive, and we cannot be certain
that the steps that we are taking will prevent orimize the risks of such unauthorized use. Liiigaimay be necessary to enforce or defend
our intellectual property rights or to determine tralidity or scope of the proprietary rights dfi@ts. Such litigation could result in substantial
cost and diversion of management time and resouaoesthere can be no assurance that we will obtainccessful result. Any inability to
protect and enforce our intellectual property riglitespite our efforts, could harm our ability tonpete effectively.

We may incur significant costs in response to claimby others that we infringe their intellectual prgoerty rights.

From time to time third parties may asserinataor initiate litigation or other proceedingsateld to patent, copyright, trademark and other
intellectual property rights to technologies anldited standards that are relevant to our busifiéese assertions have increased over time due
to our growth, the increased number of productsamlpetitors in the communications network equipnistustry and the corresponding
overlaps, and the general increase in the ratateip claims assertions, particularly in the Unigdtes. Asserted claims, litigation or other
proceedings can include claims against us or ounufiaaturers, suppliers or customers, alleging mgfeiment of third party proprietary rights
with respect our existing or future products arghtelogy or components of those products. Regasdlethe merit of these claims, they car
time-consuming, divert the time and attention of mechnical and management personnel, and resadtstly litigation. These claims, if
successful, can require us to:

. pay substantial damages or royalt
. comply with an injunction or other court order ticauld prevent us from offering certain of our puots;
. seek a license for the use of certain intelleghwaperty, which may not be available on commergigdhsonable terms or at ¢
. develop no-infringing technology, which could require signdiat effort and expense and ultimately may not leeessful; ant
. indemnify our customers pursuant to contractuagations and pay damages on their bel

Any of these events could adversely affect ourress, results of operations and financial condition

Our exposure to risks associated with theofigetellectual property may be increased as alre$acquisitions, as we have a lower level of
visibility into the development process with regpecsuch technology or the steps taken to safelgagainst the risks of infringing the rights of
third patrties.

Our international operations could expose us to adtlonal risks and expense and adversely affect ouesults of operations.

We market, sell and service our products dlplzend rely upon a global supply chain for sougcof important components and
manufacturing of our products. International operat are subject to inherent risks, including:

. effects of changes in currency exchange ri

. greater difficulty in collecting accounts receivalaind longer collection perioc

. difficulties and costs of staffing and managingefgn operations

. the impact of economic conditions in countries wmethe United State

. less protection for intellectual property rightssmme countries

. adverse tax and customs consequences, particakrilated to transi-pricing issues
. social, political and economic instabilit

. higher incidence of corruptiol
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. trade protection measures, export compliance, dilen@®ference procurement requirements, qualificato transact business a
additional regulatory requirements; &

. natural disasters, epidemics and acts of war ooriem.

We expect that we may enter new markets atttvaw from or reduce operations in others. In sementries, our success will depend in
part on our ability to form relationships with logertners. Our inability to identify appropriatarmers or reach mutually satisfactory
arrangements could adversely affect our busined®parations. Our global operations may resulbh@rdased risk and expense to our business
and could give rise to unanticipated liabilitiesdéfficulties that could adversely affect our ogéras and financial results.

Our use and reliance upon development resources India may expose us to unanticipated costs or lialiies.

We have a significant development center didrand, in recent years, have increased headeodndevelopment activity at this facility.
There is no assurance that our reliance upon dewedot resources in India will enable us to achimeaningful cost reductions or greater
resource efficiency. Further, our development éffand other operations in India involve significesks, including:

. difficulty hiring and retaining appropriate enginieg resources due to intense competition for sesburces and resulting wa
inflation;

. exposure to misappropriation of intellectual prap@nd proprietary informatior
. heightened exposure to changes in the economiglategy, security and political conditions of Ingand
. fluctuations in currency exchange rates and taxptiamce in India

Difficulties resulting from the factors abosed other risks related to our operations in Irdhiald expose us to increased expense, impa
development efforts, harm our competitive positioil damage our reputation.

We may be exposed to unanticipated risks and addinal obligations in connection with our resale of @amplementary products or
technology of other companies.

We have entered into agreements with straggimers that permit us to distribute their pradwr technology. We may rely upon these
relationships to add complementary products orrteldyies, diversify our product portfolio, or adslsea particular customer or geographic
market. We may enter into additional original equégmt manufacturer (OEM), resale or similar strategrangements in the future, includini
support of our selection as a domain supply pastrier AT&T. We may incur unanticipated costs ofrfidifilties relating to our resale of third
party products. Our third party relationships coetgbose us to risks associated with the businedsiability of such partners, as well as del
in their development, manufacturing or deliverypodducts or technology. We may also be requiredusfomers to assume warranty,
indemnity, service and other commercial obligatigreater than the commitments, if any, made toyusus technology partners. Some of our
strategic partners are relatively small companiigls livnited financial resources. If they are unatadesatisfy their obligations to us or our
customers, we may have to expend our own resotocegisfy these obligations. Exposure to thedes i®uld harm our reputation with key
customers and negatively affect our business andesults of operations.

Our exposure to the credit risks of our customers iad resellers may make it difficult to collect receiables and could adversely affect oL
revenue and operating results.

In the course of our sales to customers, we mage difficulty collecting receivables and coblel exposed to risks associated with
uncollectible accounts. We may be exposed to simighs relating to third party resellers and otkalles channel partners. Lack of liquidity in
the capital markets or a sustained period of unee economic conditions may increase our expasuceedit risks. Our attempts to monitor
these situations carefully and take appropriatesomes to protect ourselves may not be sufficierd,itis possible that we may have to write
down or write off doubtful accounts. Such write-d@nor write-offs could negatively affect our opérgtresults for the period in which they
occur, and, if large, could have a material adveffext on our revenue and operating results.

If we are unable to attract and retain qualified pesonnel, we may be unable to manage our businesgeztively.

Competition to attract and retain highly sdltechnical, engineering and other personnel @xtierience in our industry is intense and our
employees have been the subject of targeted Higrmur competitors. We may experience difficultaiging and motivating existing
employees and attracting qualified personnel td&éy positions. Because we rely upon equity awasia significant component of
compensation, particularly for our executive teartgack of positive performance in our stock priggluced grant levels, or changes to our
compensation program may adversely affect ourtghidi attract and retain key employees. It may iffecdlt to replace members of our
management team or other key personnel, and teefaaich individuals could be disruptive to ousiness. In addition, none of our executive
officers is bound by an employment agreement fgrspecific term. If we are unable to attract andirequalified personnel, we may be une
to manage our business effectively and our operatémd results of operations could suffer.
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We may be adversely affected by fluctuations in cuency exchange rates.

As a global concern, we face exposure to agdverovements in foreign currency exchange ratesotitally, our sales have primarily been
denominated in U.S. dollars. As a result of ouréased global presence, a larger percentage sévenue is now nokkS. dollar denominate
and therefore subject to foreign currency fluctmtin addition, we face exposure to currency ergeaates as a result of our non-U.S. dollar
denominated operating expense in Europe, Asianlfatierica and Canada. We have previously hedgeidstgaurrency exposure associated
with anticipated foreign currency cash flows and/rda so in the future. There can be no assuraratdhtbse hedging instruments will be
effective and losses associated with these instmtsvend the adverse effect of foreign currency argk rate fluctuation may negatively affect
our results of operations.

Our products incorporate software and other technabgy under license from third parties and our busines would be adversely affected
if this technology was no longer available to us oocommercially reasonable terms.

We integrate third-party software and otheht®logy into our embedded operating system, nétwmagement system tools and other
products. Licenses for this technology may not\zlable or continue to be available to us on comuiadly reasonable terms. Third party
licensors may insist on unreasonable financialtbewoterms in connection with our use of such tetdgy. Difficulties with third party
technology licensors could result in terminatiorso€h licenses, which may result in significantts@d require us to obtain or develop a
substitute technology. Difficulty obtaining and migining third-party technology licenses may dismgvelopment of our products and
increase our costs, which could harm our business.

Our business is dependent upon the proper functiong of our internal business processes and informatn systems and modifications
may disrupt our business, processes and internal otrols.

The successful operation of various internalifress processes and information systems isatritidhe efficient operation of our busines:
these systems fail or are interrupted, our opanatinay be adversely affected and operating resoiltsl be harmed. Our business processe
information systems need to be sufficiently scadblsupport the integration of the MEN Business farture growth of our business. The
integration of the MEN Business and transfer ofifiess support services being performed under #msition services agreement will require
significant modifications relating to our interrialsiness processes and information systems. Signifthanges to our processes and systems
expose us to a number of operational risks. Theaages may be costly and disruptive, and could sapobstantial demands on management
time. These changes may also require the modiicatf a number of internal control procedures dagdificant training of employees. Any
material disruption, malfunction or similar problemvith our business processes or information systemthe transition to new processes and
systems, could have a negative effect on the dparaf our business and our results of operations.

Strategic acquisitions and investments may expose to increased costs and unexpected liabilities.

We may acquire or make investments in othghrtelogy companies, or enter into other strategjationships, to expand the markets we
address, diversify our customer base or acquisecelerate the development of technology or praddat do so, we may use cash, issue e
that would dilute our current stockholders’ owndpslor incur debt or assume indebtedness. Thesséactions involve numerous risks,
including:

. significant integration cost:

. disruption due to the integration and rationalatbf operations, products, technologies and peedlo
. diversion of manageme’s attention

. difficulty completing projects of the acquired coamy and costs related tc-process project:

. the loss of key employee

. ineffective internal controls over financial repog;

. dependence on unfamiliar suppliers or manufactu

. exposure to unanticipated liabilities, includinggillectual property infringement claims; a

. adverse tax or accounting effects including amatitim expense related to intangible assets andjebassociated with impairme
of goodwill.

As a result of these and other risks, our sitipns, investments or strategic transactions matyreap the intended benefits and may
ultimately have a negative impact on our businessjlts of operation and financial condition.
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Changes in government regulation affecting the commmications industry and the businesses of our cugtters could harm our prospect:
and operating results.

The Federal Communications Commission, or RS, jurisdiction over the U.S. communications stdpand similar agencies have
jurisdiction over the communication industries ther countries. Many of our largest customers abgest to the rules and regulations of th
agencies. Changes in regulatory requirements itlthieed States or other countries could inhibitvger providers from investing in their
communications network infrastructures or introdigcnew services. These changes could adverselst #file sale of our products and servi
Changes in regulatory tariff requirements or ottegulations relating to pricing or terms of cargagh communications networks could slow
the development or expansion of network infrastries and adversely affect our business, operatisgts, and financial condition.

Governmental regulations affecting the use, imporbr export of products could negatively affect our evenue.

The United States and various foreign govemtsbave imposed controls, license requiremento#ret restrictions on the usage, impot
export of some of the technologies that we selvgbomental regulation of usage, import or exporvaf products, or our failure to obtain
required approvals for our products, could harmiotarnational and domestic sales and adversedcaffur revenue and costs of sales. Failure
to comply with such regulations could result in@oément actions, fines or penalties and restristn export privileges. In addition, costly
tariffs on our equipment, restrictions on impoxatitrade protection measures and domestic prefenaguirements of certain countries could
limit our access to these markets and harm ous skt example, India’s government has recentijlémented certain rules applicable to non-
Indian network equipment vendors and is consideftngper restrictions that may inhibit sales ofta@r communications equipment, including
equipment manufactured in China, where certainuofopoducts are assembled. These and other regndatbuld adversely affect the sale or
use of our products and could adversely affectasiness and revenue.

Governmental regulations related to the environmentind potential climate change, could adversely aff¢ our business and operating
results.

Our operations are regulated under variousrtddstate, local and international laws relatmghe environment and potential climate
change. We could incur fines, costs related to dgnte property or personal injury, and costs relaeinvestigation or remediation activities,
if we were to violate or become liable under thiages or regulations. Our product design efforts #ire manufacturing of our products, are
also subject to evolving requirements relatinght® presence of certain materials or substancesriaquipment, including regulations that
make producers for such products financially resgae for the collection, treatment and recyclifigertain products. For example, our
operations and financial results may be negatiaéflscted by environmental regulations, such astaste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
(WEEE) and Restriction of the Use of Certain HapasdSubstances in Electrical and Electronic EquipirtiRoHS) that have been adopted by
the European Union. Compliance with these and aimeihvironmental regulations may increase our @bdesigning, manufacturing, selling
and removing our products. These regulations msy mlake it difficult to obtain supply of compliasamponents or require us to write off non-
compliant inventory, which could have an adverdeatfour business and operating results.

We may be required to write down long-lived assetand these impairment charges would adversely affectur operating results.

As of October 31, 2010, our balance sheetidesd $600.4 million in long-lived assets, whichuges $426.4 million of intangible assets.
Valuation of our long-lived assets requires us skenassumptions about future sales prices andall@ses for our products. These
assumptions are used to forecast future, undisedwsash flows. Given the significant uncertaintyg arstability of macroeconomic conditions
in recent periods, forecasting future businessfidlt and subject to modification. If actual nkat conditions differ or our forecasts change,
we may be required to reassess long-lived assdtsarid record an impairment charge. Any impairn@rarge relating to long-lived assets
would have the effect of decreasing our earninga@easing our losses in such period. If we agired to take a substantial impairment
charge, our operating results could be materiallyessely affected in such period.

Failure to maintain effective internal controls ove financial reporting could have a material adverseeffect on our business, operating
results and stock price.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2@gfiires that we include in our annual report @repontaining management’s assessment of
the effectiveness of our internal controls oveafiaial reporting as of the end of our fiscal yeatt a statement as to whether or not such
internal controls are effective. Compliance witegl requirements has resulted in, and is likebptdinue to result in, significant costs and the
commitment of time and operational resources. Cesungour business, including the MEN Acquisitiodil] necessitate modifications to our
internal control systems, processes and informatystems. Our increased global operations and sigaimto new regions could pose
additional challenges to our internal control sygteWe cannot be certain that our current desiginfernal control over financial reporting,
any additional changes to be made during fiscall204!l be sufficient to enable management to datee that our internal controls
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are effective for any period, or on an ongoing fa$iwe are unable to assert that our internatrotsover financial reporting are effective, our
business may be harmed. Market perception of aanfiial condition and the trading price of our ktotay be adversely affected, and
customer perception of our business may suffer.

Outstanding indebtedness under our convertible notemay adversely affect our business.

At October 31, 2010, indebtedness on our antbhg convertible notes totaled approximately $ill{on in aggregate principal. Our
indebtedness could have important negative consegseincluding:

. increasing our vulnerability to adverse economid erdlustry conditions

. limiting our ability to obtain additional financingarticularly in light of unfavorable conditions ihe credit market:

. reducing the availability of cash resources foroturposes, including capital expenditui

. limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business and the marketsichwve compete; ar
. placing us at a possible competitive disadvantagmipetitors that have better access to capsalrees

We may also add additional indebtedness ssi@gaipment loans, working capital lines of credhidl other long-term debt.

Our stock price is volatile.

Our common stock price has experienced sutistaolatility in the past and may remain volatifethe future. Volatility in our stock price
can arise as a result of a number of the fact@sudsed in this “Risk Factors” section. Duringdis2010, our closing stock price ranged from a
high of $19.24 per share to a low of $10.67 pereshibhe stock market has experienced extreme pridevolume fluctuations that have
affected the market price of many technology cormgmrwith such volatility often unrelated to thesogiting performance of these companies.
Divergence between our actual or anticipated firdmesults and published expectations of analyatscause significant swings in our stock
price. Our stock price can also be affected by annements that we, our competitors, or our custemmaty make, particularly announcements
related to acquisitions or other significant trastigans. Our common stock is included in a numbenafket indices and any change in the
composition of these indices to exclude our compaoyld adversely affect our stock price. On Decenil@ 2009, we were removed from
S&P 500, a widely-followed index. These factorsyadl as conditions affecting the general economfirancial markets, may materially
adversely affect the market price of our commouglsto the future.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

Overview. As of October 31, 2010, all of our properties lagsed and we do not own any real property. Weeletghty-five facilities
related to the ongoing operations of our four besinsegments and related functions. Our princiedwgive offices are located in Linthicum,
Maryland. We lease six buildings located at varisitess near Linthicum, Maryland, including an ergiring facility, two supply chain and
logistics facilities, and three administrative avades facilities. Our largest engineering faciityocated at Nortel's Carling campus in Ottawa,
Canada. See below for information regarding thedesssociated with this facility. We also have eegiing and/or service facilities located in
San Jose, California; Alpharetta, Georgia; Spoksashington; Kanata, Canada; and Gurgaon, Indiamalatain a sales and service facility
in London, England and a supply chain logisticdlitgan Newtonabbey, Northern Ireland. In additjome lease various smaller offices in the
United States, Mexico, South America, Europe anid £&ssupport our sales and services operationshé&lieve the facilities we are now using
are adequate and suitable for our business reqeirem

Restructuring We lease a number of properties that we no loogenpy. As part of our restructuring costs, wevjate for the estimated
cost of the future net lease expense for thesktiagi The cost is based on the fair value of fatoninimum lease payments under contractual
obligations offset by the fair value of the estigthfuture sublease payments that we may receivef Bstober 31, 2010, our accrued
restructuring liability related to these propertiess $6.4 million. If actual market conditions téig to the use of these facilities are less
favorable than those projected by management,iadditrestructuring costs associated with thesiitias may be required. For additional
information regarding our lease obligations, seteNa2 to the Consolidated Financial Statementteim B of Part Il of this annual report.
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Carling Lease Upon the completion of the MEN Acquisition, Cie@anada Inc., a subsidiary of Ciena, entered il¢@ase agreement with
Nortel Networks Technology Corg“Landlord”) relating to the “Lab 10" building on Niel's Carling Campus in Ottawa, Canada (the “Q@arli
lease”). This facility consists of a rentable apg265,000 square feet for which we incur leaseeasp of approximately $7.2 million CAD per
year, consisting of both base rent and fixed agldiiti operating expense, the latter of which witlrease 2% per year. The Carling lease t
ten-year term, subject to early termination prauisi that may be exercised by Landlord if the prigpisrpurchased by a third party who
requires vacant possession of the premises occbyied prior to the end of the term. Landlord’sreise of these early termination rights is
subject to Landlord’s payment of an early termioafiee of up to $33.5 million USD.

On October 19, 2010, Nortel issued a pregasgl announcing its entry into an agreement withi®®works and Government Services
Canada (PWGSC) for the sale of the Carling Camidastel indicated that it targets a closing for te&e transaction at the end of calendar
2010. Nortel's press release further indicatedhwéspect to the Carling lease, that “Nortel ieclied by PWGSC under the sale agreement to
exercise, on closing, Nortel's early terminatiaghtis under the lease, shortening the lease frogeafs to 5 years.” Pursuant to the terms of the
Carling lease, should Nortel exercise its earlynteation rights as indicated in its press rele@ena would be entitled to receive, within three
business days of Nortel's delivery of an early t@ation notice, payment of an early termination ifeéhe amount of $33.5 million USD. Such
fee would be paid from the escrowed portion ofgibechase price paid by Ciena for the MEN Busin8s& Note 23 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8 of Part Il of thimaal report for additional information relatingtte sale of the Carling Campus and Ciena’s
receipt of the early termination fee following tb@mpletion of fiscal 2010.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding

On May 29, 2008, Graywire, LLC filed a compiain the United States District Court for the Nantn District of Georgia against Ciena and
four other defendants, alleging, among other thitlgest certain of the parties’ products infringe&SUPatent 6,542,673 (the “673 Patent”),
relating to an identifier system and componentoftiical assemblies. The complaint, which seeksittjve relief and damages, was served
upon Ciena on January 20, 2009. Ciena filed an angwthe complaint and counterclaims against Gigyan March 26, 2009, and an
amended answer and counterclaims on April 17, 2000April 27, 2009, Ciena and certain other defesléiled an application for inter partes
reexamination of the ‘673 Patent with the U.S. Raéed Trademark Office (the “PTO'Qn the same date, Ciena and the other defendéed
a motion to stay the case pending reexaminatiail of the patents-in-suit. On July 17, 2009, tisrétt court granted the defendants’ motion
to stay the case. On July 23, 2009, the PTO grahtedefendants’ application for reexamination wéhpect to certain claims of the ‘673
Patent. We believe that we have valid defensdsadatvsuit and intend to defend it vigorously ie #vent the stay of the case is lifted.

As a result of our June 2002 merger with Oj8t8ms Corp., we became a defendant in a secuwities action lawsuit filed in the United
States District Court for the Southern DistrictN#w York in August 2001. The complaint named OMirtain former ONI officers, and certain
underwriters of ONI’s initial public offering (IPQJs defendants, and alleges, among other thingfsthitt underwriter defendants violated the
securities laws by failing to disclose alleged cemgation arrangements (such as undisclosed conomsssi stock stabilization practices) in
ONI’s registration statement and by engaging inimaative practices to artificially inflate ONI'sack price after the IPO. The complaint also
alleges that ONI and the named former officersated the securities laws by failing to discloseuhderwriters’ alleged compensation
arrangements and manipulative practices. No spemifiount of damages has been claimed. Similar @nplhave been filed against more
than 300 other issuers that have had initial putfierings since 1998, and all of these actioneHhzeen included in a single coordinated
proceeding. The former ONI officers have been diser from the action without prejudice. In July 20@llowing mediated settlement
negotiations, the plaintiffs, the issuer defenddimsluding Ciena), and their insurers entered mgettlement agreement. The settlement
agreement did not require Ciena to pay any amawdnd the settlement or to make any other paym@vitde the partial settlement was
pending approval, the plaintiffs continued to ktig their cases against the underwriter defenden@ctober 2004, the district court certified a
class with respect to the Section 10(b) claimsxrifecus cases’selected out of all of the consolidated cases, wbéses did not include Cie
and which decision was appealed by the underwd#éndants to the U.S. Court of Appeals for theo8dcCircuit. On February 15, 2005, the
district court granted the motion for preliminagypaoval of the settlement agreement, subject tairemodifications, and on August 31, 2005,
the district court issued a preliminary order apprg the revised stipulated settlement agreememtD€cember 5, 2006, the U.S. Court of
Appeals for the Second Circuit vacated the distrdatrt’s grant of class certification in the sixfs cases. On April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit
denied plaintiffs’ petition for rehearing. In light the Second Circu#’decision, the parties agreed that the settlenmrit not be approved. (
June 25, 2007, the district court approved a s filed by the plaintiffs and the issuer defant$ terminating the proposed settlement. On
August 14, 2007, the plaintiffs filed second amehdemplaints against the defendants in the sixd@mases. On September 27, 2007, the
plaintiffs filed a motion for class certificatiorabed on their amended complaints and allegatiom$&ch 26, 2008, the district court denied
motions to dismiss the second amended complaiets iy the defendants in the six focus cases, @xsefp Section 11 claims raised by those
plaintiffs who sold their securities for a pricegrcess of the initial offering price and those vplwochased
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outside the previously certified class period. Bnig on the plaintiffs’ motion for class certifidgah in the focus cases was completed in

May 2008. That motion was withdrawn without prefedbn October 10, 2008. On April 2, 2009, a stifiotaand agreement of settlement
between the plaintiffs, issuer defendants and wndter defendants was submitted to the Court fetiprinary approval. The Court granted the
plaintiffs’ motion for preliminary approval and pirainarily certified the settlement classes on Jufie2009. The settlement fairness hearing
was held on September 10, 2009. On October 6, 2083 ourt entered an opinion granting final apptde the settlement and directing that
the Clerk of the Court close these actions. Notafesppeal of the opinion granting final approvalié been filed. Due to the inherent
uncertainties of litigation and because the settl@memains subject to appeal, the ultimate outcoitiee matter is uncertain.

In addition to the matters described aboveamesubject to various legal proceedings, claingsligigation arising in the ordinary course of
business. We do not expect that the ultimate dostssolve these matters will have a material éfd@cour results of operations, financial
position or cash flows.

Item 4. Removed and Reserv

PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrar’'s Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters anslusr Purchases of Equity Securities

(a) Our common stock is traded on the NASDAIQb@l Select Market under the symbol “CIENHe following table sets forth the high ¢
low sales prices of our common stock, as reportethe NASDAQ Global Select Market, for the fiscatipds indicated.

High Low

Fiscal Year 200!

First Quarter ended January $ 9.7¢ $ 5.07

Second Quarter ended April : $12.2¢ $ 4.9¢

Third Quarter ended July : $12.51 $ 8.4L

Fourth Quarter ended October $16.6¢ $11.0¢
Fiscal Year 201!

First Quarter ended January $14.02 $10.67

Second Quarter ended April . $18.5¢ $12.7¢

Third Quarter ended July : $19.2¢ $12.2¢

Fourth Quarter ended October $15.6¢ $12.02

As of December 15, 2010, there were approxéip&52 holders of record of our common stock ad 96,715 shares of common stock
outstanding. We have never paid cash dividendsuorapital stock. We intend to retain earningsufee in our business and we do not
anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foralskefuture.

The following graph shows a comparison of clative total returns for an investment in our conmstock, the NASDAQ
Telecommunications Index and the NASDAQ Compositiek from October 31, 2005 to October 31, 2010. NASDAQ
Telecommunications Index contains securities of BA®-listed companies classified according to thdustry Classification Benchmark as
Telecommunications and Telecommunications Equipnémy include providers of fixed-line and mobigephone services, and makers and
distributors of high-technology communication protdu This graph is not deemed to be “filed” witle ®EC or subject to the liabilities of
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834 the graph shall not be deemed to be incorgblateeference into any prior or
subsequent filing by us under the Securities Ad383 or the Exchange Act.
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Assumes $100 invested in Ciena CorporaticnNASDAQ Telecommunications Index and the NASDAQrposite Index on October 31,
2005 with all dividends reinvested at month-end.

(b) Not applicable.
(c) Not applicable.

Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial De

The following selected consolidated financiata should be read in conjunction with Item 7, Hdgement’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” #relConsolidated Financial Statements and the ilo¢esto included in Item 8, “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Dat&e have a 52 or 53 week fiscal year, which endtherSaturday nearest to the last day of Octobeadt
year. For purposes of financial statement presentatach fiscal year is described as having endeOctober 31. Fiscal 2006, 2008, 2009
2010 consisted of 52 weeks and fiscal 2007 conbsEté3 weeks.

Year Ended October 31,
(in thousands)

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Cash and cash equivalel $ 220,16: $ 892,06: $ 550,66¢ $ 485,70! $ 688,68
Shor-term investment $ 628,39 $ 822,18! $ 366,33t $ 563,18 $ —
Long-term investment $ 351,40° $ 33,94¢ $ 156,17: $ 8,031 $ —
Total asset $1,839,71. $2,416,27. $2,024,59: $1,504,38: $2,118,09:
Shor-term convertible notes payat $ — $ 542,26: $ — $ — $ —
Long-term convertible notes payat $ 842,26: $ 800,00( $ 798,00( $ 798,00( $1,442,70!
Total liabilities $1,086,08 $1,566,11! $1,025,64! $1,048,54! $1,958,80!
Stockholder’ equity $ 753,62t $ 850,15¢ $ 998,94¢ $ 455,83t $ 159,29:
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Statement of Operations Data:

Year Ended October 31.
(in thousands, except per share data)

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Revenue $564,05¢ $779,76¢ $902,44¢ $ 652,62 $1,236,63!
Cost of goods sol 306,27! 417,50( 451,52: 367,79¢ 739,13!
Gross profil 257,78: 362,26¢ 450,92° 284,83l 497,50:
Operating expense
Research and developme 111,06¢ 127,29¢ 175,02: 190,31¢ 327,62t
Selling and marketin 104,43: 118,01! 152,01 134,52 193,51!
General and administrati 44,44t 50,24¢ 68,63¢ 47,50¢ 102,69:
Acquisition and integration cos — — — — 101,37¢
Amortization of intangible asse 25,18: 25,35( 32,26¢ 24,82¢ 99,40!
Restructuring (recoveries) co: 15,67 (2,435 1,11¢C 11,20° 8,51/
Goodwill impairment — — — 455,67: —
Gain on lease settleme (11,649 (4,877 — — —
Change in fair value of contingent considera: — — — — (13,80)
Total operating expens 289,15. 313,60 429,05¢ 864,06 819,32(
Income (loss) from operatiol (31,37) 48,66¢ 21,87: (579,23) (321,819
Interest and other income, r 50,24* 76,48: 36,76: 9,487 3,917
Interest expens (24,16%) (26,99¢) (12,92 (7,40¢6) (18,619
Realized loss due to impairment of marketable debt
investment: — (13,019 (5,107 — —
Loss on cost method investme — — (5,32¢) —
Gain on extinguishment of de 7,052 — 932 — 4,94¢
Gain on equity investments, r 21F 592 — — —
Income (loss) before income tax 1,97¢ 85,73 41,53¢ (582,479 (331,579
Provision (benefit) for income tax 1,381 2,944 2,64¢ (1,329 1,941
Net income (loss $ 59t $ 82,78t $ 38,89 $(581,159) $ (333,519
Basic net income (loss) per common st $ 0.01 $ 0.97 $ 0.4 $ (6.37) $ (3859
Diluted net income (loss) per potential common sl $ 0.01 $ 0.87 $ 0.4z $ (6.37) $ (3859
Weighted average basic common shares outstal 83,84( 85,52¢ 89,14¢ 91,16: 93,10:
Weighted average dilutive potential common shares
outstanding 85,01: 99,60« 110,60! 91,161 93,10

Item 7. Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations

This report contains statements that discuss futwents or expectations, projections of resultsparations or financial condition, chanc
in the markets for our products and services, tieot'forward-looking” information. Our “forward-loking” information is based on various
factors and was derived using numerous assumptiorsame cases, you can identify th“forward-looking statements” by words like “may,”
“will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates, ” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “intends,” “ potential” or “continue” or the negativ
of those words and other comparable words. Youldhmeiaware that these statements only reflectcoarent predictions and beliefs. These
statements are subject to known and unknown niskgrtainties and other factors, and actual evemtsesults may differ materially. Importe
factors that could cause our actual results to temally different from the forwarlooking statements are disclosed throughout tafsort,
particularly under the headin“Risk Factors” in Item 1A of Part | of this annuaport. You should review these risk factors fonare
complete understanding of the risks associated antinvestment in our securities. We undertakebiigation to revise or update any forward-
looking statements. The following discussion aralyais should be read in conjunction with our “Seésl Consolidated Financial Data” and
consolidated financial statements and notes theretiuded elsewhere in this annual report.

Overview

We are a provider of communications networléggipment, software and services that supportrémsport, switching, aggregation and
management of voice, video and data traffic. OwkB&Optical Transport, Packet-Optical Switchingl &uarrier Ethernet Service Delivery
products are used, individually or as part of aagrated solution, in networks operated by commatitos service providers, cable operators,
governments and enterprises around the globe.
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We are a network specialist targeting theditaon of disparate, legacy communications netwaoksonverged, next-generation
architectures, optimized to handle increased trafflumes and deliver more efficiently a broadex ofi high-bandwidth communications
services. Our communications networking produtit®ugh their embedded software and our network gemant software suites, enable
network operators to efficiently and cost-effeclyvdeliver critical enterprise and consuntented communication services. Together witr
comprehensive design, implementation and supporices, our networking solutions offering seekemable software-defined, automated
networks that address the business challenges, naiations infrastructure requirements and serd@@ery needs of our customers. Our
customers face a challenging and rapidly changingr@nment that requires their networks be robusiugh to address increasing capacity
needs from a growing set of consumer and busingsgations, and flexible enough to quickly adapekecute new business strategies and
support the delivery of innovative, revenue-creaservices. By improving network productivity andt@mation, reducing network costs and
providing flexibility to enable differentiated séce offerings, our networking solutions offeringeates business and operational value for our
customers.

Acquisition of Nortel Metro Ethernet Networks Besis (the‘MEN Acquisition”)

On March 19, 2010, we completed our acquisitibsubstantially all of the optical networkingda@arrier Ethernet assets of Nortel's Metro
Ethernet Networks business (the “MEN Businesisiaccordance with the agreements for the acquiisithe $773.8 million aggregate purct
price was subsequently adjusted downward by $8@l@mbased upon the amount of net working cagitahsferred to us at closing. See
“Issuance of Convertible Notes during fiscal 20b@low for information relating to our election taypthe aggregate purchase price in cast
a result, we paid $693.2 million in cash for theghase of the MEN Business.

In connection with the acquisition, we enteirgd an agreement with Nortel to lease the “Lablulilding on Nortel's Carling Campus in
Ottawa, Canada (the “Carling leasé&3) a term of ten years. The lease agreement cteda provision that allowed Nortel to reduce grentof
the lease, and in exchange, we would receive a @atof up to $33.5 million. This amount was plag@d escrow by Nortel in accordance
with the acquisition agreements. The fair valughed contingent refund right was determined by @iembe $16.4 million and was recorded as
a reduction to the consideration paid, resulting purchase price of $676.8 million. See ltem Paift | of this report for more information
regarding the terms of the Carling lease and Nsrtetent announcement regarding the exercise efaitly termination feature under the
Carling lease, which resulted in a non-cash, uiredglgain of $13.8 million during the fourth quairté fiscal 2010.

Rationale for MEN Acquisition

The MEN Business that we acquired is a leaghogider of next-generation, communications nefweguipment, with a significant global
installed base and a strong technology heritage.MEN Business is a leader in high-capacity 40G H coherent optical transport
technology that enables network operators to sessfyleipgrade their existing 2.5G and 10G netwdhex,eby enabling a significant increase
in network capacity without the need for new fideployments or complex re-engineering. The prodndttechnology assets that we acquired
include Nortel's:

. long-haul optical transport portfolic

. metro optical Ethernet switching and transport tofs;
. Ethernet transport, aggregation and switching telcyy:;
. multiservice SONET/SDH product families; a

. network management software produ

In addition to these hardware and software solstiare also acquired the network implementationsmport service resources related to the
MEN Business.

We believe that the MEN Acquisition represemtsansformative opportunity for Ciena. We beli¢vat this transaction strengthens our
position as a leader in next-generation, convegggital Ethernet networking and will accelerate ¢ixecution of our corporate and research
and development strategies set forth in Item 1 iBess” in Part | of this annual report. We beli¢vat the additional geographic reach,
expanded customer relationships, and broader fiordbcomplementary network solutions derived fridme MEN Business allow us to better
compete with traditional, larger network equipmesndors. As a result of the MEN Acquisition, we ed@pproximately 2,000 employees,
including significant additional engineering talewhich nearly doubled our headcount. We expedtttiearesulting increased scale to our
business will enable additional operating leverageé provide an opportunity to optimize our reseanct development investment toward next-
generation technologies and product platforms.
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Integration Activities and Costs

We continue to make progress on integratidated activities in connection with the MEN Acqtiish. We have completed our
organizational structure, sales coverage plansdanisions regarding the rationalization of our bomed product portfolio. As described in
“Restructuring Activities” below, we have also figal initial operating synergies from the MEN Acsjtion. Significant and complex
additional integration efforts remain, includingttationalization of our supply chain, third pamanufacturers and facilities, the execution of
our combined product and software development @ad,our reduced reliance upon and winding downamisition services currently being
provided by an affiliate of Nortel.

Given the relative size of the MEN Businesd tre structure of the MEN Acquisition as an assete-out from Nortel, the integration of
the MEN Business has been costly and complex. Aoctdber 31, 2010, we have incurred $101.4 milifotransaction, consulting and third
party service fees, $8.5 million in severance egpeand an additional $12.4 million, primarily telhto purchases of capitalized information
technology equipment. We have also incurred inugrbsolescence charges and may incur additiornpreses related to, among other things,
facilities restructuring. We anticipate that welwilcur approximately $58.0 million in additionaltegration costs during fiscal 2011. Any
material delays or difficulties in integrating tNEEN Business or additional, unanticipated expenag harm our business and results of
operations.

In addition to the integration costs above,imairred significant transition services expensemt) fiscal 2010, and expect to continue to
incur significant expense into the second quartéiscal 2011. Transition service costs are refldcis a component of operating expense,
principally general and administrative expense, @vat of goods sold. We are currently relying uparaffiliate of Nortel to perform certain
critical operational and business support functidmsng an interim integration period that will ¢rue until we can perform these services
ourselves or locate another provider. These supgovices include key finance and accounting famstj supply chain and logistics
management, maintenance and product support seyramer management and fulfillment, trade comgliamnd information technology
services. These services are estimated to cosbxippately $94.0 million per year, were we to utliall of the transition services for a full ye
The actual transition service expense will depgmahithe scope of the services that Ciena utilipesthe time within which we are able to
complete the planned transfer of these servicegdoal resources or other providers. We haveialsarred and expect to continue to incur
additional costs as we build up internal resouriteduding headcount, facilities and informatiorst®ms, or engage alternate third party
providers, while we simultaneously rely upon arhsition away from these transition support sesvid@ée wind down and transfer of critical
transition services, which we expect to completthensecond quarter of fiscal 2011, is a compledeutaking that presents a number of
operational risks that could adversely affect ausibvess and results of operations.

Effect of MEN Acquisition upon Results of Operatiand Financial Condition

Due to the relative scale of its operatiohs, MEN Acquisition has materially affected our agems, financial results and liquidity. Our
revenue and operating expense have increased atigtedmpared to periods prior to the MEN Acquisiti As a result of the MEN
Acquisition, we recorded $492.4 million in othetangible assets that will be amortized over theeful lives and increase our operating
expense. See “Critical Accounting Policies andrates- Long-lived Assets” below for informationatithg to these items. Under acquisition
accounting rules, we revalued the acquired finighematls inventory of the MEN Business to fair valyp®n closing. This revaluation increased
marketable inventory carrying value by approximat$2.3 million, of which $48.0 million was recogsd in cost of goods sold during fiscal
2010, adversely affecting our gross margin. See [Raif the Consolidated Financial Statements faurder Item 8 of Part Il of this report. As
expected, our liquidity and cash and investmerdrizd were significantly affected by our use of dastund the purchase price of the MEN
Acquisition and resulting acquisition and integsatexpense, transition service expense and invessre support working capital related to
the increased scale of our business. In additionpdvate placements of convertible notes duriegdl 2010 resulted in additional
indebtedness. See “Liquidity and Capital Resourbetdw and Note 15 of the Consolidated Financiatedhents found under Item 8 of Part II
of this report for more information regarding oongertible notes. These and other effects on manfiial statements described below and
elsewhere in this report may make period to pecmaparisons difficult.

Restructuring Activities

Since the MEN Acquisition, we have undertaBerumber of restructuring activities. These actimresintended to reduce operating expense
and better align our workforce and operating cestis market opportunities and product developmerat lausiness strategies following the
completion of our MEN Acquisition. In April 2010,emo0k action to effect a headcount reduction gfraximately 70 employees, with
reductions principally affecting our global prodgcoup and global field organization outside of HMEA region. This action resulted in a
restructuring charge of $2.1 million in fiscal 2020 May 2010, we announced our reorganizationasfipns of our business and operations in
the EMEA region. This action resulted in a restdcig charge of $7.1 million related to the redotin head count of approximately 82
employees principally in our global field and suypphain organizations. As we look to manage opegatixpense and complete integration
activities for the combined operations, we will ione to assess the allocation of our headcounb#met resources toward key growth
opportunities for our business and evaluate aduitioost reduction measures.
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Issuance of Convertible Notes during fiscal 2!

On March 15, 2010, we completed a privategizent of $375.0 million in aggregate principal amtoof 4.0% convertible senior notes due
March 15, 2015. The net proceeds from the offevmege $364.3 million after deducting the placemeyerds’ fees and other fees and expenses
We used $243.8 million of the net proceeds to @pthe contractual obligation to issue convertites to Nortel as part of the purchase price
for the MEN Acquisition. The remaining proceeds &ased to reduce the cash on hand required tothendggregate purchase price of the
MEN Acquisition. On October 18, 2010, we compledggrivate placement $350.0 million in aggregate@pal amount of 3.75% convertible
senior notes due October 15, 2018. The net prodesuisthe offering were approximately $340.4 miliafter deducting the placement agents’
fees and other fees and expenses. We used apptekii$id6.1 million of the net proceeds of the dfigrto repurchase in privately negotiated
transactions approximately $81.8 million in aggtegarincipal amount of our 0.25% convertible semiotes due May 1, 2013. We intend to
use the remainder of the net proceeds for generpbcate purposes, which may include the repaymiematurity or further repurchase, from
time to time, of a portion of our outstanding 0.26&fvertible senior notes due May 1, 2013. See Wbtef the Consolidated Financial
Statements found under Item 8 of Part Il of thizoré for more information regarding our outstandomgpvertible notes.

Global Market Conditions and Competitive Landscape

We continue to experience cautious customieavyier with respect to spending as a result oftistained period of economic weakness and
macroeconomic uncertainty. Broad economic weakhasgpreviously resulted in periods of decreasedadenfor our products and services
that have adversely affected our results of opmmatiWwe remain uncertain as to how long currentroeonomic and industry conditions will
persist, the pace of recovery, and the magnitudbeoéffect of these market conditions on our bessrand results of operations.

At the same time we are experiencing challegpgiacroeconomic conditions, we have encounteredca@asingly competitive marketplace.
Competition has intensified, in part, due to owré@ased market share, technology leadership amélgioesence resulting from the MEN
Acquisition. Following the MEN Acquisition, we haexperienced increased customer activity and b&erdad increased consideration and
opportunities to participate in competition forwetk builds and upgrades, including in emergingggaphies and new markets or applications
for our products. Securing these opportunitiesrofegjuires that we agree to aggressive or lessdhl®commercial terms and conditions,
including financial commitments, that may requicdiateralized standby letters of credit resultingan increase in our restricted cash.
Competition has also intensified as we and our aiitgss more aggressively seek to secure markegé sparticularly in connection with new
network build opportunities, and displace incumbeipment vendors at large carrier customers. ¥gec this level of competition to
continue and, as larger Chinese equipment veneeists gain entry into the U.S. market, potentiaiyrease.

Despite challenging and competitive marketdititons, we believe that a number of important utyileg drivers represent significant long-
term opportunities and growing demand for convergatital Ethernet networking solutions in our tangearkets. We believe that market
trends including the proliferation of mobile welpéipations, prevalence of video applications anift st enterprise applications to the cloud or
virtualized environments are emblematic of increlasse and dependence by consumers and enterppisesgrowing variety of broadband
applications and services. These services willinaetto add network traffic and consume availalsiedwidth, requiring our customers to
invest in high-capacity, next-generation networkaatructures that are more efficient and robusd, lzetter able to handle multiservice traffic
and increased transmission rates. See “Strategydsk in Item 1 “Business” above in this repast fnformation regarding our strategy and
plan to capitalize on these market dynamics.

Financial Result:

Revenue for the fourth quarter was $417.6ionij/lwhich represented a sequential increase &b 7r@m $389.7 million in the third quarter
of fiscal 2010. Fourth quarter revenue reflects55@5nillion in revenue from the MEN Business an®&D million related to Ciena'’s pre-
acquisition portfolio. Additional revenue-relateetdlls reflecting sequential changes from the thirdrter of fiscal 2010 include:

. Product revenue for the fourth quarter of fiscal@@creased by $29.0 million, reflecting a $33i0iom increase in sales of produc
from the MEN Business and a $4.0 million decreassaies of Ciena’s pre-acquisition products. Pa€kgttical Transport revenue
increased by $40.3 million, reflecting a $31.2 millincrease in sales of products from the MEN Bess and a $9.1 million increase
in Ciena’s pre-acquisition Pack®ptical Transport products. Product revenue alfieats an increase of $5.9 million in software se
These increases were partially offset by a $13ldomidecrease in sales of Packet-Optical Switchirmpucts and a $3.8 million
decrease in sales of Carrier Ethernet Service Bgliproducts
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. Service revenue for the fourth quarter of fiscal@@ecreased by $1.1 million, reflecting a $1.9iarildecrease in sales of Ci¢s
pre-acquisition service offerings and a $0.8 millioorgase in service revenue from the MEN Busin

. Revenue from the United States for the fourthrigmanf fiscal 2010 was $210.1 million, a decrefiee $229.7 million in the third
quarter of fiscal 2010. This decline reflects ardase of $30.3 million in sales of Ciena’s pre-asitjon portfolio and a $10.7 million
increase in sales of products and services fronMaN Business

. International revenue for the fourth quarteris€él 2010 was $207.6 million, an increase from325nillion in the third quarter of
fiscal 2010. This increase reflects an increask3@t2 million in sales of products and servicesfithe MEN Business and $15.5
million in sales of Cier’s pre-acquisition portfolio

. As a percentage of revenue, international reverage49.7% during the fourth quarter of fiscal 20d®increase from 41.0% in the
third quarter of fiscal 201(

. For the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, one custoamrounted for greater than 10% of revenue, reptiesel5.2% of total revenue. Tl
compares to two customers that accounted for 3®f78venue in the aggregate in the third quartdisctl 2010

Revenue for fiscal 2010 was $1,236.6 millisrcampared to $652.6 million in fiscal 2009. Fis2@10 revenue consisted of $530.9 million
from the MEN Business and $705.7 million in sakesif Ciena’s pre-acquisition portfolio. Fiscal 20&@enue reflects increases of
$406.5 million in Packet-Optical Transport, $12mRlion in Software and Services, and $104.0 millia Carrier Ethernet Service Delivery.
These increases were partially offset by a $53I6omidecrease in Packet-Optical Switching. Seestftis of Operationg=iscal 2009 compart
to Fiscal 2010” below for additional informatiorgeding annual results.

Gross margin for the fourth quarter of fis2AlLO was 40.3%, an increase from 37.0% in the tatter of fiscal 2010. Gross margin for
fourth quarter fiscal 2010 benefited from increasefiware sales. Gross margin for the third quartes adversely affected by higher costs
associated with the revaluation of acquired invenfimom the MEN Acquisition described above. Grasargin for fiscal 2010 was 40.2%, as
compared to 43.6% in fiscal 2009. Product grosggmawras 40.9% in fiscal 2010, a decrease from 45fiscal 2009. Gross margin for fisc
2010 reflects the adverse effect of the valuatibimeentory, which resulted in a $48.0 million iease in cost of goods sold during fiscal 2010.
Lower gross margin during fiscal 2010 also refldess favorable product and geographic mix. Speadlfi, fiscal 2010 gross margin was
adversely affected by a $53.6 million decreasalassof Packet-Optical Switching products and gaplgic mix, including a higher
concentration of international revenue as a peaggnbf total revenue.

Operating expense was $249.6 million for therth quarter of fiscal 2010, a slight increasefi$243.6 million in the third quarter of fiscal
2010. Fourth quarter operating expense includesased costs associated with variable sales comfi@msthe acceleration of certain research
and development initiatives, and the build-up ¢éinal resources in preparation for an exit from tkansition services. These increased costs
were partially offset by the non-cash, unrealizathgf $13.8 million related to our contingent neduright associated with the Carling lease
described above. Operating expense for our thiddfanrth quarters of fiscal 2010 include $17.0 moilland $18.1 million, respectively, in
acquisition and integration-related costs assodiatth the MEN Acquisition. Operating expense fiscél 2010 was $819.3 million, compared
to $864.1 million in fiscal 2009. Operating expefmefiscal 2009 reflects a goodwill impairment ope of $455.7 million. Excluding the effe
of this charge, the significant increase in opaéxpense during fiscal 2010 reflects the expasdate of our business from the MEN
Acquisition. Operating expense for fiscal 2010 afsdudes $101.4 million in acquisition and intetijwa-related costs and a $74.6 million
increase in amortization of intangible assets,amspared to fiscal 2009, as a result of the MEN Asitjon.

Our loss from operations was $81.2 milliorthia fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 and $99.6 milliarthe third quarter of fiscal 2010. Our loss
from operations for fiscal 2010 was $321.8 millidinis compares to a loss from operations of $5#@8lon in fiscal 2009. Our net loss was
$80.3 million, or $0.86 per share, in the fourttadar of fiscal 2010, and $109.9 million, or $1 @8 share, in the third quarter of fiscal 2010.
Our net loss for fiscal 2010 was $333.5 million$8c58 per share. This compares to a net loss&f.85nillion, or $6.37 per share, in fiscal
2009. Net loss and operating loss for fiscal 2Gfect the effect of a goodwill impairment chargeidg the second quarter of fiscal 2009
described above.

We used $25.8 million in cash from operatidosng the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010. Changeworking capital provided $2.0 million ai
net losses (adjusted for non-cash charges) use8 $ilfion. Cash used from operations includes payts of $12.7 million related to
acquisition and integration-related expense anmuesiring costs, of which $9.9 million was refledtin changes in working capital and
$22.6 million was reflected in net losses (adjustechon-cash charges). This compares with theofi$430.0 million in cash from operations
during the third quarter of fiscal 2010, consistofgs108.9 million for changes in working capitalda$21.1 million from net losses (adjusted
for non-cash charges). Cash used from operatiotieithird quarter includes payments of $28.0 oillielated to acquisition and integration-
related expense and restructuring, of which $8I8amiwas reflected in changes in working capitadi&s19.2 million was reflected in net los
(adjusted for non-cash charges).
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We used $229.0 million in cash from operatidagng fiscal 2010, consisting of $112.2 milliasr thanges in working capital and
$116.8 million from net losses (adjusted for nosfcaharges). Cash used from operations includesngatg of $91.7 million related to
acquisition and integration-related expense anmugsiring costs, of which $18.2 million was retied in changes in working capital and
$109.9 million was reflected in net losses (adjgi$te non-cash charges). This compares with casbrgéed from operations of $7.4 million in
fiscal 2009, consisting of $3.8 million in cashrfrmet income (adjusted for naash charges) and cash of $3.6 million from changesrking
capital.

At October 31, 2010, we had $688.7 milliorcash and cash equivalents. This compares to $470i@n in cash and cash equivalents and
$0.2 million of short-term investments as of July 3010.

As of October 31, 2010, headcount was 4,2@kcaease from 4,214 at July 31, 2010, and anaser&om 2,163 and 2,203 at October 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively.

Results of Operations

Our results of operations for the periodsised! 2010 reflect the operations of the MEN Bus#keginning on the March 19, 2010
acquisition date. We reorganized our internal oizgtional structure and the management of our lessinpon the MEN Acquisition, and as
described in Note 20 of the Consolidated Finariatements found under Item 8 of Part Il of thjgoré, present our results of operations bi
upon the following operating segments:

. Packe-Optical Transport —includes optical transport solutions that increaevork capacity and enable more rapid delivers of
broader mix of high-bandwidth services. These pctalare used by network operators to facilitatectist effective and efficient
transport of voice, video and data traffic in coegworks, as well as regional, metro and accesganks. Our principal products in this
segment include the ActivFlex 6500 Packet-OptidatfBrm (ActivFlex 6500); ActivFlex 6110 Multisers Optical Platform
(ActivFlex 6110); ActivSpan 5200 (ActivSpan 5208)tivSpan Common Photonic Layer (CPL); Optical Nsétvice Edge 1000
series (OME 1000); and Optical Metro 3500 (OM 3500jn the MEN Business. This segment includes saflesir ActivSpan 4200®
FlexSelect®Advanced Services Platform (ActivSpafi®)2and our Corestream® Agility Optical Transpoys®m (Corestream) from
Ciena’s pre-acquisition portfolio. This segmenbadlscludes sales from legacy SONET/SDH productslegdcy data networking
products, as well as certain enterprise-orientaasport solutions that support storage and LANresits, interconnection of data
centers, and virtual private networks. This segnadsd includes operating system software and emdthsaftware features embedded
in each of these products. Revenue from this segimémcluded in product revenue on the Consolid&@tatement of Operatior

. Packe-Optical Switching —includes optical switching platforms that enabléoawated optical infrastructures for the deliveryaokide
variety of enterprise and consumer-oriented netvgerkices. Our principal products in this segmeallide our CoreDirector®
Multiservice Optical Switch, CoreDirector FS; andr d\ctivFlex 5400 family of Reconfigurable Switchiisystems. These products
include multiservice, multi-protocol switching sgsts that consolidate the functionality of an aduajddnultiplexer, digital cross-
connect and packet switch into a single, high-cépadelligent switching system. These productdr@ds both the core and metro
segments of communications networks and supportri@yaged service services, Ethernet/TDM Private LTmiple Play and IP
services. This segment also includes sales of tipgreystem software and enhanced software feaumedded in each of these
products. Revenue from this segment is includgutanluct revenue on the Consolidated Statement ef&dipns.

. Carrier Ethernet Service Delive- includes the ActivEdge 3900 family of service deliy switches and service aggregation switc
as well as the ActivEdge 5100 family. These proglscipport the access and aggregation tiers of concations networks and have
principally been deployed to support wireless backlinfrastructures and business data servicesldying sophisticated Carrier
Ethernet switching technology, these products delguality of service capabilities, virtual locaéa networking and switching
functions, and carrier-grade operations, admirtistnaand maintenance features. This segment iesltite metro Ethernet routing
switch (MERS) product line from the MEN Businessl aur legacy broadband products, including our ClNBroadband DSL Syste
(CNX-5), that transitions legacy voice networkstgpport Internet-based (IP) telephony, video ses/and DSL. This segment also
includes sales of operating system software andresgd software features embedded in each of thhedegis. Revenue from this
segment is included in product revenue on the dmtaged Statement of Operatiol

. Software and Service includes our integrated network and service manageésoftware designed to automate and simplify agk
management and operation, while increasing netwerformance and functionality. These software $smhstcan track individual
services across multiple product suites, faciligplanned network maintenance, outage detectidridamtification of customers or
services affected by network troubles. This segratstt includes a broad range of consulting and atigervices, including
installation and deployment, maintenance supportsalting, network design and training activitiEgcept for revenue from the
software portion of this segment, which is includegroduct revenue, revenue from this segmemtdkided in services revenue on
Consolidated Statement of Operatic
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Fiscal 2009 compared to Fiscal 2010
Revenue

The table below (in thousands, except pergentiata) sets forth the changes in our operatiggnert revenue for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Yeal
Increase
2009 %* 2010 %* (decrease %o**

Revenue

Packet Optical Transpc $299,08¢ 45.¢ $ 705,55: 57.C $406,46! 135.¢

Packet Optical Switchin 165,70! 25.4 112,05¢ 9.1 (53,64") (32.9)

Carrier Ethernet Service Delive 75,12°¢ 11. 179,08! 14. 103,95¢ 138.¢

Software and Service 112,71: 17.2 239,94 19.4 127,23 112.¢
Consolidated revent $652,62¢ 100.( $1,236,63! 100.( $584,00° 89.5

* Denotes % of total reveni
**  Denotes % change from 2009 to 2(

. Packer-Optical Transport revenue for fiscal 2010 reflects the addition of $409.6lrait in revenue from the MEN Business. 1
addition of MEN Business revenue reflects $208.llioni of sales relating to ActivFlex 6500, largelyiven by service provider
demand for high-capacity, coherent transport, ppsut of 40G and 100G network infrastructures. Ra€hkptical Transport revenue
also benefited from the addition of sales fromMEN Business of $115.8 million of ActivSpan 520@39%L million of CPL,
$16.2 million of OM 3500, $15.5 million of legacyé other transport products and $15.0 million ofi¥elex 6110. Packet-Optical
Transport revenue benefited from a $13.2 milliccrémse in ActivSpan 4200 revenue during fiscal 204r@ely driven by metro
network builds and latency sensitive applicatidrigese increases were offset by an $11.5 milliomedese in Corestream sales and a
$4.8 million decrease in sales of legacy and dfteeke-Optical Transport product

. Packel-Optical Switching revenuedecreased reflecting a $53.6 million decline inelirector revenue. Packet-Optical Switching
revenue principally reflects our CoreDirector pbath, which has a concentrated customer base. Asudtyrevenue can fluctuate
considerably depending upon individual customechpasing decisions. We believe Pacgitical Switching product revenue was ¢
adversely affected in fiscal 2010 by deferred amstopurchasing decisions and the effect of casadgs cycles as we effect a platform
transition from CoreDirector to our n-generation, hig-capacity ActivFlex 5400 family of Reconfigurable Bhing Systems

. Carrier Ethernet Service Delivery revenueincreased significantly, reflecting an $86.5 mitlimcrease in sales of our ActivEd
3900 service-delivery switches and ActivEdge 510@ise aggregation switches in support of wirelesskhaul deployments.
Quarterly revenue for these products remains sutijeftuctuation due to customer concentration emstomer buying cycles. Carrier
Ethernet Service Delivery revenue also benefittethfthe addition of $9.6 million in sales of our RE product from the MEN
Business and an $8.2 million increase in (-5 sales in support of residential D¢

. Software and Services revenuincreased primarily due to the addition of $86.@iom in maintenance support revenue and
$20.8 million in installation and deployment seesdrom the MEN Business. Segment revenue alsditeshéfom a $14.9 million
increase in maintenance support revenue from (s pre-acquisition portfolio and a $4.9 million increasesbftware revenut
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Revenue from sales to customers outside dftiiteed States is reflected as International ingeegraphic distribution of revenue below.
table below (in thousands, except percentage data)forth the changes in geographic distributioreeenue for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Yeal
Increase
2009 %* 2010 %* (decrease %o**
United State! $419,40! 64.3 $ 744,23 60.2 $324,82° 77.4
International 233,22: 35.7 492,40 39.¢ 259,18( 111.1
Total $652,62¢ 100.C $1,236,63I 100.( $584,00° 89.t

* Denotes % of total reveni
**  Denotes % change from 2009 to 2(

. United States revenucncreased primarily due to a $189.8 million incee@ssales of Pack&ptical Transport products, principally
a result of the MEN Acquisition, a $94.1 milliorciease in sales of Carrier Ethernet Service Dslipeoducts, and a $72.5 million
increase in services revenue. These increased aff#4.3 million decrease in Pac-Optical Switching revenus

. International revenue increased primarily due to a $216.7 million inciee@rs Packe-Optical Transport revenue, principally as a re
of the MEN Acquisition, a $49.8 million increasedgervices revenue and a $9.9 million increaselessa Carrier Ethernet Service
Delivery products. These increases offset a $19libmdecrease in Pack-Optical Switching revenut

While our concentration in revenue has lesdeoeewhat as a result of the MEN Acquisition,zalsie portion of our revenue continues to
come from sales to a small number of service pergidparticularly within our Packet-Optical Switegiand Carrier-Ethernet Service Delivery
businesses. As a result, our results are significaffected by spending levels and the businesfi@iges encountered by our largest
customers. Moreover, our contracts do not havegé¢hait obligate these customers to purchase anynenin or specific amounts of equipment
or services. Our concentration of revenue can beradly affected by consolidation activity among lawge customers. In addition, some of
our customers are pursuing efforts to outsourcertheagement and operation of their networks, oe ladicated a procurement strategy to
reduce the number of vendors from which they pwetequipment. In April 2010, we were selected dsraain network equipment supplier
AT&T for its optical transport network and metrodacore transport domains. Being named as a venduoultiple technology domains under
this program affords us an opportunity to forge@aercollaborative technology relationship acrogséhproduct platforms. Sales to AT&T w
$128.2 million or 19.6% of our revenue in fiscaD®0and $267.4 million or 21.6% of our revenue gtél 2010. We did not have any other
customers accounting for greater than 10% of reeémdiscal 2009 or 2010.

Cost of Goods Sold and Gross Profit

Product cost of goods sold consists primarlgmounts paid to third-party contract manufaaireomponent costs, employee-related costs
and overhead, shipping and logistics costs assatisith manufacturing-related operations, warramtgt other contractual obligations,
royalties, license fees, amortization of intangifdsets, cost of excess and obsolete inventorywdret) applicable, estimated losses on
committed customer contracts.

Services cost of goods sold consists primafilglirect and third-party costs, including empleyelated costs, associated with our provision
of services including installation, deployment, manance support, consulting and training actisjtend, when applicable, estimated losses on
committed customer contracts.

Gross profit as a percentage of revenue, msgmargin,” continues to be susceptible to qugrfieictuation due to a number of factors.
Gross margin can vary significantly depending uff@mix and concentration of products, the mixoefér margin common equipment,
geographic mix and the mix of customers and sesvita given fiscal quarter. Gross margin can bksaffected by our introduction of new
products, charges for excess and obsolete inverntbanges in warranty costs and sales volume. @nasgin can also be adversely affectec
the competitive environment and level of pricinggsure we encounter. The combination of uncertairkeb conditions, recent constraints on
customer capital expenditures and increased cofigpelias resulted in a heightened customer focyszricimg and return on network
investment, as customers address network traffiesthr and strive to increase revenue and profit. €osure to pricing pressure has been
most severe in metro and core applications forRagaket-Optical Transport platforms, which we expétitcomprise a greater percentage of
our overall revenue as a result of the MEN AcqigiritAs a result, and in an effort to retain oruseccustomers, enter new markets or capture
market share, in the past we have and in the futerenay agree to pricing or other unfavorable coneiabterms that result in lower or
negative gross margins on a particular order ongaf orders. These arrangements would adversfgtajur gross margins and results of
operations. We expect that gross margins will Alssubject to fluctuation based on our level otsss in driving cost reductions and
rationalizing our supply chain and third party gast manufacturers as part of the MEN Acquisitiotegration activities.
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Service gross margin can be affected by theahcustomers and services, particularly the ngtnteen deployment and maintenance

services, geographic mix and the timing and exééany investments in internal resources to supiistbusiness.

The tables below (in thousands, except peagentiata) set forth the changes in revenue, cagiaifs sold and gross profit for the periods

indicated:

Total revenu
Total cost of goods so

Gross profil

* Denotes % of total reveni
**  Denotes % change from 2009 to 2(

Product revenu
Product cost of goods sc

Product gross prof

* Denotes % of product reven
**  Denotes % change from 2009 to 2(

Service revenu
Service cost of goods sc

Service gross prof

* Denotes % of service reven
**  Denotes % change from 2009 to 2(

Fiscal Yeal
2009 %* 2010 %*
$652,62¢ 100.C $1,236,63I 100.C
367,79¢ 56.4 739,13! 59.¢
$284,83( 43.€ $ 497,50: 40.2
Fiscal Yeal
2009 %* 2010 %*
$547,52: 100.C $1,009,23! 100.C
296,17( 54.1 596,70 59.1
$251,35: 45.¢ $ 412,53! 40.€
Fiscal Yeal
2009 %* 2010 %*
$105,10° 100.C $227,39° 100.C
71,62¢ 68.1 142,43 62.€
$ 33,47¢ 31.€ $ 84,96¢ 37.4

Increase
(decrease
$584,00°
371,33t

$212,67:

Increase
(decrease
$461,71°
300,53

Increase

(decrease
$122,29(

70,80:
5148t

%**
89.t
101.C

4.0

%**
84.:

101.F
64.1

%**
116.:
98.¢
153.¢

. Gross profit as a percentage of revenudecreased due to lower product gross margins testhelow, partially offset by improve

service gross margil

. Gross profit on products as a percentage of produaevenuedecreased due to a number of items relating toMBN Acquisition
that increased costs of goods sold during fiscaD2@hese items include the revaluation of inventiescribed in “Overview” above,
excess purchase commitment losses on Ciena’s présitton inventory relating to product rationalime decisions, and increased
amortization of intangible assets. Fiscal 2010 grsfit was also adversely affected by a lowercentration of Packet-Optical
Switching revenue. These additional costs weresbfig lower warranty and excess and obsolete iovemharges as compared to
fiscal 2009. Gross margin for fiscal 2009 was niegét affected by a $5.8 million charge relatedw@ committed customer sales
contracts that resulted in a negative gross mangitine initial phases of the custon’ deployment

. Gross profit on services as a percentage of serviceevenueincreased due to higher concentration of maintemanpport and

professional services as a percentage of revenddngproved operational efficiencie

Operating Expense

Research and development expense primarilyistsnof salaries and related employee expenskeding share-based compensation
expense), prototype costs relating to design, dgweént, testing of our products, depreciation egspeand third-party consulting costs.
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Sales and marketing expense primarily consissslaries, commissions and related employeersgéncluding share-based compensation
expense), and sales and marketing support expieneling travel, demonstration units, trade shoywesnse, and third-party consulting costs.

General and administrative expense primanolysists of salaries and related employee expenskeiding share-based compensation
expense), and costs for third-party consulting @her services.

Amortization of intangible assets primarilyleets purchased technology and customer relatipadhom our acquisitions.

Excluding the effect of the goodwill impairmerarges in fiscal 2009, increased operating esg@éor fiscal 2010 principally reflects the
increased scale of our business resulting fronMB®& Acquisition on March 19, 2010. The table belpwthousands, except percentage data)
sets forth the changes in operating expense fgpehieds indicated:

Fiscal Yeal
Increase
2009 %* 2010 %* (decrease %**

Research and developm: $190,31¢ 29.2 $327,62¢ 26.5 $ 137,30 72.1
Selling and marketin 134,52 20.€ 193,51! 15.€ 58,98¢ 43.¢
General and administrati\ 47,50¢ 7.3 102,69: 8.3 55,18t 116.2
Acquisition and integration cos — 0.C 101,37¢ 8.2 101,37¢ 100.C
Amortization of intangible asse 24,82¢ 3.8 99,401 8.C 74,57" 300.4
Restructuring cosl 11,20° 1.7 8,51« 0.7 (2,699 (24.0
Goodwill impairment 455,67: 69.¢ — 0.C (455,67)) (200.0
Change in fair value of continge

consideratior — 0.C (13,80 -1.1 (13,807 100.(
Total operating expens $864,06: 132.¢ $819,32( 66.2 $ (44,74) (5.2

* Denotes % of total reveni
**  Denotes % change from 2009 to 2(

. Research and development expenwas adversely affected by $13.9 million in fore@xthange rates, primarily due to the weake
of the U.S. dollar in relation to the Canadian dollThe $137.3 million increase primarily reflettsreases of $65.6 million in
employee compensation and related costs, $34.®mill professional services and fees, $17.4 mnilliofacilities and information
systems, $12.2 million in depreciation expense®&h8@ million in prototype expense related to theadi@pment initiatives described
above.

. Selling and marketing expensibenefited by $1.6 million in foreign exchange rggemarily due to the strengthening of the L
dollar in relation to the Euro. The $59.0 milliarcrease primarily reflects increases of $41.8 anilin employee compensation and
related costs, $6.4 million in travel-related exgitures, $4.3 million in facilities and informati@ystems and $2.8 million in
professional services and fe

. General and administrative expensincreased by $21.9 million in consulting servicpense, $17.7 million in facilities ar
information systems expense and $11.7 million ipleyee compensation and related cc

. Acquisition and integration costsare related to the MEN Acquisition. As of Octobér 3010, we have incurred $101.4 million in
transaction, consulting and third party servicesfée expect to incur approximately $58.0 milliaredditional expense relating to
acquisition and integration activities in fiscallaQ a significant portion of which will be recogait as operating expen:

. Amortization of intangible assetsincreased due to the acquisition of additionalrigtale assets as a result of the MEN Acquisition.
See Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial Statermeritem 8 of Part Il of this repor

. Restructuring costsfor fiscal 2010 primarily reflect the headcountuetions and restructuring activities describechig“ Overview
— Restructuring Activitie” above.

. Goodwill impairment costsreflect the impairment of goodwill and resultingacge incurred in fiscal 2009 as described in Note 4
our Consolidated Financial Statements in Item Bant 11 of this report

. Change in fair value of contingent consideratioris related to the contingent refund right we reedivelating to the Carling lea
entered into as part of the MEN Acquisition. Asault of a change in circumstances and outcomeapiliies during the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2010, we recorded a $13.8 milikbiange in fair value. See Notes 2 and 23 to omsGlaated Financial Statements
Item 8 of Part Il for additional information relagj to the early termination of the Carling lee
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Other items

The table below (in thousands, except pergentiata) sets forth the changes in other itemthéoperiods indicated:

Fiscal Yeal
Increase
2009 %* 2010 %* (decrease %o**
Interest and other income, t $ 9,481 15 $ 3,917 0.2 $(5,570 (58.7)
Interest expens $ 7,40¢ 1.1 $18,61¢ 1t $11,21: 151.¢
Loss on cost method investme $ 5,32¢ 0.8 $ — 0.C $(5,32¢) (200.0)
Gain on extinguishment of de $ — 0.0 $ 4,94¢ 0.4 $ 4,94¢ 100.(
Provision (benefit) for income tax $(1,329) 0.2 $ 1,941 0.2 $ 3,26¢ (246.6)

*

**

Denotes % of total revent
Denotes % change from 2009 to 2(

Interest and other income, neidecreased as a result of a $9.5 million decreasgdrest income due to lower interest rates anefo
invested balances. Decreased interest and othemimmet also reflects a $2.0 million charge retato the termination of an
indemnification asset upon the expiration of thage of limitations applicable to one of the uaigrtax contingencies acquired as
part of the MEN Acquisition. These items were palyioffset by a $3.8 million gain due to the posteffect of foreign exchange ra
on assets and liabilities denominated in curreribgrathan the relevant functional currency, an@® #illion non-cash gain related to
the change in fair value of the redemption featisgociated with our 4.0% convertible senior notesiarch 15, 2015. See Notes 7
and 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsdaunder Item 8 of Part Il of this report for manéormation regarding the issuance
of these convertible notes and the fair value efrétdemption feature contained ther:

Interest expenseincreased due to our private placements duringffd@10 of $375.0 million in aggregate principalamt of 4.0%
convertible senior notes due March 15, 2015 and$B#iillion in aggregate principal amount of 3.78&#vertible senior notes due
October 15, 2018. See Note 15 to the ConsolidaiteghEial Statements found under Item 8 of Parf this report.

Loss on cost method investmentduring fiscal 2009 was due to the decline in valfieur investments in two privately held
technology companies that were determined to ber-thar-temporary.

Gain on extinguishment of debffor fiscal 2010 resulted from our repurchase of.88tillion in aggregate principal amount of our
outstanding 0.25% convertible notes in privatelgateated transactions for $76.1 million. We recardegain on the extinguishment of
debt in the amount of $4.9 million, which consistshe $5.7 million gain from the repurchase of tlées, less $0.8 million of
associated debt issuance co

Provision (benefit) for income taxesincreased primarily due to a decrease in refundigloleral tax credits

Fiscal 2008 compared to Fiscal 2009

Revenue

Revenue for fiscal 2009 reflects the weaknesigitility and uncertainty presented by the gloimalrket conditions that we encountered

during the year. Our fiscal 2009 revenue refleatgtious spending, primarily among our largest serpirovider customers, as they sought to
conserve capital, reduce debt or address unceemint changes in their own business models brouglly broader market challenges.
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The table below (in thousands, except pergentiata) sets forth the changes in our operatiggnert revenue for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Yeal
Increase
2008 %* 2009 %* (decrease %**

Revenue

Packet Optical Transpc $447,54. 49.€ $299,08t¢ 45.¢ $(148,45/) (33.2)

Packet Optical Switchin 270,45¢ 30.C 165,70! 25.4 (104,75)) (38.7)

Carrier Ethernet Service Delive 60,49¢ 6.7 75,12¢ 11t 14,62¢ 24.2

Software and Service 123,94¢ 13.7 112,71: 17.2 (11,239 (9.2
Consolidated revent $902,44t 100.( $652,62¢ 100.( $(249,819) (27.7)

* Denotes % of total revent
**  Denotes % change from fiscal 2008 to fiscal 2

. Packer-Optical Transport revenue decreased primarily due to decreases of $108.iomith Corestream and $40.9 million in lege
transport and data networking systems. These @esclirere primarily due to unfavorable market condgias described above. In spite
of these market conditions, revenue from our Agien$4200 was unchanged during fiscal 2(

. Packet-Optical Switching revenuedecreased reflecting a decline in CoreDirector meee We believe the decline in CoreDirector
revenue was due to unfavorable market conditiodscanstrained spending. Revenue for this segmesitigect to significant
fluctuations due to its highly concentrated custobase

. Carrier Ethernet Service Delivery revenueincreased due to a $33.8 million increase in safl@air ActivEdge 3900 service-delivery
switches and ActivEdge 5100 service aggregatiotckes in support of wireless backhaul deployméFtiss increase was partially
offset by a $19.2 million decrease in C-5 sales

. Software and Services revenudecreased primarily due to a $10.9 million decréaskeployment services due to lower sales volume
and installation activity

Revenue from sales to customers outside ofittied States is reflected as International ingbegraphic distribution of revenue below.
table below (in thousands, except percentage data)forth the changes in geographic distributioreeenue for the periods indicated:

Fiscal Yeal
Increase
2008 %* 2009 %* (decrease %**
United State! $590,86¢ 65.5 $419,40! 64.3 $(171,46)) (29.0
International 311,58( 34.5 233,22 35.7 (78,356 (25.))
Total $902,44¢ 100.( $652,62¢ 100.C $(249,819) (27.7)

* Denotes % of total reveni
**  Denotes % change from 2008 to 2(

. United States revenuedecreased primarily due to a $90.0 million decréasales of Packedptical Transport products, principally
a result of lower Corestream sales, an $87.0 milliecrease in sales of Packet-Optical Switchindyxets and a $4.7 million decrease
in sales of software and services. These decreasespartially offset by a $10.2 million increasesales of Carrier Ethernet Service
Delivery products

. International revenue decreased primarily due to a $58.5 million decréasales of Pack-Optical Transport products,
$17.8 million decrease in sales of Packet-Optigéatching products and a $6.5 million decrease Iesaf software and services.
These decreases were partially offset by a $4 Homihcrease in sales of Carrier Ethernet Serieévery products
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Certain customers each accounted for at 2%t of our revenue for the periods indicated (muands, except percentage data) as follows:

Fiscal Yeal
2008 %* 2009 %*
AT&T $227,73' 25.2 $128,23: 19.€
BT 113,98: 12.¢ n/e —
Total $341,71¢ 37.¢ $128,23! 19.€

n/a Denotes revenue representing less than 10% ofretahue for the peric
* Denotes % of total revent
Gross Profit and Cost of Good Sold

The tables below (in thousands, except peagentiata) set forth the changes in revenue, cagiaifs sold and gross profit for the periods
indicated:

Fiscal Yeal
Increase
2008 %* 2009 %* (decrease %o**
Total revenu $902,44¢ 100.( $652,62¢ 100.( $(249,819) (27.7)
Total cost of goods so 451,52: 50.C 367,79¢ 56.4 $ (83,72)) (18.5)
Gross profil $450,92° 50.C $284,83( 43.€ $(166,09) (36.§)
* Denotes % of total revent
**  Denotes % change from 2008 to 2(
Fiscal Yeal
Increase
2008 %* 2009 %* (decrease Yo**
Product revenu $791,41! 100.( $547,52: 100.( $(243,89) (30.9)
Product cost of goods sc 371,23t 46.€ 296,17( 54.1 (75,06¢) (20.2)
Product gross prof $420,17° 53.1 $251,35: 45.¢ $(168,82Y) (40.2)
* Denotes % of product reven
**  Denotes % change from 2008 to 2(
Fiscal Yeal
Increase
2008 %* 2009 %* (decrease %**
Service revenu $111,03: 100.( $105,10° 100.( $ (5,92¢) (5.3
Service cost of goods sc 80,28: 72.5 71,62¢ 68.1 (8,659 (20.8)
Service gross prof $ 30,75( 27.1 $ 33,47¢ 31.¢ $ 2,72¢ 8.9

* Denotes % of service reven
**  Denotes % change from 2008 to 2(

. Gross profit as a percentage of revenudecreased due to lower product gross margins teesthielow, partially offset by improved
service gross margil

. Gross profit on products as a percentage of produagevenuedecreased due to less favorable product and geagragix, including
fewer sales of Packet-Optical Switching producta asrcentage of total revenue, increased chaejgged to losses on committed
customer sales contracts and higher charges mglatiwarranty. Gross profit as a percentage ofrregdor fiscal 2008 reflects a
$5.3 million increase in product cost of goods seldted to the revaluation of the acquired invenfoom our acquisition of World
Wide Packets. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Flak&tatements in Item 8 of Part Il of this repi

. Gross profit on services as a percentage of serviceevenueincreased due to higher sales of maintenance atat®a a percentage
services revenue. Services gross margin remainglyréapendent upon the mix of services in a giperiod and may fluctuate from
quarter to quarte
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Operating expense
The table below (in thousands, except pergentiata) sets forth the changes in operating exgenshe periods indicated:

Fiscal Yeal
Increase
2008 %* 2009 %* (decrease Yor*
Research and developm $175,02: 19.4 $190,31¢ 29.2 $ 15,29¢ 8.7
Selling and marketin 152,01¢ 16.¢ 134,52° 20.€ (17,49) (11.5)
General and administrati\ 68,63¢ 7.6 47,50¢ 7.3 (21,130 (30.§)
Amortization of intangible asse 32,26¢ 3.6 24,82¢ 3.8 (7,43¢) (23.7)
Restructuring cosl 1,11( 0.1 11,20 1.7 10,097 909.¢
Goodwill Impairmen — — 455,67 69.¢ 455,67: 100.(
Total operating expens $429,05¢ 47.F $864,06: 132.¢ $435,00° 101.¢

* Denotes % of total revent
**  Denotes % change from 2008 to 2(

. Research and development expenbenefited by $5.3 million in favorable foreign ercige rates primarily due to the compara
strength of the U.S. dollar in relation to the poess year. The resulting $15.3 million net increpsacipally reflects an increase in
prototype expense of $15.4 million. Other increasekide $5.4 million in facilities and informatia@ystems expense, $2.8 million in
depreciation expense, and higher employee compensatst of $0.6 million, including a $2.6 milliancrease in share-based
compensation expense. These increases were paofitsiet by decreases of $4.8 million in consultiggvices expense, $2.7 million
technology related expenses and $0.8 million ineraxpense

. Selling and marketing expensibenefited by $2.8 million in favorable foreign eaclge rates primarily due to the comparative stte
of the U.S. dollar in relation to the previous yeEte resulting $17.5 million net change refleasréases of $7.8 million in employee
compensation cost, $3.0 million in travel-relatedts, $2.9 million in marketing program costs a@di$nillion in consulting services
expense. These decreases were partially offsetfy2amillion increase in facilities and informatisystems expens

. General and administrative expensdenefited by $0.5 million in favorable foreign erclye rates primarily due to the comparative
strength of the U.S. dollar in relation to the poexs year. The resulting $21.1 million net changféects decreases of $6.1 million in
employee compensation cost, $4.1 million in comsglservices expense, $1.7 million in facilitieslanformation systems expense,
and $0.7 million in technology-related expense.dnge for fiscal 2008 included $7.7 million assamatith the settlement of patent
litigation.

. Amortization of intangible assetsdecreased due to certain intangible assets reattengnd of their useful life and becoming ft
amortized during fiscal 200!

. Restructuring costsduring fiscal 2009 were primarily related to a headht reduction of approximately 200 employeesctbsure of
our Acton, Massachusetts research and developrmaeitityf and revisions of estimates related to ppesly restructured facilities.
Restructuring costs for fiscal 2008 principallyleets costs associated with a workforce reductfds6oemployees during the fourth
quarter.

. Goodwill impairment reflects an impairment charge of $455.7 milliorihe second quarter of fiscal 2009. Based on a aaatibn of
factors, including the macroeconomic conditionscdesd above and a sustained decline in our conmstumk price and market
capitalization below our net book value, we conddan interim impairment assessment of goodwilinduthe second quarter of fis
2009. The conclusion of this assessment was the-off of all goodwill remaining on our balance she
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Other items
The table below (in thousands, except pergentiata) sets forth the changes in other itemthéoperiods indicated:

Fiscal Yeal
Increase
2008 %* 2009 %* (decrease %**

Interest and other income, t $36,76: 4.1 $ 9,48 1.5 $(27,27Y (74.2)
Interest expens $12,927 14 $ 7,40¢ 1.1 $ (5,52)) (42.9)
Realized loss due to impairment

marketable debt investmer $ 5,101 0.€ $ — — $ (5,10 (100.0)
Loss on cost method investme $ — — $ 5,32¢ 0.8 $ 5,32¢ 100.(
Gain on extinguishment of de $ 932 0.1 $ — — $ (932 (100.0)
Provision (benefit) for income tax: $ 2,64¢ 0.2 $(1,329 (0.2 $ (3,969 (150.7)
* Denotes % of total reveni
**  Denotes % change from 2008 to 2(

. Interest and other income, neidecreased due to lower average cash and inveshakamces and lower interest rates. Lower cash

balances primarily relate to the repayment at nitgttof the $542.3 million principal outstanding onr 3.75% convertible notes duri
the first quarter of fiscal 2008 and our use of(kRImillion in cash consideration and related espsrassociated with our acquisition
of WWP in the second quarter of fiscal 20

. Interest expensedecreased primarily due to the repayment of 3.768vertible notes at maturity at the end of the finsarter of fisca
2008.

. Realized loss due to impairment of marketable delihvestmentsfor fiscal 2008 reflects a loss related to comnednpapel
investments in two structured investment vehick&¥§) that entered into receivership during therloguarter of fiscal 2007 and
failed to make payment at maturity. These SIVs deteg their restructuring activities during fis€8l08 and, as of the end of fiscal
2009, we no longer held these investme

. Loss on cost method investmentduring fiscal 2009 was due to the decline in vafieur investments in two privately held
technology companies that were determined to ber-thar-temporary.

. Gain on extinguishment of debireflects our repurchase of $2.0 million in prindipenount of our outstanding 0.25% converti
senior notes due May 1, 2013 in an open markesaetion. We used $1.0 million of our cash to eftaet repurchase, which resulted
in a gain of approximately $0.9 millio

. Provision (benefit) for income taxe:decreased primarily due to refundable federal terits made available by recent econo
stimulus tax law changes. Availability of refundalsredits expired on December 31, 2C
Operating Segment Profit (Loss)
Segment Profit (Loss)

Segment profit (loss) is determined basedherrévenue, cost of goods sold and research aredogenent costs for the relevant segment.
The table below (in thousands, except percentagg dats forth the changes in our segment prafisl for the respective periods:

Fiscal Yeal
Increase
2009 2010 (decrease %*
Segment profit (loss
Packe-Optical Transpor $21,53¢ $67,351 $ 45,82: 212.¢
Packe-Optical Switching 60,30: 15,17: (45,129 (74.¢)
Carrier Ethernet Service Delive (9,575 28,07 37,64¢ (393.2)
Software and Service 22,24¢ 53,43: 31,18 140.2

* Denotes % change from 2009 to 2(

. Packet-Optical Transport segment profit for fiscal 2010 reflects increased sales volumaltieg in additional product gross profit,
partially offset by increased research and devetgroosts due to the MEN Acquisitic

. Packer-Optical Switching segment profitdeclined due to decreased sales volume resultinegdinced product gross profit, a
increased research and development c

. Carrier Ethernet Service Delivery segment profitimproved significantly due to increased sales vauesulting in additional gross
profit, partially offset by increased research degielopment cost:

. Software and Services segment profimproved due to increased sales volume and imprgvess margin, both of which resulted



additional gross profit, partially offset by inceeal research and development cc

45




Table of Contents

The table below (in thousands, except pergentiata) sets forth the changes in our segment asfs), including the presentation of prior
periods to reflect the change in reportable segsént the respective periods:

Fiscal Yeal
Increase
2008 2009 (decrease %*
Segment profit (loss
Packe-Optical Transpor $110,90! $21,53¢ $(89,37() (80.€)
Packe-Optical Switching 151,08: 60,30: (90,782) (60.1)
Carrier Ethernet Service Delive (17,762 (9,575 8,18¢ 46.1
Software and Service 31,67¢ 22,24¢ (9,430 (29.9)

* Denotes % change from 2008 to 2(

. Packe-Optical Transport segment profit decreased primarily due to lower sales volume giased charges related to losses on
committed customer sales contracts and higher eBarjating to warranty resulting in lower grossfipr In addition, segment profit
was reduced by increased research and developosst

. Packet-Optical Switching segment profitdecreased primarily due to lower sales volume ltieguin reduced gross profit, partially
offset by decreased research and development

. Carrier Ethernet Service Delivery segment losimproved primarily due to increased sales volurasulting in higher gross prof
and decreased research and development

. Software and Services segment profdecreased due to lower sales volume, resultingvirett gross profit, and increased research anc
development cost:
Liquidity and Capital Resources

At October 31, 2010, our principal sourceigpfidity were cash and cash equivalents. The failhg table summarizes our cash and cash
equivalents and investments (in thousands):

October 31 Increase

2009 2010 (decrease

Cash and cash equivale $ 485,70! $688,68' $ 202,98:
Shor-term investments in marketable debt secur 563,18 — (563,18)
Long-term investments in marketable debt secur 8,031 — (8,037)
Total cash and cash equivalents and investmemtsrketable debt securiti $1,056,91! $688,68" $(368,23))

The decrease in total cash and cash equisadert investments during fiscal 2010 was primaslgted to the following:
. $693.2 million related to the purchase price for MiEN Acquisition;
. $76.1 million for the repurchase of a portion of OU25% convertible senior notes due May 1, 2(
. $51.2 million for equipment, furniture, fixtures amdellectual propert
. $24.5 million transferred to restricted cash relateds collateral for our standby letters of crealitd

. $229.0 million cash used from operations, comgjstf $112.2 million for changes in working cap#ad $116.8 million from net
losses (adjusted for non-cash charges). Cash tmmdoperations includes payments of $91.7 millielated to acquisition and
integration-related expense and restructuring co$tehich $18.2 million was reflected in changesiorking capital and
$109.9 million was reflected in net losses (adjd$te nor-cash charges

These payments were partially offset by ogeigt of $364.3 million in net proceeds from thévate placement of $375.0 million in
aggregate principal amount of 4.0% convertible@enotes due March 15, 2015 and $340.4 millionehproceeds from the private placement
of $350.0 million in aggregate principal amounBof5% convertible senior notes due October 15, 2828 Notes 2 and 15 to the Consolid
Financial Statements under Item 8 of Part Il of tieiport for more information regarding the MEN Aigition and our issuance of convertible
notes during fiscal 2010.
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Based on past performance and current exjpatsatve believe that our cash and cash equivaterdtsash generated from operations will
satisfy our working capital needs, capital expaméi, and other liquidity requirements associatitd @ur existing operations through at least
the next 12 months. As expected, the investmewbirking capital for fiscal 2010 reflects the incsed scale of business as the result of the
MEN Acquisition and the lower net working capitedrisferred to Ciena at closing, which resulted fruechase price adjustment following the
closing. We regularly evaluate our liquidity pasitiand the anticipated cash needs of the busindaad our operating plans as well as any
capital raising opportunities that may be availdbles.

The following sections set forth the composesftour $229.0 million of cash used by operatiotvéies for fiscal 2010:
Net losses (adjusted for non-cash charges)

The following table sets forth (in thousanda) net losses (adjusted for non-cash chargedisfmal 2010:

Year endec
October 31
2010

Net loss $(333,519)
Adjustments for no-cash charge:
Gain on extinguishment of de (4,94
Amortization of premium on marketable debt seces 574
Change in fair value of embedded redemption fee (2,510
Change in fair value of contingent considera (13,807
Depreciation of equipment, furniture and fixturasgd amortization of leasehold improveme 42,78¢
Shar-based compensation co 35,56(
Amortization of intangible asse 127,01¢
Deferred tax provisio 70C
Provision for inventory excess and obsolesce 13,69¢
Provision for warrant 15,35
Other 2,29¢
Net losses (adjusted for r-cash charges $(116,79))

Working Capital
Accounts Receivable, Net

Excluding the addition of $7.1 million of utibd receivables recorded upon completion of theNviequisition, cash used by accounts
receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accoustsivable, was $218.2 million from the end of &is2009 through the end of fiscal 2010 due
to higher sales volume. Our days sales outstar(@&g@s) increased from 65 days for fiscal 2009 t@ dys for fiscal 2010. The significantly
increased DSOs for fiscal 2010 reflect the timifighe MEN Acquisition and the effect on this calibn of having only a partial year of
revenue from the MEN Business. Utilizing annualifedrth quarter revenue for purposes of this caliboh would have resulted in DSOs of
74 days.

The following table sets forth (in thousandisginges to our accounts receivable, net of alloezdmcdoubtful accounts receivable, from the
end of fiscal 2009 through the end of fiscal 2010:

October 31 Increase
2009 2010 (decrease
Accounts receivable, n $118,25:! $343,58: $225,33:

Inventory

Excluding the addition of $146.3 million ofvientory recorded upon completion of the MEN Acdiosi, cash consumed by inventory for
fiscal 2010 was $41.0 million due to increased imtwey levels to support a higher sales volume. i@uentory turns decreased from 3.4 for
fiscal 2009 to 2.3 for fiscal 2010 primarily duegffect of the mid-year MEN Acquisition. The sigodntly decreased inventory turns for fiscal
2010 reflect the timing of the MEN Acquisition atigk effect on this calculation of having only atfryear of cost of goods sold from the
MEN Business. Utilizing annualized fourth quarteogiuct cost of good sold, inventory turns would éaeen 3.1 days.
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During fiscal 2010, changes in inventory refla $13.7 million reduction related to a non-cpsvision for excess and obsolescence.

The following table sets forth (in thousandisnges to the components of our inventory fronetiek of fiscal 2009 through the end of fis
2010:

October 31 Increase

2009 2010 (decrease
Raw material $ 19,69 $ 30,56¢ $ 10,87¢
Work-in-process 1,48( 6,99: 5,518
Finished good: 61,02¢ 177,99 116,96¢
Deferred cost of goods sc 29,88¢ 76,83( 46,94
Gross inventon 112,08¢ 292,38t 180,29¢
Provision for inventory excess and obsolesce (24,009 (30,767 (6,76%)
Inventory $ 88,08¢ $261,61¢ $173,53!

Prepaid expense and other

Excluding the addition of $54.4 million of jpeEd expense and other from the MEN Acquisitiorshcased in operations related to prepaid
expense and other during fiscal 2010 was $34.9amillThis usage was primarily related an increasealue added tax receivable.

Accounts payable, accruals and other obligations

Excluding the addition of $36.5 million of aoals and other obligations upon completion ofNMtEN Acquisition, cash generated in
operations related to accounts payable, accrudl®dner obligations during fiscal 2010 was $180iion. Between fiscal 2009 and 2010, the
change in unpaid equipment purchases was $3.®millhanges in accrued liabilities in the tablebeleflect non-cash provisions of
$15.4 million related to warranties.

The following table sets forth (in thousandisginges in our accounts payable, accruals and oltigations from the end of fiscal 2009
through the end of fiscal 2010:

October 31 Increase

2009 2010 (decrease

Accounts payabl $ 53,10¢ $200,61° $147,51:
Accrued liabilities 105,16( 193,99 88,83
Other lon¢-term obligations 16,34¢ 16,43t 87
Accounts payable, accruals and other obligat $174,61: $411,04¢ $236,43¢

Interest Paid on Convertible Notes

Interest on our outstanding 0.25% convertigerior notes, due May 1, 2013, is payable on MagdiNovember 1 of each year. We paid
$0.4 million in interest on our 0.25% convertibletes during fiscal 2010.

Interest on our outstanding 4.0% convertileleiar notes, due March 15, 2015, is payable on MaEcand September 15 of each year. We
paid $7.5 million in interest on our 4.0% convegibotes during fiscal 2010.

Interest on our outstanding 0.875% convertigigior notes, due June 15, 2017, is payable o& Ioiand December 15 of each year. We
paid $4.3 million in interest on our 0.875% conildet notes during fiscal 2010.

Interest on our outstanding 3.75% convertiiadpior notes, due October 15, 2018, is payablepil 25 and October 15 of each year. Our
initial interest payment on these notes will be doeApril 15, 2011.

For additional information about our convegibotes, see Note 15 to our Consolidated Finaftatkements included in Item 8 of Part Il of
this report.
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Deferred revenue

Excluding the addition of $28.1 million of @efed revenue recorded upon completion of the MENusition, deferred revenue increased
by $1.0 million during fiscal 2010. Product defermevenue represents payments received in advdrsteponent and payments received in
advance of our ability to recognize revenue. Sexvideferred revenue is related to payment for aedntracts that will be recognized over
contract term. The following table reflects (in tisands) the balance of deferred revenue and thgeha this balance from the end of fiscal
2009 through the end of fiscal 2010:

October 31 Increase

2009 2010 (decrease

Products $11,99¢ $ 31,187 $19,18¢
Services 63,93¢ 73,86 9,927
Total deferred revent $75,93¢ $105,04¢ $29,11¢

Contractual Obligations

Significant changes to contractual obligatidosing fiscal 2010 relate to purchase obligatiand operating leases, principally for additional
facilities, associated with the MEN Acquisition. &tfges to interest and principal due on convertibtes relate to our private placement of
convertible notes during fiscal 2010. For additidnéormation about our convertible notes, see Nidido our Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8 of Part Il of thipad. The following is a summary of our future nmmim payments under contractual
obligations as of October 31, 2010 (in thousands):

Less than or One to thre Three to fivt

Total year years years Thereatftel
Interest due on convertible nof $ 204,74 $ 33,04: $ 66,08 $ 57,50( $ 48,12¢
Principal due at maturity on convertible no 1,441,211 — 216,21( 375,00( 850,00(
Operating leases (: 140,34( 28,11¢ 42,891 31,43 37,89¢
Purchase obligations (. 283,68t 283,68t — — —
Transition service obligations ( 22,63: 22,63 — — —
Total (4) $2,092,61! $ 367,48: $325,18: $ 463,93: $936,02:

(1) Excludes the effect of the exercise of atyaarmination feature by the landlord for our Qagllease. See Item 2 of Part | of this report
and Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statesnantem 8 of Part Il of this report. The amouat bperating leases above does not
include insurance, taxes, maintenance and othés oeguired by the applicable operating lease. &lests are variable and are not
expected to have a material impe

(2) Purchase obligations relate to purchase order ctments to our contract manufacturers and compaogtliers for inventory. In certa
instances, we are permitted to cancel, reschedwddjost these orders. Consequently, only a podfdhe amount reported above relates
to firm, nor-cancelable and unconditional obligatio

(3) Transition service obligations represent the-cancelable portion of fees under the transitioniseragreement. S¢‘Overview—
Integration Activities and Cos”

(4) As of October 31, 2010, we also had approximat&l@ $nillion of other lon-term obligations in our condensed consolidatedriza
sheet for unrecognized tax positions that arematided in this table because the timing or amotiany cash settlement with the
respective tax authority cannot be reasonably estid

Some of our commercial commitments, includoge of the future minimum payments set forth abawe secured by standby letters of
credit. The following is a summary of our commekc@ammitments secured by standby letters of ctegitommitment expiration date as of
October 31, 2010 (in thousands):

Less than or One to Three to
Total year three year five years
Standby letters of crec $47,94: $ 12,04¢ $ 35,30¢ $ 587

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not engage in any off-balance sheehiimg arrangements. In particular, we do not haweeguity interests in so-called limited
purpose entities, which include special purposéiestSPEs) and structured finance entities.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated finanstatements requires that we make estimates andhgnlg that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenue and expense, ancecktiisclosure of contingent assets and liabiliBastheir nature, these estimates and judgments
are subject to an inherent degree of uncertaintya®ongoing basis, we reevaluate our estimatelsidimg those related to bad debts,
inventories, investments, intangible assets, golhdntome taxes, warranty obligations, restrugtgriderivatives and hedging, and
contingencies and litigation. We base our estimatekistorical experience and on various otherragsions that we believe to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Among other things, teemates form the basis for judgments about thyiog values of assets and liabiliti
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that are not readily apparent from other sourcesu® results may differ from these estimates uwifézrent assumptions or conditions. To the
extent that there are material differences betveegrestimates and actual results, our consolidatadcial statements will be affected.

We believe that the following critical accomngt policies reflect those areas where signifigadgments and estimates are used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statement

Revenue Recognitio

We recognize revenue when it is realized alizable and earned. We consider revenue to bzeeadr realizable and earned when all o
following criteria are met: persuasive evidencamfarrangement exists; delivery has occurred oicgs have been rendered; the price to the
buyer is fixed or determinable; and collectibilisyreasonably assured. Customer purchase agreearmehtsistomer purchase orders are
generally used to determine the existence of angement. Shipping documents and customer acceptahen applicable, are used to verify
delivery. We assess whether the price is fixedetemninable based on the payment terms associdtiedhe transaction and whether the sales
price is subject to refund or adjustment. We asselsctibility based primarily on the creditwonti@ss of the customer as determined by credit
checks and analysis, as well as the customer’s gatyhistory. Revenue for maintenance servicesngigdly deferred and recognized ratably
over the period during which the services are tpdréormed.

We apply the percentage of completion metloddrig term arrangements where we are requireddentiake significant production
customizations or modification engineering, andsoe@ble and reliable estimates of revenue andatestvailable. Utilizing the percentage of
completion method, we recognize revenue basederatio of actual costs incurred to date to togéingated costs expected to be incurred. In
instances that do not meet the percentage of ceimplmethod criteria, and recognition of revenudégerred until there are no uncertainties
regarding customer acceptance. If circumstances #rat change the original estimates of reveragscor extent of progress toward
completion, revisions to the estimates are mades&hevisions may result in increases or decréagstimated revenue or costs, and such
revisions are reflected in income in the periotvhich the circumstances that gave rise to the i@visecome known by management.

Some of our communications networking equiphieimtegrated with software that is essentiahi functionality of the equipment.
Software revenue is recognized when persuasiverg@of an arrangement exists, delivery has oadutine fee is fixed or determinable, and
collectibility is probable. In instances where fiaaceptance of the product is specified by thearusr, revenue is deferred until there are no
uncertainties regarding customer acceptance.

Arrangements with customers may include midtgeliverables, including any combination of equ@nt, services and software. If multiple
element arrangements include software or softwalegad elements that are essential to the equipwertllocate the arrangement fee to those
separate units of accounting. Multiple elementrageanents that include software are separated inte than one unit of accounting if the
functionality of the delivered element(s) is nopdedent on the undelivered element(s), there idarespecific objective evidence of the fair
value of the undelivered element(s), and genevamae recognition criteria related to the delivesment(s) have been met. The amount of
product and services revenue recognized is affdntexlir judgments as to whether an arrangemenidesl multiple elements and, if so,
whether vendor-specific objective evidence of f@lue exists. Changes to the elements in an amaggeand our ability to establish vendor-
specific objective evidence for those elementsaaffiect the timing of revenue recognition. Foralier deliverables, we separate the elerr
into more than one unit of accounting if the delagelement(s) have value to the customer on a-<stkome basis, objective and reliable
evidence of fair value exists for the undelivertsireent(s), and delivery of the undelivered elem®nf probable and substantially within our
control. Revenue is allocated to each unit of anting based on the relative fair value of each antiag unit or using the residual method if
objective evidence of fair value does not existtfar delivered element(s). The revenue recogndideria described above are applied to each
separate unit of accounting. If these criteriararemet, revenue is deferred until the criteriaraeg or the last element has been delivered.

Our total deferred revenue for products wea @Gillion and $31.2 million as of October 31, 20thd October 31, 2010, respectively. Our
services revenue is deferred and recognized rataaliythe period during which the services areg@éformed. Our total deferred revenue for
services was $63.9 million and $73.9 million a®atober 31, 2009 and October 31, 2010, respectively

Business Combination

We record acquisitions using the purchase atetti accounting. All of the assets acquired, liibs assumed, contractual contingencies
contingent consideration are recognized at th@invgue as of the acquisition date. The excesh®purchase price over the estimated fair
values of the net tangible and net intangible assequired is recorded as goodwill. The applicatibtihe purchase method of accounting
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for business combinations requires management ke significant estimates and assumptions in therdghation of the fair value of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in order to priyp@iocate purchase price consideration betwesataghat are depreciated and amortized
from goodwill. These assumptions and estimatesideh market participant’s use of the asset andppeopriate discount rates for a market
participant. Our estimates are based on histoexpérience, information obtained from the managermgthe acquired companies and, when
appropriate, includes assistance from independiéatparty appraisal firms. Our significant assuiops and estimates can include, but are not
limited to, the cash flows that an asset is exgetiggenerate in the future, the appropriate weidtatzerage cost of capital, and the cost sav
expected to be derived from acquiring an assets@legtimates are inherently uncertain and unpedaectin addition, unanticipated events and
circumstances may occur which may affect the aoguoa validity of such estimates. During fiscal PQWe completed the MEN Acquisition

for a purchase price of $676.8 million. As a restithe purchase price allocation to the assetsiegjand liabilities assumed, as well as
contingent consideration, there was no value asdigm goodwill. See Note 2 to the Consolidated irifna Statements included in Item 8 of
Part 11 of this report.

Share-Based Compensation

We measure and recognize compensation expensiearebased awards based on estimated fair values afatbeof grant. We estimate f
fair value of each option-based award on the diaggamt using the Black-Scholes option-pricing modéis option pricing model requires that
we make several estimates, including the optiorfgeeted life and the price volatility of the ungémlg stock. The expected life of employee
stock options represents the weightagrage period the stock options are expectedniaireoutstanding. We calculate the expected teiing!
detailed historical information about specific eoiee behavior of our grantees. We considered tipdiech volatility and historical volatility of
our stock price in determining our expected vdlgtibnd, finding both to be equally reliable, detened that a combination of both measures
would result in the best estimate of expected ilitjatWe recognize the estimated fair value ofioptbased awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, as share-based compensation expenaewaight-line basis over the requisite servieequl.

We estimate the fair value of our restrictextk unit awards based on the fair value of ourmam stock on the date of grant. Our
outstanding restricted stock unit awards are stibjeservice-based vesting conditions and/or peréorce-based vesting conditions. We
recognize the estimated fair value of service-baseards, net of estimated forfeitures, as stased expense ratably over the vesting peric
a straight-line basis. Awards with performance-bagesting conditions require the achievement ofaderfinancial or other performance
criteria or targets as a condition to the vestarggacceleration of vesting. We recognize the egethéair value of performance-based awards,
net of estimated forfeitures, as shaesed expense over the performance period, usatpdvesting, which considers each performanced
or tranche separately, based upon our determinafiamether it is probable that the performancgets will be achieved. At each reporting
period, we reassess the probability of achievimgpbrformance targets and the performance pertpdresl to meet those targets. Determining
whether the performance targets will be achievedlires judgment, and the estimate of expense magused periodically based on changes
in the probability of achieving the performancegts. Revisions are reflected in the period in White estimate is changed. If any
performance goals are not met, no compensationia#timately recognized against that goal, andhe extent previously recognized,
compensation cost is reversed.

Because share-based compensation expensgeid twa awards that are ultimately expected to thestamount of expense takes into account
estimated forfeitures. We estimate forfeituresatttime of grant and revise, if necessary, in sgiset periods if actual forfeitures differ from
those estimates. Changes in these estimates anu@tazns can materially affect the measure of esttiah fair value of our share-based
compensation. See Note 19 to our Consolidated Eiab8tatements in Item 8 of Part Il of this repiortinformation regarding our assumptic
related to share-based compensation and the arabshare-based compensation expense we incurredeqreriods covered in this report. As
of October 31, 2010, total unrecognized compensaigpense was $60.9 million: (i) $5.4 million, whilates to unvested stock options ar
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagediof 0.9 year; and (i) $55.5 million, whicHaes to unvested restricted stock units and
is expected to be recognized over a weighted-aeguagod of 1.6 years.

We recognize windfall tax benefits associatétt the exercise of stock options or release sfrieted stock units directly to stockholders’
equity only when realized. A windfall tax benefitaurs when the actual tax benefit realized by usgn employee’s disposition of a share-
based award exceeds the deferred tax asset, ihasgciated with the award that we had recordedrvdssessing whether a tax benefit rel;
to share-based compensation has been realized|lwe the tax law “with-and-without” method. Undtre with-and-without method, the
windfall is considered realized and recognizedfiftaincial statement purposes only when an increatdrenefit is provided after considering
all other tax benefits including our net operatiogses. The with-and-without method results inwiredfall from share-based compensation
awards always being effectively the last tax berefbe considered. Consequently, the windfalitaiteble to share-based compensation will
not be considered realized in instances where euoperating loss carryover (that is unrelated itwi¥alls) is sufficient to offset the current
year's taxable income before considering the effectsusfent-year windfalls.
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Reserve for Inventory Obsolescen

We make estimates about future customer derfmaralir products when establishing the approprieserve for excess and obsolete
inventory. We write down inventory that has becarheolete or unmarketable by an amount equal tdiffexence between the cost of
inventory and the estimated market value basedssunaptions about future demand and market conditiorentory write downs are a
component of our product cost of goods sold. Ugmognition of the write down, a new lower cost bdsr that inventory is established, and
subsequent changes in facts and circumstancestdesuit in the restoration or increase in that lyezgtablished cost basis. We recorded
charges for excess and obsolete inventory of $hillion and $13.7 million in fiscal 2009 and 20Y¥8spectively. During fiscal 2009, these
charges were primarily related to excess invendmig to a change in forecasted product sales. §@alfR010, these charges were primarily
related to excess and obsolete inventory charda$ngto product rationalization decisions in cention with the MEN Acquisition. In an
effort to limit our exposure to delivery delays andsatisfy customer needs we purchase inventagdan forecasted sales across our product
lines. In addition, part of our research and dewelent strategy is to promote the convergence dfaifieatures and functionalities across our
product lines. Each of these practices exposes thetrisk that our customers will not order pragifor which we have forecasted sales, or
purchase less than we have forecasted. Historjeca#iyhave experienced write downs due to changsategic direction, discontinuance of a
product and declines in market conditions. If actoarket conditions worsen or differ from those ke assumed, if there is a sudden and
significant decrease in demand for our productd, thiere is a higher incidence of inventory obscknce due to a rapid change in technology,
we may be required to take additional inventorytevdowns, and our gross margin could be advergtdgtad. Our inventory net of allowance
for excess and obsolescence was $88.1 million 86d.$ million as of October 31, 2009 and October2BiIL0, respectively.

Restructuring

As part of our restructuring costs, we provigiethe estimated cost of the net lease expendaddities that are no longer being used. The
provision is equal to the fair value of the miniméuture lease payments under our contracted |dalggations, offset by the fair value of the
estimated sublease payments that we may receivef @stober 31, 2010, our accrued restructuriniilii related to net lease expense and
other related charges was $6.4 million. The totaimmum remaining lease payments for these restredttacilities are $9.0 million. These
lease payments will be made over the remaining lofeour leases, which range from five months gieyears. If actual market conditions are
different than those we have projected, we willdguired to recognize additional restructuring s@stbenefits associated with these facilities.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Receivab

Our allowance for doubtful accounts receivableased on management’s assessment, on a spaeifidication basis, of the collectibility
of customer accounts. We perform ongoing credituations of our customers and generally have rogptired collateral or other forms of
security from customers. In determining the appedprbalance for our allowance for doubtful acceurteivable, management considers each
individual customer account receivable in ordedetermine collectibility. In doing so, we consideeditworthiness, payment history, account
activity and communication with such customer. Hustomer’s financial condition changes, or if atefaults are higher than our historical
experience, we may be required to take a chargarfallowance for doubtful accounts receivable Witiculd have an adverse impact on our
results of operations. Our accounts receivablehaliowance for doubtful accounts was $118.3 wrilland $343.6 million as of October 31,
2009 and October 31, 2010, respectively. Our allmedor doubtful accounts as of October 31, 20@P@ctober 31, 2010 was $0.1 million.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase priger the fair values assigned to the net assetdracgin a business combination. Goodwill is
assigned to the reporting units that are expectégnefit from the synergies of the combination. & goodwill for impairment on an annual
basis, which we have determined to be the lashkasiday of fiscal September each year. We alsgdesiwill for impairment between annt
tests if an event occurs or circumstances charagembuld, more likely than not, reduce the fairueabf the reporting unit below its carrying
value. Prior to the reorganization of our operaidescribed in “Overview” above, we tested goodfeillimpairment as a single reporting unit.
See “Interim Impairment Assessment-Fiscal 2009bWwel

The first step in the process of assessinglgdoimpairment is to compare the fair value oétleporting unit with the unit’s carrying
amount, including goodwill. If this test indicatémt the fair value is less than the carrying vathen step two is required to compare the
implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwillith the carrying amount of the reporting unitsoglwill. A non-cash goodwill impairment
charge would have the effect of decreasing ouriegsror increasing our losses in such period. lfaneerequired to take a substantial
impairment charge, our operating results would la¢enially adversely affected in such period. Ashaf end of fiscal 2009 and 2010, our
goodwill balance was $0.
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Interim Impairment Assessment — Fiscal 2009

Based on a combination of factors, includimg then current macroeconomic conditions, a sustfaitecline in our common stock price and
market capitalization below our net book value,ocmaducted an interim impairment assessment of gitlodiwing the second quarter of fiscal
2009. We determined the fair value of our thenlsimgporting unit to be equal to our market cajzigdion plus a control premium. Market
capitalization was determined by multiplying theus#s outstanding on the assessment date by thaegeverarket price of our common stock
over a 10-day period before and a 10-day pericat afich assessment date. We used this 20-dayatutattonsider inherent market
fluctuations that may have affected any individtlaking price. We believed that our market capitalon alone did not fully capture the fair
value of our business as a whole, or the substastiae that an acquirer would obtain from its #ypito obtain control of our business. As su
in determining fair value, we added a control prami— which seeks to give effect to the increasetsicieration a potential acquirer would be
required to pay in order to gain sufficient ownépdio set policies, direct operations and makesiens related to our company — to our
market capitalization.

When we performed the step one fair value @spn during the second quarter of fiscal 2009,noarket capitalization was $721.8 milli
and our carrying value, including goodwill, was $3tmillion. We applied a 25% control premium torket capitalization to determine a fair
value of $902.2 million. Because step one indicéited the fair value was less than our carryingigalve performed the step two analysis.
Under the step two analysis, the implied fair vadfigoodwill requires valuation of a reporting Usiitangible and intangible assets and
liabilities in a manner similar to the allocatiohpurchase price in a business combination. Ifcidreying value of a reporting unit’'s goodwiill
exceeds its implied fair value, goodwill is deenregaired and is written down to the extent of tiféedence. The implied fair value of the
reporting unit's goodwill was determined to be &g, as a result, we recorded a goodwill impairnoé855.7 million in fiscal 2009,
representing the full carrying value of the goodwil

Long-lived Assets

Our long-lived assets include: equipment, fune and fixtures; finite-lived intangible assatgjefinite-lived intangible assets; and
maintenance spares. As of October 31, 2009 and @5 assets totaled $154.7 million and $600.4omjlnet, respectively. We test long-
lived assets for impairment whenever events or gésun circumstances indicate that the assetsyinogremount is not recoverable from its
undiscounted cash flows. Our long-lived assetsaas@gned to asset groups which represents the tidswes for which we identify cash flows.

Deferred Tax Valuation Allowanct

As of October 31, 2010, we have recorded aatain allowance offsetting essentially all our deterred tax assets of $1.4 billion. When
measuring the need for a valuation allowance, wesssboth positive and negative evidence regatlangealizability of these deferred tax
assets. We record a valuation allowance to reduceeferred tax assets to the amount that is nikeky Ithan not to be realized. In determin
net deferred tax assets and valuation allowancasagement is required to make judgments and estimealated to projections of profitability,
the timing and extent of the utilization of net cténg loss carryforwards, applicable tax rateamdsfer pricing methodologies and tax planning
strategies. The valuation allowance is reviewedteus and is maintained until sufficient positiggidence exists to support a reversal. Bec
evidence such as our operating results during et necent thregear period is afforded more weight than forecastsdlts for future period
our cumulative loss during this thrgear period represents sufficient negative evideagarding the need for nearly a full valuatiomathnce
We will release this valuation allowance when mamagnt determines that it is more likely than nat thur deferred tax assets will be reali:
Any future release of valuation allowance may lmrded as a tax benefit increasing net income anaadjustment to paiid-capital, based ¢
tax ordering requirements.

Uncertain Tax Positions

We account for uncertainty in income tax gosg using a two-step approach. The first step svaluate the tax position for recognition by
determining if the weight of available evidenceigades that it is more likely than not that theipos will be sustained on audit, including
resolution of related appeals or litigation proesssf any. The second step is to measure theeaflh as the largest amount that is more than
50% likely of being realized upon settlement. Sfigant judgment is required in evaluating our utaiertax positions and determining our
provision for income taxes. Although we believe mBerves are reasonable, no assurance can betlgatehe final tax outcome of these
matters will not be different from that which idleted in our historical income tax provisions autruals. We adjust these reserves in light of
changing facts and circumstances, such as thengla$ia tax audit or the refinement of an estimaitethe extent that the final tax outcome of
these matters is different than the amounts rechlech differences will affect the provision facome taxes in the period in which such
determination is made. As of October 31, 2010, ae $0.9 million and $7.9 million recorded as cutr@md long-term obligations,
respectively, related to uncertain tax positiorfse provision for income taxes includes the efféaeserve provisions and changes to reserves
that are considered appropriate, as well as tlatetinet interest.
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The total amount of unrecognized tax bendfitseased by $1.4 million during fiscal 2010 to&#hillion, which includes $1.4 million of
interest and some minor penalties. On March 190284 a result of the acquisition of the MEN Bus#)eCiena recorded a liability and an
indemnification asset of $2.6 million related te tmncertain income tax positions of the MEN Bussn&uring the second quarter of fiscal
2010, subsequent to the acquisition, this acquiaddity and associated indemnification asset weduced by $2.0 million due to a lapse in
applicable statute of limitations.

Warranty

Our liability for product warranties, includ@dother accrued liabilities, was $40.2 milliondg54.4 million as of October 31, 2009 and
2010, respectively. Our products are generally cevdy a hardware warranty for periods ranging foora to five years and a software
warranty of 90 days or one year, depending upomptbduct. We accrue for warranty costs as paruofcost of goods sold based on associated
material costs, technical support labor costs,amsthciated overhead. Material cost is estimateeldyasmarily upon historical trends in the
volume of product returns within the warranty pdrand the cost to repair or replace the equipmiedhnical support labor cost is estimated
based primarily upon historical trends and the tmsupport the customer cases within the warrpatiod. The provision for product
warranties was $19.3 million and $15.4 million fiscal 2009 and 2010, respectively. The provisimnvwarranty claims may fluctuate on a
guarterly basis depending upon the mix of prodants customers in that period. If actual produdtffairates, material replacement costs,
service or labor costs differ from our estimatesjsions to the estimated warranty provision wdwédequired. An increase in warranty claims
or the related costs associated with satisfyingdtvearranty obligations could increase our cosatds and negatively affect our gross margin.

Loss Contingencie

We are subject to the possibility of varioasdes arising in the ordinary course of businelses& may relate to disputes, litigation and other
legal actions. We consider the likelihood of lossh® incurrence of a liability, as well as ourlépito reasonably estimate the amount of loss,
in determining loss contingencies. A loss is acdnwben it is probable that a liability has beeruimed and the amount of loss can be
reasonably estimated. We regularly evaluate cuinémtmation available to us to determine wheth®yr accruals should be adjusted and
whether new accruals are required.

Effects of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial &tates in Item 8 of Part Il of this report for infieation relating to our discussion of the effects
of recent accounting pronouncements.

Unaudited Quarterly Results of Operations

The tables below (in thousands, except paresthata) set forth the operating results in ousotidated statements of operations for each of
the eight quarters in the period ended OctobeP310 and reflect the impact of our March 19, 20d€uisition of the MEN Business. This
information is unaudited, but in our opinion refkeall adjustments (consisting only of normal reitig adjustments) that we consider neces
for a fair statement of such information in accortkawith generally accepted accounting principlégere were no material, retroactive
measurement period adjustments related to the MEdQUAition. The results for any quarter are notessarily indicative of results for any
future period.
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Revenue
Products
Services
Total Revenut
Cost of goods solc
Products
Services
Total costs of goods so
Gross profil
Operating expense
Research an
developmen
Selling and marketin
General ant
administrative
Acquisition and
integration cost
Amortization of
intangible asset
Restructuring cost
Goodwill impairment
Change in fair value ¢
contingent
consideratior
Total operating expens:
Loss from operation
Interest and other incon
(loss), ne

Gain on extinguishment of

debt

Interest expens

Loss on cost method
investment:

Loss before income tax

Provision (benefit) for
income tax

Net loss

Basic net loss per common

share

Diluted net loss per
potential common shal

Weighted average bas
common shares
outstanding

Weighted average dilutiv

potential common share

outstanding

Jan. 31 Apr. 30, Jul. 31, Oct. 31, Jan. 31 Apr. 30, Jul. 31, Oct. 31,
2009 2009 2009 2009 2010 2010 2010 2010
$139,71 $ 118,84¢ $139,90: $149,05: $149,05: $206,42( $ 312,37¢ $341,38°

27,68 25,35: 24,85¢ 27,21 26,82: 47,05 77,29 76,22
167,40( 144,20: 164,75¢ 176,27( 175,87¢ 253,47 389,67¢ 417,61
76,367 65,41¢ 72,84 81,54 76,66¢ 118,22: 201,55¢ 200,25!
19,19( 18,06: 17,25 17,12¢ 19,047 30,30¢ 44,10 48,96¢
95,557 83,48 90,09: 98,66¢ 95,71¢ 148,52¢ 245,66¢ 249,22:
71,84 60,72( 74,66 77,602 80,16( 104,94 144,00¢ 168,39(
46,70( 49,48: 44,44; 49,69: 50,03 71,14 100,86¢ 105,58:
33,81¢ 33,29t 31,46¢ 35,94t 34,23] 45,32¢ 52,125 61,82
11,58¢ 12,61°¢ 11,52¢ 11,78¢ 12,76 21,50:¢ 32,64¢ 35,77
— — — — 27,03 39,221 17,03 18,09«

6,404 6,22¢ 6,22¢ 5,97¢ 5,981 17,121 38,72, 37,57

76 6,39¢ 3,941 791 (22) 1,84¢ 2,157 4,52¢

— 455,67 — — — — — —

— — — — — — — (13,807
98,58 563,68 97,59¢ 104,19( 130,02- 196,16 243,56 249,57(
(26,747) (502,96¢) (22,93)) (26,58¢) (49,864 (91,227 (99,559 (81,18()
4,66( 3,50¢ 99¢ 32C (779) 3,74¢ (2,66¢) 3,61(

— — — — — — — 4,94¢
(1,849 (1,852 (1,856 (1,859 (1,829 (4,119 (5,990 (6,68¢)
(56E) (2,570 (2,199 — — — — —
(24,490  (503,88) (25,984 (28,127 (52,465 (91,587  (108,21) (79,310
341 (672) 47C (1,467) 86¢ (1,579 1,644 1,007
$(24,83) $(503,21() $(26,45) $(26,659) $(53,33)  $(90,009  $(109,85)  $(80,31)
$ (029 $ (559 $ (029 $ (029 $ (059 $ (099 $ (1.1 $ (0.86
$ (02) $ (559 $ (029 $ (029 $ (059 $ (09) $ (1.1 $ (0.86
90,62( 90,93: 91,36¢ 91,75¢ 92,32 92,614 92,90¢ 93,19
90,62( 90,93: 91,36¢ 91,75¢ 92,32: 92,61 92,90¢ 93,19;

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosureddut Market Risk

The following discussion about our market rikclosures involves forward-looking statementstual results could differ materially from
those projected in the forward-looking statemewits.are exposed to market risk related to changederest rates and foreign currency

exchange rates.

Interest Rate SensitivityAs of October 31, 2010 we no longer hold any maatidet debt securities. Accordingly, if market instreates
were to increase immediately and uniformly by 1@cpatage points from current levels, the fair valfithe portfolio would not be affected.
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Foreign Currency Exchange Risks a global concern, our business and results efatipns are exposed to adverse movements in foreig
currency exchange rates. Historically, our saleglpaimarily been denominated in U.S. dollars drimpact of foreign currency fluctuations
on revenue has not been material. As a result oinoueased global presence, in large part reguftiomm the MEN Acquisition, a larger
percentage of our revenue is non-U.S. dollar denated, in particular, with sales denominated indciemn Dollars and Euros. As a result, if
the U.S. dollar strengthens against these currenoie revenues could be adversely affected. Fotds. dollar denominated sales, an increase
in the value of the U.S. dollar would increasertad cost to our customers of our products in marketside the United States.

With regard to operating expense, our prinegosure to foreign currency exchange risk rel@teperating expense incurred in Canadian
Dollars, British Pounds, Euros and Indian Rupeesirg fiscal 2010, approximately 32% of our opargtexpense was non-U.S. dollar
denominated. If these currencies strengthen, ceptgted in U.S. dollars will increase, which woaldversely affect our operating expense.

To reduce variability in non-U.S. dollar derioated operating expense, we have previously eshiate foreign currency forward contracts
and may do so in the future. In the past, theswatéres have been designated as cash flow hedgeslo not enter into foreign exchange
forward or option contracts for trading purposes.ch October 31, 2010, we did not have any foreigmency forward contracts outstanding.

For fiscal 2010, research and developmentres@®as negatively affected by approximately $13lBon due to unfavorable foreign
exchange rates related to the weakening of theddlr in relation to the Canadian Dollar, paftiaiffset by the favorable impact of a stror
U.S. dollar in relation to the Euro. Sales and ratirly expense benefited by $1.6 million due tostnengthening of the U.S. dollar in relation
to the Euro.

As of October 31, 2010, the assets and ligsliof our entities that are denominated in cugienother than the entity’s functional currency
were primarily related to intercompany payables mudivables. We may experience gains or losses tine revaluation of these foreign
currency denominated assets and liabilities. Theyaim (loss) on foreign currency revaluation dgriiscal 2010 was immaterial.

Convertible Debt Outstandin@he fair market value of each of our outstandisyés of convertible notes is subject to interdastaad
market price risk due to the convertible featur¢hefnotes and other factors. Generally the faiketavalue of fixed interest rate debt will
increase as interest rates fall and decreaseassbtates rise. The fair market value of thesotay also increase as the market price of our
stock rises and decrease as the market price stdlk falls. Interest rate and market value chargtect the fair market value of the notes,
may affect the prices at which we would be ablairefpase such notes were we to do so. These chdoges impact our financial position,
cash flows or results of operations. During fis2@10, we repurchased $81.8 million in aggregatecgyal amount of our outstanding 0.25%
convertible senior notes due 2013 in privately nieged transactions for cash payments of $76.lianillDuring fiscal 2009, we repurchased
$2.0 million in aggregate principal amount of outsianding 0.25% convertible senior notes due Ma&013 in open market transactions for
$1.0 million. For additional information on the faialue of our outstanding notes, see Note 15 tdCmmsolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 of Part Il of this report.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Di

The following is an index to the consolidated fingh statements:

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEimm
Consolidated Balance She:

Consolidated Statements of Operati

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockh¢ Equity
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Cieagoration

In our opinion, the consolidated financiakstaents listed in the accompanying index presery fan all material respects, the financial
position of Ciena Corporation and its subsidiafte “Company”) at October 31, 2010 and 2009, &edrésults of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the pegimded October 31, 2010 in conformity with accognprinciples generally accepted in the
United States of America. Also in our opinion, thempany maintained, in all material respects, @éffednternal control over financial
reporting as of October 31, 2010, based on critestablished itnternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis@DSO). The Company’s management is responsibliaése financial statements, for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting and for its assessment of the effeatdss of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the Report of Managementraarnal Control Over Financial Reporting undemit@A. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements and on tragany’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our integrated audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with the stalsdafrthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Ba@fdited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits toiobtasonable assurance about whether the finastei@@ments are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal coravelr financial reporting was maintained in all evél respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basideage supporting the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, and evaluating the ovemaltdial statement presentation. Our a
of internal control over financial reporting inclked obtaining an understanding of internal contx@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk
a material weakness exists, and testing and evadutite design and operating effectiveness of iratlecontrol based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other proceslais we considered necessary in the circumstaieebelieve that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidatedrfaial statements, the Company changed the mammdrich it accounts for business
combinations in fiscal 2010.

A company’s internal control over financiapogting is a process designed to provide reasoregserance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclsddose policies and procedures that (i) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readdeassurance regarding prevention or timely detecf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lrareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agjext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

As described in the Report of Management ¢erival Control Over Financial Reporting under It8A management has excluded the MEN
Business from its assessment of internal contrel éimancial reporting as of October 31, 2010 bseadtiwas acquired by the Company in a
purchase business combination during fiscal 2018 hake also excluded the MEN Business from ourtaditernal control over financial
reporting. The MEN Business is included in the ahidsted results on which we are reporting andoital assets and total revenues represent
20% and 43%, respectively, of the related constdaifinancial statement amounts as of and for e gnded October 31, 2010.

/s! PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Baltimore, Maryland
December 22, 2010
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CIENA CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

October 31
2009 2010
ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivale $ 485,70 $ 688,68
Shor-term investment 563,18 —
Accounts receivable, n 118,25: 343,58
Inventories 88,08¢ 261,61¢
Prepaid expenses and ot 50,53 147,68(
Total current asse 1,305,76: 1,441,56i
Long-term investment 8,031 —
Equipment, furniture and fixtures, r 61,86¢ 120,29:
Other intangible assets, r 60,82( 426,41
Other lon¢-term asset 67,90: 129,81¢
Total asset $ 1,504,38. $ 2,118,009
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 53,10¢ $ 200,61
Accrued liabilities 105,16( 193,99
Deferred revenu 40,56¢ 75,33¢
Total current liabilities 198,82¢ 469,94!
Long-term deferred revent 35,36¢ 29,71¢
Other lon¢-term obligations 16,34¢ 16,43t
Convertible notes payab 798,00( 1,442,70!
Total liabilities 1,048,54! 1,958,80!
Commitments and contingenci
Stockholder’ equity:
Preferred stoc— par value $0.01; 20,000,000 shares authorized;steares issued and outstand — —
Common stock — par value $0.01; 290,000,000 sheautworized; 92,038,360 and 94,060,300 share
issued and outstandit 92C 941
Additional paic-in capital 5,665,02! 5,702,13
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 1,22: 1,06z
Accumulated defici (5,211,33) (5,544,84)
Total stockholder equity 455,83t 159,29:
Total liabilities and stockholde' equity $ 1,504,38. $ 2,118,009,

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CIENA CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share data)

Revenue

Products

Services
Total revenu
Cost of goods solc

Products

Services
Total cost of goods so

Gross profi

Operating expense

Research and developme

Selling and marketin

General and administratiy

Acquisition and integration cos

Amortization of intangible asse

Restructuring cost

Goodwill impairment

Change in fair value of contingent considera

Total operating expens

Income (loss) from operatiol
Interest and other income, r
Interest expens
Realized loss due to impairment of marketable delgstment:
Loss on cost method investme
Gain on extinguishment of de
Income (loss) before income tax
Provision (benefit) for income tax:
Net income (loss

Basic net income (loss) per common sk

Diluted net income (loss) per potential common sl
Weighted average basic common shares outstai

Weighted average dilutive potential common shatgstanding

Year Ended October 3

2008 2009 2010
$791,41! $ 547,52 $1,009,23
111,03 105,10’ 227,39
902,44¢ 652,62 1,236,63
371,23t 296,17 596,70
80,28: 71,62 142,43
451,52: 367,79 739,13
450,92’ 284,83 497,50
175,02 190,31 327,62
152,01¢ 134,52° 193,51
68,63 47,50¢ 102,69:
— — 101,37¢
32,26¢ 24,82t 99,401
1,11( 11,207 8,51¢
— 455,67 —
— — (13,80
429,05 864,06 819,32(
21,87: (579,23) (321,819
36,76 9,487 3,917
(12,927 (7,406) (18,619
(5,107) — —
— (5,329) —
932 — 4,94¢
41,53¢ (582,47 (331,57
2,64¢ (1,32¢) 1,941
$ 38,89 $(581,159) $ (333,519
$ 044 $  (6.37) $ (359
$  04c $  (6.37) $ (359
89,14t 91,16 93,10:
110,60 91,16 93,10:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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CIENA CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated Othe Total
Common Stocl Additional Comprehensivi Accumulatec Stockholder
Shares Par Valu Paic-in-Capita Income Deficit Equity

Balance at October 31, 20 86,752,06 $ 86 $5519,74 $ (1,24%) $(4,669,21) $ 850,15¢
Cummulative effect of adopting Fl

48 — — — — 13¢ 13¢
Net income — — — — 38,89« 38,89«
Changes in unrealized gains

investments, ne — — — (2,479 — (1,479
Translation adjustmel — — — 1,447 — 1,44
Comprehensive incorr — — — — — 38,86:
Exercise of stock options, n 1,253,35I 12 5,764 — — 5,77¢
Tax benefit from employee stock

option plans — — 31¢ 31¢
Shar-based compensation expel — — 31,42¢ — — 31,42¢
Issuance of common stock for

acquisitions, net of issuance ca 2,465,38 25 72,24, — — 72,27
Balance at October 31, 20 90,470,80 90t 5,629,49 (1,275 (4,630,179 998,94¢
Net loss — — — — (581,159 (581,159
Changes in unrealized gains

investments, ne — — — 1,404 — 1,404
Translation adjustmel — — — 1,09¢ — 1,094
Comprehensive los — — — — — (578,65¢)
Exercise of stock options, n 1,567,55 15 1,092 — — 1,107
Shar-based compensation expel — — 34,43¢ — — 34,43¢
Balance at October 31, 20 92,038,36 92C 5,665,02 1,22¢ (5,211,33) 455,83t
Net loss — — — — (333,519 (333,519
Changes in unrealized loss

investments, ne — — — (45¢) — (45¢)
Translation adjustmel — — — 297 — 297
Comprehensive los — — — — — (333,679
Exercise of stock options, n 2,021,941 21 1,54¢ — — 1,57C
Sharw-based compensation expel — — 35,56( — — 35,56(
Balance at October 31, 20 94,060,30 $ 941 $5,702,13 $ 1,062 $(5,544,84) $ 159,29:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements

61




Table of Contents

CIENA CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rehcprovided by (used in) operati
activities:
Gain on extinguishment of de
Amortization of premium (discount) on marketablétsecurities
Realized loss due to impairment of marketable delgstment:
Loss on cost method investme
Change in fair value of embedded redemption fee
Change in fair value of contingent considera
Depreciation of equipment, furniture and fixturasgd amortization of leasehc
improvementt
Impairment of goodwil
Shar-based compensation co
Amortization of intangible asse
Deferred tax provisio
Provision for inventory excess and obsolesce
Provision for warrant
Other
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effectanfuisition:
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and otl
Accounts payable, accruals and other obligat
Deferred revenu
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

Cash flows from investing activitie
Payments for equipment, furniture, fixtures anéliettual propert
Restricted cas
Purchase of available for sale securi
Proceeds from maturities of available for sale gtes
Proceeds from sales of available for sale secs
Acquisition of business, net of cash acqui
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from issuance of senior convertible rudgable
Repayment of senior convertible notes pay:
Debt issuance cos
Repayment of indebtedness of acquired busi
Excess tax benefit from employee stock option p
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and war
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casyaénts
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informatior
Cash paid during the period for inter
Cash paid during the period for income taxes
Non-cash investing and financing activities
Purchase of equipment in accounts pay.
Value of common stock issued in acquisit
Fair value of vested options assumed in acquis
Debt issuance costs in accrued liabilit

Year Ended October 31,

2008 2009 2010
$ 38,89 $ (581,15)  $(333,519
(932) — (4,949)
(2,87%) (907) 574
5,101 — —
— 5,32¢ —
— — (2,510
— — (13,807
18,59¢ 21,93 42,78¢
— 455,67 —
31,42¢ 34,43¢ 35,56(
37,95¢ 31,42¢ 127,01
1,64( (882) 70C
18,32¢ 15,71¢ 13,69¢
15,33¢ 19,28¢ 15,35:
5,247 2,041 2,29¢
(32,47)) 20,09’ (218,190
3,71% (10,352 (40,957
1,64¢ (9,67¢) (34,909)
(31,600) 2,94: 180,81«
7,61¢ 1,50¢ 1,03(
117,61¢ 7,421 (229,01()
(29,999 (24,119 (51,207
1,34( (4,116) (24,52)
(571,51) (1,214,21) (63,59’
901,43 645,11¢ 454,14
— 523,13 179,53
(210,01) — (693,24)
91,24¢ (74,19:) (198,89
— — 725,00
(543,29) — (76,06%)
— — (20,307)
(12,362) — —
31¢ — —
5,77¢ 1,107 1,57¢
(549,56!) 1,107 630,20
(694) 70C 682
(341,39;) (64,96:) 202,98:
892,06: 550,66 485,70
$ 550,66 $ 485,70 $ 688,68
$ 15,33¢ $ 4,74 $ 12,24
$ 3,12 $ 584 $ 1,70¢
$ 2,31¢ $ 1,48 $ 5,25¢
$ 62,36( $ — $ —
$ 9,91- $ — $ —
$ — $ — $  20€

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CIENA CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) CIENA CORPORATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PO LICIES AND ESTIMATES
Description of Busines

Ciena Corporation (“Ciena” or the “Companyg8)a provider of communications networking equipmsaoftware and services that support
the transport, switching, aggregation and managéenferice, video and data traffic. Ciena’s Packeitical Transport, Packet-Optical
Switching and Carrier Ethernet Service Deliveryduats are used, individually or as part of an iraégd solution, in networks operated by
communications service providers, cable operagmgernments and enterprises around the globe. @emaetwork specialist targeting the
transition of disparate, legacy communications ekw to converged, next-generation architectureiebable to handle increased traffic and
deliver more efficiently a broader mix of high-bavidth communications services. Ciesgroducts, along with its embedded, network eléi
software and unified service and transport managégmeeable service providers to efficiently andteféectively deliver critical enterprise and
consumer-oriented communication services. Ciend'eipal executive offices are located at 1201Wisw@ Road, Linthicum, Maryland
21090.

Principles of Consolidatiol

The accompanying consolidated financial stat@siinclude the accounts of Ciena and its wholmed subsidiaries. All material inter-
company accounts and transactions have been etediinaconsolidation.

Acquisition of MEN Busines'MEN Acquisition”)

On March 19, 2010, Ciena completed its actioisif substantially all of the optical and carrighernet assets of Nortel's Metro Ethernet
Networks Business (tH*MEN Business”). Additional details regarding thiansaction are set forth in Note 2 below.

Business Combinatior

During fiscal 2010, Ciena adopted the new FAfSRlance on business combinations which requivesdtal purchase price to be allocated
to the assets acquired and liabilities assumeddbas¢heir estimated fair values. The fair valugsigned to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are based on valuations using managerbest’sstimates and assumptions. The allocatidmegbtrchase price as reflected in the
consolidated financial statements is based onglseibformation available to management at the timeconsolidated financial statements are
issued. During the measurement period, not to ekoae year, Ciena is required to retrospectiveJysidhe initial measurement allocation if
new information is obtained about facts and cirdamses that existed as of the acquisition date ifhatown, would have resulted in the
recognition of those assets or liabilities as ef thate. Ciena’s measurement period ended Octdh@&030 as related to the MEN Acquisition.

Fiscal Year

Ciena has a 52 or 53 week fiscal year, whigfseon the Saturday nearest to the last day of@ctio each year (November 1, 2008,
October 31, 2009 and October 30, 2010 for the denieported). For purposes of financial statemesggntation, each fiscal year is described
as having ended on October 31.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statement$ ratated disclosures in conformity with accountminciples generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates @gohunts that affect the amounts reported in theaatated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Estimates are used for puraeseinting, bad debts, valuation of inventoried iamestments, recoverability of
intangible assets, other long-lived assets andgilpthcome taxes, warranty obligations, restrugtg liabilities, derivatives, contingencies
and litigation. Ciena bases its estimates on hgbexperience and assumptions that it believeseasonable. Actual results may differ
materially from management’s estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Ciena considers all highly liquid investmeptschased with original maturities of three mordh¢ess to be cash equivalents. Restricted
cash collateralizing letters of credit are includedther current assets and other long-term asisgtsnding upon the duration of the restriction.

63




Table of Contents

Investment:

Ciena’s investments are classified as availédnl-sale and are reported at fair value, witheatized gains and losses recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive income. Ciena néneglosses when it determines that declinesarfain value of its investments, below
their cost basis, are other-than-temporary. Inrdgténg whether a decline in fair value is otheasthemporary, Ciena considers various fac
including market price (when available), investmeatings, the financial condition and near-termspexts of the investee, the length of time
and the extent to which the fair value has beentlesn Ciena cost basis, and its intent and ability to hole itivestment until maturity or for
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticiea recovery in market value. Ciena considers allketable debt securities that it expects to
convert to cash within one year or less to be steorh investments. All others are considered largatinvestments.

Ciena has certain minority equity investmentgrivately held technology companies that arsgifeed as other assets. These investments
are carried at cost because Ciena owns less tlRaroRthe voting equity and does not have the ahititexercise significant influence over
these companies. These investments involve a l@ghed of risk as the markets for the technologigg@ducts manufactured by these
companies are usually early stage at the time @h&$ investment and such markets may never bdisagrt. Ciena could lose its entire
investment in some or all of these companies. Cieoaitors these investments for impairment and malgpropriate reductions in carrying
values when necessary.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cogharket, with cost computed using standard cosiclwépproximates actual cost, on a first-in,
first-out basis. Ciena records a provision for escand obsolete inventory when an impairment hes lukentified.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase priger the fair values assigned to the net assetdracqgn a business combination. Goodwill is
assigned to the reporting units that are expeatdenefit from the synergies of the combinatiorer@i has determined that its operating
segments and reporting units for goodwill assignnaea the same. This determination is based ofatliehat components below Ciena'’s
operating segment level, such as individual produskervice offerings, do not constitute a repgrtimit because they do not constitute a
business for which discrete financial informatisraivailable.

Ciena tests each reporting unit’s goodwillifapairment on an annual basis, which Ciena haaraénied to be the last business day of its
fiscal September each year. Testing is requireddsst annual tests if events occur or circumstaalcasge that would, more likely than not,
reduce the fair value of the reporting unit belésvdarrying value. Prior to the reorganization @r@’'s operations described above, Ciena
tested its goodwill for impairment as a single méjng unit.

Longlived Assets

Ciena’s long-lived assets include: equipmamtiture and fixtures; intangible assets; and neiance spares. Ciena tests long-lived assets
for impairment whenever triggering events or changecircumstances indicate that the assets’ gagrgimount is not recoverable from its
undiscounted cash flows. An impairment loss is mesabas the amount by which the carrying amoutii@fisset or asset group exceeds it
value. Ciena’s long-lived assets are assignedget ggoups which represent the lowest level forciziash flows can be identified.

Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures

Equipment, furniture and fixtures are recordedost. Depreciation and amortization are congpuging the straight-line method over useful
lives of two years to five years for equipmentniture and fixtures and the shorter of useful tifdease term for leasehold improvements.

Qualifying internal use software and webs#gelopment costs incurred during the applicatioretigoment stage that consist primarily of
outside services and purchased software licends,@e capitalized and amortized straight-liner dkre estimated useful lives of two years to
five years.

Intangible Assets

Ciena has recorded finite-lived intangibleeas®s a result of several acquisitions. Finitediintangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization. Amortization is compuisihg the straight-line method over the expectethemic lives of the respective assets,
from nine months to seven years, which approximgtesise of intangible assets.
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Maintenance Spares

Maintenance spares are recorded at cost. Spaage cost is expensed ratably over four years.

Concentrations

Substantially all of Ciena’s cash and cashwedents and short-term and long-term investmantaarketable debt securities are maintained
at two major U.S. financial institutions. The méipof Ciena’s cash equivalents consist of moneyk®afunds. Deposits held with banks may
exceed the amount of insurance provided on sucbsitspGenerally, these deposits may be redeemad dgmand and, therefore,
management believes that they bear minimal risk.

Historically, a large percentage of Cienal\sarue has been the result of sales to a small nuofiltemmunications service providers.
Consolidation among Ciena'’s customers has incretiégedoncentration. Consequently, Ciena’s accorgusivable are concentrated among
these customers. See Notes 8 and 20 below.

Additionally, Ciena’s access to certain matsror components is dependent upon sole or linsitedce suppliers. The inability of any
supplier to fulfill Ciena’s supply requirements tdaffect future results. Ciena relies on a smathber of contract manufacturers to perform
the majority of the manufacturing for its produdf<Ciena cannot effectively manage these manufacsuand forecast future demand, or if they
fail to deliver products or components on time,r@'s business and results of operations may suffer.

Revenue Recognitic

Ciena recognizes revenue when all of the Wallg criteria are met: persuasive evidence of aargement exists; delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered; the price to the isijiged or determinable; and collectibility isasonably assured. Customer purchase
agreements and customer purchase orders are densed to determine the existence of an arrangerSéipping documents and evidence of
customer acceptance, when applicable, are usegtify delivery. Ciena assesses whether the prifigésd or determinable based on the
payment terms associated with the transaction drether the sales price is subject to refund orsdfjent. Ciena assesses collectibility based
primarily on the creditworthiness of the custom&idatermined by credit checks and analysis, asagdlhe customer’s payment history.
Revenue for maintenance services is generally safemd recognized ratably over the period durihgclvthe services are to be performed.

Ciena applies the percentage of completiorhatkto long-term arrangements where it is requiceghdertake significant production,
customizations or modification engineering, andoe@ble and reliable estimates of revenue andatestvailable. Utilizing the percentage of
completion method, Ciena recognizes revenue basélkeoratio of actual costs incurred to date taltestimated costs expected to be incurred.
In instances that do not meet the percentage oplation method criteria, recognition of revenuééferred until there are no uncertainties
regarding customer acceptance.

Some of Ciena’s communications networking pougnt is integrated with software that is essettighe functionality of the equipment.
Software revenue is recognized when persuasiveeegaof an arrangement exists, delivery has oatuitte fee is fixed or determinable, and
collectibility is probable. In instances where fiaaceptance of the product is specified by théacuer, revenue is deferred until there are no
uncertainties regarding customer acceptance.

Arrangements with customers may include midtgeliverables, including any combination of equént, services and software. If multiple
element arrangements include software or softwaletad elements that are essential to the equipr@é&ma allocates the arrangement fee to
be allocated to those separate units of accountindfiple element arrangements that include sofease separated into more than one unit of
accounting if the functionality of the delivere@elent(s) is not dependent on the undelivered elds)ethere is vendor-specific objective
evidence of the fair value of the undelivered elet{s, and general revenue recognition criteriateel to the delivered element(s) have been
met. The amount of product and services revenuwmgrezed is affected by Ciena’s judgments as to kdredn arrangement includes multiple
elements and, if so, whether vendor-specific objeavidence of fair value exists. Changes to theents in an arrangement and Ciena’s
ability to establish vendor-specific objective exide for those elements could affect the timingegénue recognition. For all other
deliverables, Ciena separates the elements inte than one unit of accounting if the delivered edat(s) have value to the customer on a
standalone basis, objective and reliable evidence ofvaliue exists for the undelivered element(s), @elivery of the undelivered element(s
probable and substantially in Ciena’s control. Reaeis allocated to each unit of accounting basethe relative fair value of each accounting
unit or using the residual method if objective @ride of fair value does not exist for the delivesbment(s). The revenue recognition criteria
described above are applied to each separatefiadtounting. If these criteria are not met, rexeisudeferred until the criteria are met or the
last element has been delivered.
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Warranty Accruals

Ciena provides for the estimated costs talffglfistomer warranty obligations upon the recognitof the related revenue. Estimated
warranty costs include estimates for material ¢asthnical support labor costs and associatecheeel The warranty liability is included in
cost of goods sold and determined based upon agargdnty cost experience, estimates of comporaloiré rates and management’s industry
experience. Ciena’s sales contracts do not pehaitight of return of product by the customer after product has been accepted.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2010, Cienegorded an adjustment to reduce its warrantylitialand cost of goods sold by $3.3 million, to
correct an overstatement of warranty expensesrktatprior periods. The adjustment related toraor én the methodology of computing the
annual failure rate used to calculate the warrantrual. There was no tax impact as a result sfatljustment. Ciena believes this adjustment
is not material to its financial statements foopannual or interim periods, or the annual redultsiscal 2010.

Accounts Receivable, N

Ciena’s allowance for doubtful accounts isdabsn its assessment, on a specific identificdtasis, of the collectibility of customer
accounts. Ciena performs ongoing credit evaluatifrits customers and generally has not requirdldteoal or other forms of security from its
customers. In determining the appropriate balanc€fena’s allowance for doubtful accounts, manag@monsiders each individual customer
account receivable in order to determine collelitybiln doing so, management considers creditwogbs, payment history, account activity
and communication with such customer. If a custdsrferancial condition changes, Ciena may be regguito record an allowance for doubtful
accounts, which would negatively affect its resaofteperations.

Research and Developme

Ciena charges all research and developmetd twexpense as incurred. Types of expense irtcurnesearch and development include
employee compensation, prototype, consulting, degtien, facility costs and information technologiie

Advertising Cost

Ciena expenses all advertising costs as iadurr

Legal Costs
Ciena expenses legal costs associated wghtliin defense as incurred.

Share-Based Compensation Expense

Ciena measures and recognizes compensatiemgxfor share-based awards based on estimate@lizis on the date of grant. Ciena
estimates the fair value of each option-based awarthe date of grant using the Black-Scholes appidcing model. This model is affected by
Ciena’s stock price as well as estimates regaraingmber of variables including expected stockepviglatility over the expected term of the
award and projected employee stock option exelmbaviors. Ciena estimates the fair value of ehehesbased award based on the fair value
of the underlying common stock on the date of grimeach case, Ciena only recognizes expenss toiitsolidated statement of operations for
those options or shares that are expected ultignadelest. Ciena uses two attribution methods tomt expense, the straight-line method for
grants with service-based vesting and the gradstingemethod, which considers each performancegen tranche separately, for all other
awards. See Note 19 below.

Income Taxe

Ciena accounts for income taxes using an asgkliability approach that recognizes deferredassets and liabilities for the expected future
tax consequences attributable to differences betweecarrying amounts of assets and liabilitiedif@ancial reporting purposes and their
respective tax bases, and for operating loss ancréalit carryforwards. In estimating future taxnsequences, Ciena considers all expected
future events other than the enactment of chamgisilaws or rates. Valuation allowances are predj if, based upon the weight of the
available evidence, it is more likely than not teane or all of the deferred tax assets will notdzdized.

Ciena adopted the accounting guidance on taingr related to income tax positions at the beigig of fiscal 2008. Ciena classifies interest
and penalties related to uncertain tax positiors @mponent of income tax expense. All of the tiagetax positions, if recognized, would
decrease the effective income tax rate.
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In the ordinary course of business, transastimccur for which the ultimate outcome may be wad® In addition, tax authorities
periodically audit Ciena’s income tax returns. Thasdits examine significant tax filing positioirg;luding the timing and amounts of
deductions and the allocation of income tax expgaseong tax jurisdictions. Ciena is currently uraledit in India for 2007. Management d
not expect the outcome of this audit to have a ristadverse effect on the Company’s consolidaiegicial position, result of operations or
cash flows. Ciena’s major tax jurisdictions and ¢lagliest open tax years are as follows: UnitedeSté2007), United Kingdom (2004), Canada
(2005) and India (2007). However, limited adjusttsezan be made to Federal tax returns in earligrsyi@ order to reduce net operating loss
carryforwards.

Ciena has not provided U.S. deferred incomed®n the cumulative unremitted earnings of its-bdS. affiliates as it plans to permanently
reinvest cumulative unremitted foreign earningsinlét the U.S. and it is not practicable to deteentire unrecognized deferred income taxes.
These cumulative unremitted foreign earnings rdtatengoing operations in foreign jurisdictions ard required to fund foreign operations,
capital expenditures, and any expansion requiresnent

Ciena recognizes windfall tax benefits asdediavith the exercise of stock options or reledsestricted stock units directly to
stockholders’ equity only when realized. A windfik benefit occurs when the actual tax benefiized by Ciena upon an employee’s
disposition of a share-based award exceeds therdéfx asset, if any, associated with the awsatl €iena had recorded. When assessing
whether a tax benefit relating to share-based cosgi®n has been realized, Ciena follows the tax‘With-and-without” method. Under the
with-and-without method, the windfall is consideredlized and recognized for financial statememppses only when an incremental benefit
is provided after considering all other tax berseificluding Ciena’s net operating losses. The w&itd-without method results in the windfall
from share-based compensation awards always b#exieely the last tax benefit to be consideredn§equently, the windfall attributable to
share-based compensation will not be considerdizedan instances where Ciena'’s net operating ¢ass/over (that is unrelated to windfalls)
is sufficient to offset the current year’s taxalnleome before considering the effects of currergryeindfalls.

Loss Contingencie

Ciena is subject to the possibility of varidosses arising in the ordinary course of businEsese may relate to disputes, litigation and ¢
legal actions. Ciena considers the likelihood sElor the incurrence of a liability, as well asr@is ability to reasonably estimate the amount
of loss, in determining loss contingencies. Anreated loss contingency is accrued when it is prigbidiat a liability has been incurred and the
amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Cemadarly evaluates current information availablé to determine whether any accruals
should be adjusted and whether new accruals auéreelq

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen

The carrying value of Ciena’s cash and casfivatpnts, accounts receivable, accounts payabteaacrued liabilities, approximates fair
market value due to the relatively short periodiof to maturity. The fair value of investmentsmarketable debt securities is determined
using quoted market prices for those securitiesimilar financial instruments. For information rigld to the fair value of Ciena’s convertible
notes, see Note 7 below.

Fair value for the measurement of financiakts and liabilities is defined as the price thatld be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betm market participants at the measurement datsués fair value is a market-based
measurement that should be determined based ompssns that market participants would use in pgcan asset or liability. Ciena utilizes a
valuation hierarchy for disclosure of the inputsfr value measurement. This hierarchy priorgittee inputs into three broad levels as
follows:

. Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices irvactiarkets for identical assets or liabiliti

. Level 2 inputs are quoted prices for identicasionilar assets or liabilities in less active maskar model-derived valuations in which
significant inputs are observable for the asséibility, either directly or indirectly through miget corroboration, for substantially the
full term of the financial instrumen

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs based one’s assumptions used to measure assets and liabdftfair value

By distinguishing between inputs that are obagle in the marketplace, and therefore more dibgcand those that are unobservable and
therefore more subjective, the hierarchy is degslgnendicate the relative reliability of the faialue measurements. A financial asset or
liability’s classification within the hierarchy tetermined based on the lowest level input thsigsificant to the fair value measurement.
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Restructuring

From time to time, Ciena takes actions toraitg workforce, facilities and operating costshwiterceived market opportunities and business
conditions. Ciena implements these restructurimggbnd incurs the associated liability concurye@enerally accepted accounting principles
require that a liability for the cost associatedhvan exit or disposal activity be recognized ie greriod in which the liability is incurred, except
for one-time employee termination benefits related service period of more than 60 days, whichaameued over the service period. See Note
3 below.

Foreign Currency

Some of Ciena'’s foreign branch offices ands@ibries use the U.S. dollar as their functionatency, because Ciena, as the U.S. parent
entity, exclusively funds the operations of thesmnbh offices and subsidiaries. For those subsgdiarsing the local currency as their
functional currency, assets and liabilities aregfated at exchange rates in effect at the balsineet date, and the statement of operations is
translated at a monthly average rate. Resultinstation adjustments are recorded directly to as#p component of stockholders’ equity.
Where the monetary assets and liabilities are &icpd in a currency other than the entity’s furrdiccurrency, reaneasurement adjustments
recorded in other income. The net gain (loss) oeifm currency re-measurement and exchange ratgyebas immaterial for separate financial
statement presentation.

Derivatives

Ciena’s 4.0% convertible senior notes incladedemption feature that is accounted for as aragpembedded derivative. The embedded
redemption feature is recorded at fair value oecaiming basis and these changes are includederest and other income, net on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Occasionally, Ciena uses foreign currency &dicontracts to hedge certain forecasted foraigrency transactions relating to operating
expenses. Historically these derivatives, desighasecash flow hedges, had maturities of lessdhanyear and permitted net settlement.

At the inception of the cash flow hedge andanrongoing basis, Ciena assesses the hedgingmslap to determine its effectiveness in
offsetting changes in cash flows attributable ®hledged risk during the hedge period. The effeqimtion of the hedging instrument’s net
gain or loss is initially reported as a compondraazumulated other comprehensive income (loss) umon occurrence of the forecasted
transaction, is subsequently reclassified intoojperating expense line item to which the hedgeatstetion relates. Any net gain or loss
associated with the ineffectiveness of the hedgistfument is reported in interest and other income¢. See Note 14 below.

Computation of Basic Net Income (Loss) per ComniameSand Diluted Net Income (Loss) per Dilutive dtaial Common Share

Ciena calculates basic earnings per share)(EpP8ividing earnings attributable to common stbgkthe weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding for the period. Dilute& Ecludes other potential dilutive common stdakt tvould occur if securities or other
contracts to issue common stock were exercisedmrested into common stock. Ciena uses a dual pratsen of basic and diluted EPS on the
face of its income statement. A reconciliationhe humerator and denominator used for the basicldumed EPS computations is set forth in
Note 16.

Software Development Costs

Ciena develops software for sale to its cust@mGenerally accepted accounting principles reghe capitalization of certain software
development costs that are incurred subsequehetdate technological feasibility is established prior to the date the product is generally
available for sale. The capitalized cost is thewmized straight-line over the estimated life of fhroduct. Ciena defines technological
feasibility as being attained at the time a workingdel is completed. To date, the period betweem&achieving technological feasibility and
the general availability of such software has b&wart, and software development costs qualifyingépitalization have been insignificant.
Accordingly, Ciena has not capitalized any softwdegelopment costs.

Segment Reporting

Effective upon the March 19, 2010 completiémhe acquisition of the MEN Business, Ciena reaiged its internal organizational struct
and the management of its business. Ciena’s cpifating decision maker, its chief executive offi@valuates performance and allocates
resources based on multiple factors, including ssgmrofit (loss) information for the following pitact categories: (i) Packet-Optical
Transport; (ii) Packet-Optical Switching; (iii) Gaar Ethernet Service Delivery; and (iv) SoftwareléServices. Operating segments are definec
as components of an enterprise: that engage imdéasactivities which may earn revenue and incpeese; for which discrete financial
information is available; and for which such infaton is evaluated regularly by the chief operatiegision maker for purposes of allocating
resources and assessing performance. Ciena cantlideiour product categories above to be its dipgraegments for reporting purposes. See
Note 20.
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Newly Issued Accounting Standa

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting 8tnds Board, (FASB) amended the accounting stasdardevenue recognition with
multiple deliverables. The amended guidance allth@use of management’s best estimate of selliing for individual elements of an
arrangement when vendor-specific objective evidemagird-party evidence is unavailable. Additidgait eliminates the residual method of
revenue recognition in accounting for multiple defiable arrangements. The guidance is effectivéidoal years beginning on or after June
2010 and early adoption is permitted. Ciena with@dhis standard prospectively during its firsager of fiscal 2011. As a result, Ciena will
disclose comparative revenue, for fiscal 2010f addption had occurred on the first day of fis2@10. Ciena is currently evaluating the img
this new guidance could have on its financial ctiadj results of operations and cash flows.

In October 2009, the FASB amended the accogrstiandards for revenue arrangements with softelaraents. The amended guidance
modifies the scope of the software revenue recmgnguidance to exclude tangible products thataiontoth software and non-software
components that function together to deliver tredpct’'s essential functionality. The pronouncemigrffective for fiscal years beginning on
or after June 15, 2010 and early adoption is péerhifThis guidance must be adopted in the samedpari entity adopts the amended revenue
arrangements with multiple deliverables guidancgdbed above. Ciena will adopt this standard pro8pely during its first quarter of fiscal
2011. As a result, Ciena will disclose comparatexenue, for fiscal 2010, as if adoption had ocadion the first day of fiscal 2010. Ciena is
currently evaluating the impact this new guidangeld have on its financial condition, results oeogtions and cash flows.

(2) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Acquisition of MEN Busine:

On March 19, 2010, Ciena completed its actioisof the MEN Business. On March 19, 2010, Cieampleted its acquisition of the MEN
Business. Ciena acquired the MEN Business in antdff strengthen its position as a technologydeaud next-generation, converged optical
Ethernet networking, accelerate the executionsofarporate and research and development stratagiesnable Ciena to better compete with
larger equipment vendors. The acquisition exparided’s geographic reach, customer relationships pantfolio of network solutions.

In accordance with the agreements for the iaitgpun, the $773.8 million aggregate purchaseevi@s subsequently adjusted downward by
$80.6 million based upon the amount of net worlaagital transferred to Ciena at closing. See N&tbelow for information related to Ciersa’
election to pay the entire aggregate purchase pricash. As a result, Ciena paid $693.2 milliocash for the purchase of the MEN Business.

In connection with the acquisition, Ciena eatkinto an agreement with Nortel to lease the “Labbuilding on Nortels Carling Campus i
Ottawa, Canada (the “Carling leas&) a term of ten years. The lease agreement cada provision that allowed Nortel to reduce grentof
the lease, and in exchange, Ciena could receiay@ment of up to $33.5 million. This amount was pthinto escrow by Nortel in accordance
with the acquisition agreements. The fair valuéhef contingent refund right of $16.4 million wacorded as a reduction to the consideration
paid, resulting in a purchase price of $676.8 onilli

On October 19, 2010, Nortel issued a publivoaimcement that it had entered into a sale agreteofi@s Carling campus with Publics Wo
and Government Services Canada (PWGSC). Accorditigetannouncement, the sale, targeted to cldbe &nd of the calendar year 2010, is
subject to customary closing conditions as weklyggroval of certain governmental authorities anthefOntario Superior Court of Justice.
With respect to the Carling lease, Nortel has lmtted by PWGSC to exercise, on closing, itsye@rmination rights under the Carling
lease, shortening the lease term from ten yedigdqgears. Pursuant to the lease, this will resuthe refund to Ciena of $33.5 million from !
escrowed cash consideration paid. As a resultisfctange in circumstances and expected outcontpitiy, during the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2010 Ciena recorded an unrealized gain 8t&nillion resulting in a fair value of $30.2 nidlh for the contingent consideration right.
See Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statesriaritem 8 of Part Il of this annual report.

Given the structure of the transaction assmetacarve-out from Nortel, this transaction haslted in a costly and complex integration. As
of October 31, 2010, Ciena has incurred $101.4aonilih transaction, consulting and third party seevees, $8.5 million in severance expense,
and an additional $12.4 million, primarily relatedpurchases of capitalized information technoleguipment. In addition to the estimated
costs above, Ciena has also incurred significamisttion services expense as it relies upon alieédfiof Nortel to perform certain critical
operational and business support functions dunmipirim integration period. Ciena can utilizetaér of these support services for a period of
up to 24 months following the acquisition of the NlBusiness, 12 months in Europe, Middle East anitAf (EMEA). The cost of these
transition services is estimated to be up to agprately $94 million annually. The actual expensé deépend upon the scope of the services
that Ciena utilizes and the time within which Ciésable to complete the planned transfer of tiseseices to internal resources or other third
party providers.
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The following table summarizes the final afition related to the MEN Business based on thenagtd fair value of the acquired assets and
assumed liabilities (in thousands):

Final
Allocation
Unbilled receivable $ 7,13¢
Inventories 146,27
Prepaid expenses and otl 32,51%
Other lon¢-term asset 21,92«
Equipment, furniture and fixture 41,21
Developed technolog 218,77:
In-process research and developn 11,00(
Customer relationships, outstanding purchase oatetontract 260,59:
Trade nam 2,00¢
Deferred revenu (28,08¢)
Accrued liabilities (33,845
Other lon¢-term obligations (2,649
Total purchase price allocatis $676,85:

Adjustments to the preliminary purchase peltecation have been made to reflect revised estisnaf the fair values of the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at March 19, 2010. Thegesadents resulted in a net decrease to goodw#K6f0 million through October 31, 2010,
the end of the measurement period. The most sigmifiadjustments were associated with increasesuiations of inventories of $32.1 millic
and deferred revenue of $9.3 million. The valuagiohinventories and deferred revenue primarilgtes to in-transit shipments of orders that
existed at the acquisition date. Providing for éhadjustments in previous periods would have hadamaterial impact on the reported
operating results for the quarterly periods ended!&80, 2010 and July 31, 2010.

Unbilled receivables represent unbilled claforswhich Ciena will invoice customers upon itsmgaetion of the acquired projects.

Under the acquisition method of accountingn@irevalued the acquired finished goods inverntofgir value, which was determined to be
most appropriately recognized as the estimatethggitice less the sum of (a) costs of disposal, (&) a reasonable profit allowance for
Ciena’s selling effort.

Prepaid expenses and other include producbdstration units used to support research and dpwednt projects and indemnification as
related to uncertain tax contingencies acquiredrandrded as part of other long-term obligationthe®long-term assets represent spares used
to support customer maintenance commitments.

Developed technology represents purchasetddmdy that had reached technological feasibilitg éor which development had been
completed as of the date of the acquisition. Deyatictechnology will be amortized on a straight l@eis over its estimated useful lives of two
to seven years.

In-process research and development repredemétopment projects that had not reached techioabfeasibility at the time of the
acquisition. In-process research and developmeetsasvill be impaired, if abandoned, or amortizefuture periods, depending upon the
ability of Ciena to use the research and developmnefature periods. Future expenditures to congptae in-process research and development
projects will be expensed as incurred.

Customer relationships, outstanding purchaders and contracts represent agreements withirexististomers of the MEN Business. Th
intangible assets are expected to have estimagddllises of nine months to seven years, withaékeeption of $14.2 million related to a
contract asset for acquired imecess projects, to be billed by Ciena and reaaghas a reduction in revenue. As of October 3102Ciena ha
billed $10.2 million of these contract assets. Téraaining $4.0 million will be billed during ther$t half of fiscal 2011. Trade name represents
acquired product trade names that are expecteavi® & useful life of nine months.

Deferred revenue represents obligations asslop€iena to provide maintenance support senfimeshich payment for such services was
already made to Nortel.
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Accrued liabilities represent assumed warrafityjgations, other customer contract obligatiarg] certain employee benefit plans. Other
long-term obligations represent uncertain tax caggncies.

The following unaudited pro forma financialdrmation summarizes the results of operationsgHerperiods indicated as if Ciena’s
acquisition of the MEN Business had been complatedf the beginning of each of the periods preseevenue specific to the MEN
Business since the March 19, 2010 acquisition dae$530.9 million. As Ciena has begun to integttadecombined operations, eliminating
overlapping processes and expenses and integiipgducts and sales efforts with those of thuaed MEN Business, it is impractical to
determine the earnings specific to the MEN Busirsasse the acquisition date.

These pro forma amounts (in thousands) dguigiort to be indicative of the results that woliye actually been obtained if the acquisi
occurred as of the beginning of the periods preskat that may be obtained in the future.

Fiscal Yeal
2009 2010
Pro forma revenu $1,704,03 $1,592,91.
Pro forma net los $(1,008,89) $ (536,25)

Acquisition of World Wide Packe

On March 3, 2008, Ciena acquired World Widekess, Inc. (“World Wide Packets” or “WWP”) pursuda the terms of an Agreement and
Plan of Merger dated January 22, 2008 (the “MeAmeement’)by and among Ciena, World Wide Packets, Wolveringuisition Subsidiar
Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Ciena (“Mergear%), and Daniel Reiner, as stockholders’ represtérg. Pursuant to the Merger
Agreement, on March 3, 2008, Merger Sub was mewngttdand into World Wide Packets, with World WidadRets continuing as the
surviving corporation and a wholly owned subsidiafyCiena. World Wide Packets is a supplier of caminations networking equipment that
enables the cost-effective delivery of a wide wgra carrier Ethernet-based services. Prior toabguisition, World Wide Packets was a
privately held company. Ciena’s results of operaitor fiscal 2008 in these financial statementiuie the operations of World Wide Packets
beginning on March 3, 2008, the effective datehefdcquisition.

Upon the closing of the acquisition, all oé thutstanding shares of World Wide Packets’ comstook and preferred stock were exchanged
for approximately 2.5 million shares of Ciena conmstock and approximately $196.7 million in cashtids amount, $20.0 million in cash
and 340,000 shares of Ciena common stock wereglate escrow for a period of one year as sectoitghe indemnification obligations of
World Wide Packetsstockholders under the Merger Agreement. Upon libsirgy, Ciena also assumed all then outstandingd\Wide Packe!
options and exchanged them for options to acquipeaximately 0.9 million shares of Ciena commorcktdJnder the Merger Agreement,
Ciena also agreed to indemnify certain officers dinelctors of World Wide Packets against third-pataims arising out of their employment
relationship. Ciena has determined the fair vafuhie indemnification obligation to be insignifica

The following table summarizes the purchaseedor the acquisition (in thousands):

Amount
Cash $196,66!
Acquisitior-related cost 14,18
Value of common stock issut 62,36(
Fair value of vested options assun 9,917
Total purchase pric $283,12:

The value of Ciena’s common stock issued énabquisition was based on the average closing pfi€iena’s common stock for the two
trading days prior to, the date of, and the twditrg days after the announcement of the acquisifibe fair value of the vested options
assumed was determined using the Black-Scholesmpticing model.
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The acquisition was accounted for under threlmase method of accounting, which requires thed mirchase price to be allocated to the
acquired assets and assumed liabilities basedeimetstimated fair values. The amount of the pwsehaice in excess of the amounts assigned
to acquired tangible or intangible assets and asdumbilities is recognized as goodwill. Amounti®eated to goodwill are not tax deductible.
As set forth below, Ciena recorded acquired, filiited intangible assets related to developed teldgy, covenants not to compete, and
customer relationships, outstanding purchase oafedscontracts. The following table summarizesatlecation of the acquisition purchase
price based on the estimated fair value of the iaequassets and assumed liabilities (in thousands):

Amount
Cash $ 83t
Accounts receivabl 2,04¢
Inventory 12,87
Equipment, furniture and fixture 2,691
Other tangible asse 2,00z
Developed technolog 42,40(
Covenants not to compe 3,20(¢
Customer relationships, outstanding purchase oatetontract 19,10(
Goodwill 223,65¢
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and defersaanue (13,327
Promissory notes and loans paye (12,369)
Total purchase price allocati $283,12:

Under purchase accounting rules, Ciena vatluedcquired finished goods inventory to fair valwhich is defined as the estimated selling
price less the sum of (a) costs of disposal, aha (easonable profit allowance for Ciena’s selbfigrt. This valuation resulted in an increase
in inventory carrying value of approximately $5.38limn for marketable inventory, slightly offset laydecrease of $0.7 million for
unmarketable inventory.

Developed technology represents purchasedoéafyy that had reached technological feasibilitg &or which World Wide Packets had
substantially completed development as of the diéequisition. Fair value was determined usingifeitdiscounted cash flows related to the
projected income stream of the developed techndlogg discrete projection period. Cash flows waiszounted to their present value as of
closing date. Developed technology is amortized straight line basis over its estimated usef@diof 4 years to 6 years.

Covenants not to compete represent agreeraptesed into with key employees of World Wide Pask€ovenants not to compete are
amortized on a straight line basis over estimatedul lives of 3.5 years.

Customer relationships, outstanding purchaders and contracts represent agreements withrexidtorld Wide Packets’ customers and
have estimated useful lives of 4 months to 6 years.

The following unaudited pro forma financialdrmation summarizes the results of operationsgHerperiods indicated as if Ciena’s
acquisition of World Wide Packets had been completeof the beginning of each of the periods piteseThese pro forma amounts (in
thousands, except per share data) do not purpbe tedicative of the results that would have dbiuzeen obtained if the acquisition occurred
as of the beginning of the periods presented dmtizy be obtained in the future.

Year Ende:
October 31
2008
Pro forma revenu $909,09¢
Pro forma net incom $ 22,17¢

(3) RESTRUCTURING COSTS

In April 2010, Ciena committed to certain rasturing actions and subsequently effected a teadaeduction principally affecting Ciena’s
global product group and global field organizatariside of the EMEA region. In May 2010, followitige end of its fiscal second quarter,
Ciena informed employees of its proposal to reomgand restructure portions of Ciena’s busineslsogerations in the EMEA region,
including a headcount reduction principally affagtemployees in Ciena'’s global field and supplyicleganizations.
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The following table displays the activity apalances of the historical restructuring liabitigcounts for the fiscal years indicated (in

thousands):
Consolidatiol

Workforce of excess

reduction facilities Total
Balance at October 31, 20 $ — $ 4,68¢ $ 4,68¢
Additional liability recordec 1,057 (a) 53 (a) 1,11C
Cash payment (75) (1,499 (1,579
Balance at October 31, 20 982 3,24: 4,22°¢
Additional liability recordec 4,117 (b) 3,41¢ (b) 7,53¢
Adjustment to previous estimat — 3,67( (b) 3,67(
Cash payment (4,929 (897) (5,82¢)
Balance at October 31, 20 17C 9,43t 9,60¢
Additional liability recordec 9,25¢€ (c) — (c) 9,25¢
Adjustment to previous estimat — (742) (c) (742)
Cash payment (7,850 (2,307 (10,15)
Balance at October 31, 20 $ 1,57¢ $ 6,392 $ 7,96¢
Current restructuring liabilitie $ 1,57¢ $ 1,20¢ $ 2,78/
Non-current restructuring liabilitie $ — $ 5,18 $ 5,18¢

(a) During fiscal 2008, Ciena recorded a charfg&ld million related to a workforce reductions employees and a charge of
approximately $0.1 million related to the closufedacility located in San Antonio, Texe

(b) During fiscal 2009, Ciena recorded a charge of $illion of severance and other emplo-related costs associated with a workfc
reduction of 200 employees, $3.4 million relatedhi® Acton, MA facility closure and $3.7 millionlaged to previously restructured
facilities.

(c) During fiscal 2010, Ciena recorded a charfgg20l million related to a workforce reductionagproximately 70 employees, principally
affecting Ciena’s global product group and gloleldf organization outside of the EMEA region andi$million related to a workforce
reduction of 82 employees associated with theuestring activities in the EMEA region describedab and an adjustment of $0.7
million associated with previously restructuredilities.

(4) GOODWILL
As of October 31, 2009 and 2010, Ciena didmaee any goodwill on its Consolidated Balance &hee

Impairment los— fiscal 2009

Prior to the acquisition of the MEN BusineSg&na assessed its goodwill based upon a singtetieg unit and tested its single reporting
unit’s goodwill for impairment annually on the last mesis day of fiscal September each year. Testirggjisred between annual tests if eve
occur or circumstances change that would, mordylitkean not, reduce the fair value of the reportimgt below its carrying value. Based on a
combination of factors, including macroeconomicditions and a sustained decline in Ciena’s comntocksprice and market capitalization
below net book value, Ciena conducted an interiainment assessment of goodwill during the secaradtgr of fiscal 2009. Ciena perform
the step one fair value comparison, and its mar&pitalization was $721.8 million and its carryiwejue, including goodwill, was
$949.0 million. Ciena applied a 25% control premitmits market capitalization to determine a faitue of $902.2 million. Because step one
indicated that Ciena’s fair value was less thaeatsying value, Ciena performed the step two aiglyJnder the step two analysis, the implied
fair value of goodwill requires valuation of a refiiog unit’s tangible and intangible assets antilites in a manner similar to the allocation of
purchase price in a business combination. If theyiray value of a reporting unit’'s goodwill excedtisimplied fair value, goodwill is deemed
impaired and is written down to the extent of tifeedence. The implied fair value of the reportingit's goodwill was determined to be $0,
and, as a result, Ciena recorded a goodwill impamtnof $455.7 million, representing the full canygivalue of the goodwiill.

Ciena performed assessments of the fair vafits single reporting unit as of September 2Q&@Ciena compared its fair value on each
assessment date to its carrying value, includiraggdll, and determined that the carrying valueJuding goodwill, did not exceed fair value.
Because the carrying amount was less than ity&hile, no impairment loss was recorded.

(5) LONG-LIVED ASSET IMPAIRMENTS

Due to the reorganization described in No&bdve, Ciena performed an impairment analysissdbitg-lived assets during the second
guarter of fiscal 2010. Based on Ciena’s estiméfatare, undiscounted cash flows by asset groopgmpairment was required.

Due to effects of difficult macroeconomic cdimahs on Ciena’s business, including lengthenialgs cycles and slowing deployments
resulting in lower demand, Ciena performed an impant analysis of its long-lived assets duringftheth quarter of fiscal 2008 and the
second quarter of fiscal 2009. Based on Cienaimag of future, undiscounted cash flows by assatgas of October 31, 2008 and April 30,
2009, respectively, no impairment was required.
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(6) MARKETABLE DEBT SECURITIES

As of October 31, 2010, Ciena had no investmgnmarketable debt securities. As of October2BD9, short-term and long-term
investments in marketable debt securities are cizegof the following (in thousands):

October 31, 200!

Gross Unrealize Gross Unrealize Estimated Fa

Amortized Cos Gains Losses Value
US government obligatior $ 570,500 $ 46C  $ 2 $ 570,96:
Publicly traded equity securitit 251 — — 251
$ 570,75¢ $ 46C $ 2 $ 571,21
Included in sho-term investment 562,78: 404 2 563,18:
Included in lon-term investment 7,97¢ 56 — 8,031
$ 570,75¢ $ 46C $ 2 $ 571,21

Gross unrealized losses related to marketdde investments, included in short-term investmantOctober 31, 2009, were immaterial.
During fiscal 2008, Ciena recognized losses of $illion related to two structured investment védsc(SIVs) that entered into receivership
during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 and faitednake payment at maturity.

(7) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

As of the dates indicated, the following talanmarizes the fair value of assets that are decoat fair value on a recurring basis (in
thousands):

October 31, 201

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Embedded redemption featt $ — $ — $ 4,220 $ 4,220
Contingent consideratic — — 30,19¢ 30,19¢
Total assets measured at fair ve $ — $ — $34,41¢ $34,41¢

October 31, 200

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
US government obligatior $ — $570,96: $ — $570,96:
Publicly traded equity securiti 251 — — 251
Total assets measured at fair ve $ 251 $570,96: $ — $571,21-

As of the dates indicated, the assets anditiab above were presented on Ciena’s ConsolitiB&ance Sheet as follows (in thousands):

October 31, 201

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Prepaid expenses and ot $ — $ — $30,19¢ $30,19¢
Other lon¢-term asset — — 4,22( 4,22(
Total assets measured at fair ve $ — $ — $34,41¢ $34,41¢

October 31, 200

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Shor-term investment $ 251 $562,93: $ — $563,18:
Long-term investment — 8,031 — 8,031
Total assets measured at fair ve $ 251 $570,96: $ — $571,21-

Ciena’s Level 1 assets include corporate gagturities publicly traded on major exchangesdha valued using quoted prices in active
markets.

Ciena’s Level 2 investments include U.S. gawegnt obligations. These investments are valuathushservable inputs such as quoted
market prices, benchmark yields, reported tradeskes/dealer quotes or alternative pricing sousitls reasonable levels of price transpare
Investments are held by a custodian who obtainssiimrent prices from a third party pricing provitieat uses standard inputs to models which
vary by asset class.
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Ciena’s Level 3 assets included in prepaiccagps and other reflect its contingent right teirera refund of up to $33.5 million in
aggregate purchase price paid in the MEN Acquisitithe fair value was based on the weighted avaregigbilities of expected cash flows
discounted to its present value. Ciena’s Levelsg®&sincluded in other long-term assets reflecethbedded redemption feature contained
within Ciena’s 4.0% convertible senior notes. SeteNL5 below. The embedded redemption featurdisdaited from Ciena 4.0% convertibl
senior notes using the “with-and-without” approag&h.such, the total value of the embedded redemiiature is calculated as the difference
between the value of the 4.0% convertible senides{the “Hybrid Instrument”) and the value of deritical instrument without the embedded
redemption feature (the “Host Instrument”). Botk thost Instrument and the Hybrid Instrument areeglusing a modified binomial model.
The modified binomial model utilizes a risk fre¢drest rate, an implied volatility of Ciena’s stothe recovery rates of bonds and the implied
default intensity of the 4.0% convertible senioteso

As of the dates indicated, the following tatdgs forth, in thousands, the reconciliation afraes in Level 3 assets recorded at fair value:

Level 3
Balance at October 31, 20 $ —
Initial recognition 18,10«
Changes in unrealized ge 16,31:
Transfers into Level —
Transfers out of Level —
Balance at October 31, 20 $34,41¢

During fiscal 2009, due to certain triggerenvents, Ciena recorded a non-cash loss on cosbohethiestments of $5.3 million. Ciena
utilized both Level 2 and Level 3 inputs in itsrfaalue measurements for these investments.
(8) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As of October 31, 2010, no customers accoufaetl0.0% of net trade accounts receivable. A@ctbber 31, 2009, one customer accou
for 10.7% of net trade accounts receivable. Ciea#lowance for doubtful accounts as of October2B08, 2009 and 2010 was $0.1 million :
Ciena has not historically experienced a signifieanount of bad debt expense.

The following table summarizes the activitydrena’s allowance for doubtful accounts for theeéil years indicated (in thousands):

Net

Year endec Balance at beginnin Provisions Balance at end ¢

October 31 of period (Recovery) Deductions period
2008 $132 $157 $16t $124
2009 $124 $ 93 $101 $11€
2010 $11€ $ 1 $ — $117

(9) INVENTORIES

As of the dates indicated, inventories are maged of the following (in thousands):

October 31
2009 2010

Raw materials $ 19,69 $ 30,56¢
Work-in-process 1,48(C 6,99:
Finished good 61,02¢ 177,99:
Deferred cost of goods sc 29,88t 76,83(
112,08¢ 292,38t

Provision for excess and obsolesce (24,009 (30,767
$ 88,08¢ $261,61¢
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Ciena writes down its inventory for estimatébolescence or unmarketable inventory equal tdifference between the cost of inventory
and the estimated market value based on assumgatimng future demand and market conditions. Dufisl 2008, fiscal 2009 and fiscal
2010, Ciena recorded provisions for inventory resgiof $18.3 million, $15.7 million and $13.7 nolfi, respectively, primarily related to
changes in forecasted sales for certain produ@duttions from the reserve for excess and obswleémtory relate to disposal activities.

The following table summarizes the activitydiena’s reserve for excess and obsolete inveffitorhe fiscal years indicated (in thousands):

Balance a
Year endet beginning of Balance a
October 31 period Provisions Disposals end of perioc
2008 $26,17( $18,32¢ $21,23¢ $23,251
2009 $23,251 $15,71¢ $14,97¢ $24,00:
2010 $24,00: $13,69¢ $ 6,931 $30,761

(10) PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER

As of the dates indicated, prepaid expensd#rer are comprised of the following (in thouss)nd

October 31
2009 2010

Prepaid VAT and other taxi $14,52° $ 46,35
Deferred deployment expen 4,24; 6,91¢
Product demonstration equipment, — 29,44¢
Prepaid expenst¢ 8,86¢ 15,087
Capitalized acquisition cos 12,47: —
Restricted cas 7,47 12,99
Contingent consideratic — 30,19¢
Other nortrade receivable 2,94¢ 6,68¢

$50,53" $147,68(

Prepaid expenses and other as of October(3D, idcludes $29.4 million related to product destmation equipment, net. Depreciation of
product demonstration equipment was $4.2 milliarfiecal 2010. Capitalized acquisition costs atdber 31, 2009 include direct costs related
to Ciena’s then pending acquisition of the MEN Biesis. In the first quarter of fiscal 2010, Ciena@dd newly issued accounting guidance
related to business combinations, which requiredidh amount of these capitalized acquisition sdstbe expensed in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

(11) EQUIPMENT, FURNITURE AND FIXTURES
As of the dates indicated, equipment, fureitand fixtures are comprised of the following @iousands):

October 31
2009 2010
Equipment, furniture and fixture $ 293,09: $ 360,90¢
Leasehold improvemen 45,76 49,59t
338,85¢ 410,50:
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (276,980 (290,209
$ 61,86¢ $ 120,29:

During fiscal 2008, fiscal 2009 and fiscal 20Ciena recorded depreciation of equipment, furaitind fixtures, and amortization of
leasehold improvements of $18.6 million, $21.9 imilland $38.5 million, respectively.

76




Table of Contents

(12) OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
As of the dates indicated, other intangibketsare comprised of the following (in thousands):

October 31
2009 2010
Gross Accumulate: Net Gross Accumulate: Net

_Intangible Amortizatior Intangible Intangible Amortizatior _Intangible

Developed technolog $185,83: $(147,50.) $38,32¢ $417,83: $(186,12) $231,70:«

Patents and licens 47,37( (42,81) 4,55¢ 45,38¢ (45,167 221
Customer relationships, covenants n
to compete, outstanding purchase

orders and contrac 60,98 (43,049 17,93 323,57« (129,08¢) 194,48

Total other intangible asse $294,18: $(233,369) $60,82( $786,79: $(360,38)) $426,41:

The aggregate amortization expense of othiengible assets was $38.0 million, $31.4 million &127.0 million for fiscal 2008, fiscal 20
and fiscal 2010, respectively. Expected future diration of other intangible assets for the fisgedrs indicated is as follows (in thousands):

Year ended October 3

2011 $ 96,66¢
2012 73,56«
2013 71,14¢
2014 56,98"
2015 52,71«
Thereaftel 75,33:

$426,41:

(13) OTHER BALANCE SHEET DETAILS
As of the dates indicated, other long-ternetssare comprised of the following (in thousands):

October 31
2009 2010
Maintenance spares inventory, | $31,99¢ $ 53,65¢
Deferred debt issuance costs, 12,83: 28,85!
Embedded redemption featt — 4,22(
Restricted cas 18,79: 37,79¢
Other 4,28¢ 5,29¢
$67,90: $129,81¢

Deferred debt issuance costs are amortizeduise straight line method which approximatesetfiect of the effective interest rate method
through the maturity of the related debt. Amorii@atof deferred debt issuance costs, which is thetlin interest expense, was $2.9 million,
$2.3 million and $3.8 million for fiscal 2008, fizlc2009 and fiscal 2010, respectively.

As of the dates indicated, accrued liabiliaes comprised of the following (in thousands):

October 31
2009 2010
Warranty $ 40,19¢ $ 54,37
Compensation, payroll related tax and ben 20,02 39,39
Vacation 11,50¢ 20,41:
Current restructuring liabilitie 1,811 2,78¢
Interest payabl 2,04t 4,34¢
Other 29,57¢ 72,69(
$105,16( $193,99:
The following table summarizes the activitydiena’s accrued warranty for the fiscal yearsdatéd (in thousands):
Year ende( Beginning Balance at en
October 31 Balance Acquired Provisions Settlement: of period
2008 $33,58( $ — $15,33¢ $11,65¢ $37,25¢
2009 $37,25¢ $ — $19,28¢ $16,34¢ $40,19¢
2010 $40,19¢ $24,04: $15,35: $25,21¢ $54,37:
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As of the dates indicated, deferred revenweisprised of the following (in thousands):

October 31
2009 2010
Products $ 11,99¢ $ 31,187
Services 63,93¢ 73,86:
75,93 105,04¢
Less current portio (40,565 (75,339
Long-term deferred revent $ 35,36¢ $ 29,71t

(14) FOREIGN CURRENCY FORWARD CONTRACTS

Ciena has previously used, and may in thedéutige, foreign currency forward contracts to redeariability in nont.S. dollar denominate
expected cash flows. As of October 31, 2009 an@ 2tre were no foreign currency forward contracitstanding and Ciena did not enter
into any foreign currency forward contracts durfisgal 2010. During fiscal 2009, Ciena entered suich foreign currency forward contracts
and these derivatives were designated as casthifoges. No portion of the hedging instruments veasidered ineffective. Gains and losses
from these foreign currency forward contracts wiemematerial during fiscal 2009.

(15) CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE
Payment at Maturity of Convertible Notes Paye
3.75% Convertible Notes, due February 1, 2008

During fiscal 2008, Ciena paid at maturity thenaining $542.3 million in aggregate principaleamt on its 3.75% convertible notes. All of
the notes were retired without conversion into camrstock.

Outstanding Convertible Notes Payable

Ciena has four issuances of convertible npégsble outstanding. The notes are senior unsecllaghtions of Ciena and rank equally with
all of Ciena’s other existing and future senioremged debt. The indentures governing Ciena’s mot@gde for customary events of default
which include (subject in certain cases to custgmyaace and cure periods), among others, the faligwnonpayment of principal or interest;
breach of covenants or other agreements in theninde defaults in failure to pay certain otherdhtedness; and certain events of bankruptcy
or insolvency. Generally, if an event of defaultoxs and is continuing, the trustee or the holdéet least 25% in aggregate principal amount
of the notes may declare the principal of, accinéztest on, and premium, if any, on all the natesiediately due and payable. Under the
indentures, if Ciena undergoes a “fundamental cea(as that term is defined in the indenture goirgyithe notes to include certain change in
control transactions), holders of notes will have tight, subject to certain exemptions, to reqGirena to purchase for cash any or all of their
notes at a price equal to the principal amounts pecrued and unpaid interest. If the holder elect®nvert his or her notes in connection with
a specified fundamental change, in certain circanwsts, Ciena will be required to increase the egplé conversion rate, depending on the
price paid per share for Ciena common stock anetffeetive date of the fundamental change transacti

0.25% Convertible Senior Notes due May 1, 2013

On April 10, 2006, Ciena completed a publifeohg of 0.25% convertible senior notes due Mag@13, in aggregate principal amount of
$300.0 million. Interest is payable on May 1 and/8lober 1 of each year.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, Gierepurchased $2.0 million in principal amounttsfautstanding 0.25% convertible senior ni
in an open market transaction. Ciena used $1.0omidf cash to effect these repurchases duringjtiaeter, which resulted in a gain of
approximately $0.9 million. During the fourth quarrof fiscal 2010, Ciena repurchased $81.8 milifoaggregate principal amount of its
outstanding 0.25% convertible senior notes in pelyanegotiated transactions, which resulted imia @f approximately $4.9 million. As of
October 31, 2010, the outstanding principal onghestes was $216.2 million.

At the election of the holder, notes may bevested prior to maturity into shares of Ciena camrstock at the initial conversion rate of
25.3001 shares per $1,000 in principal amount, wls@quivalent to an initial conversion price 88%6255 per share. The notes may be
redeemed by Ciena if the closing sale price of E®@nommon stock for at least 20 trading days in2#hgonsecutive trading day period enc
on the date one day prior to the date of the naticedemption exceeds 130% of the conversion pGéena may redeem the notes in whole or
in part, at a redemption price in cash equal tgptirecipal amount to be redeemed, plus accrueduapdid interest.
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Ciena used approximately $28.5 million of tie# proceeds of this offering to purchase a caag option on its common stock that is
intended to limit exposure to potential dilutionrin the conversion of the notes. See Note 17 betow flescription of this call spread option.

4.0% Convertible Senior Notes, due March 15, 2015

On March 15, 2010, Ciena completed a privédegment of 4.0% convertible senior notes due MaggR015, in aggregate principal
amount of $375.0 million. Interest is payable oa tlotes on March 15 and September 15 of each lyeginning on September 15, 2010.

At the election of the holder, the notes maycbnverted prior to maturity into shares of Cienmmmon stock at the initial conversion rate of
49.0557 shares per $1,000 in principal amount, vlsi@quivalent to an initial conversion price ppeoximately $20.38 per share. The notes
may be redeemed by Ciena on or after March 15, #1h8 closing sale price of Ciena’s common stfmkat least 20 trading days in any 30
consecutive trading day period ending on the dagday prior to the date of the notice of redempérceeds 150% of the conversion price.
Ciena may redeem the notes in whole or in pag,rademption price in cash equal to the principabant to be redeemed, plus accrued and
unpaid interest, including any additional intettestout excluding, the redemption date, plus a makele premium payment. Thenfake whole
premium” payment will be made in cash and equaptiesent value of the remaining interest paymeatsiaturity, computed using a discount
rate equal to 2.75%. The make-whole premium is fraltblders whether or not they convert the noddlewing Ciena’s issuance of a
redemption notice. For accounting purposes, tldsmgtion feature is an embedded derivative thapislearly and closely related to the nc
Consequently, it was initially bifurcated from timelenture and separately recorded at its fair vakian asset with subsequent changes in fair
value recorded through earnings. As of Octobe2810, the fair value of the embedded redemptiotufeavas $4.2 million and is included in
other long-term assets on the Consolidated Bal8heet. Since inception on March 15, 2010, the obsungfair value of the embedded
redemption feature in the amount of $2.5 milliorreveeflected as interest and other income (logf)pn the Consolidated Statement of
Operations.

The net proceeds from the offering of the aatere $364.3 million after deducting the placenag@nts’ fees and other fees and expenses.
Ciena used $243.8 million of this amount to furedgayment election to replace its contractual albilign to issue convertible notes to Nortel as
part of the aggregate purchase price for the aitipmf the MEN Business. The remaining proceedsenused to reduce the cash on hand
required to fund the aggregate purchase priceedMEN Business. See Note 2 above.

0.875% Convertible Senior Notes due June 15, 2017

On June 11, 2007, Ciena completed a publerioff of 0.875% convertible senior notes due JdneQ17, in aggregate principal amount of
$500.0 million. Interest is payable on June 15 Badember 15 of each year, beginning on Decembe2(,.

At the election of the holder, notes may bevested prior to maturity into shares of Ciena camrstock at the initial conversion rate of
26.2154 shares per $1,000 in principal amount, lvliequivalent to an initial conversion price ppeoximately $38.15 per share. The notes
are not redeemable by Ciena prior to maturity.

Ciena used approximately $42.5 million of tie# proceeds of this offering to purchase a cabag option on its common stock that is
intended to limit exposure to potential dilutionrn conversion of the notes. See Note 17 below figszription of this call spread option.

3.75% Convertible Senior Notes, due October 158201

On October 18, 2010, Ciena completed a pripkteement of 3.75% convertible senior notes duel@r 15, 2018, in aggregate principal
amount of $350.0 million. Interest is payable oa tlotes on April 15 and October 15 of each yeaginméng on April 15, 2011.

At the election of the holder, the notes maycbnverted prior to maturity into shares of Cieammmon stock at the initial conversion rate of
49.5872 shares per $1,000 in principal amount, wls@quivalent to an initial conversion price ppeoximately $20.17 per share.

The net proceeds from the offering were apipnasely $340.4 million after deducting the placemagents’ fees and other fees and
expenses. Ciena used $76.1 million of the net paeéo effect the repurchase of its 0.25% conJersibnior notes due 2013 described above.
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The following table sets forth, in thousanttig, carrying value and the estimated current falue of Ciena’s outstanding convertible notes:

October 31, 201

Description Carrying Valut Fair Value
0.25% Convertible Senior Notes due May 1, 2 $ 216,21( $ 197,30(
4.0% Convertible Senior Notes, due March 15, Z(1) 376,49: 371,26(
0.875% Convertible Senior Notes due June 15, : 500,00( 366,70(
3.75% Convertible Senior Notes, due October 158: 350,00( 339,50(

$ 1,442,70! $1,274,76!

@ Includes unamortized bond premium related to embddddemption featul

Except for the 4.0% convertible senior noties,fair value reported above is based on the quogket price for the notes on the date
above. Due to the lack of trading activity, the falue of the 4.0% convertible senior notes islbasn a modified binomial model as described
above.

(16) EARNINGS PER SHARE CALCULATION

The following table (in thousands except gerse amounts) is a reconciliation of the numeratar denominator of the basic net income
(loss) per common share (“Basic EPS”) and the ellutet income (loss) per potential common shardyt&l EPS”). Basic EPS is computed
using the weighted average number of common sloatsganding. Diluted EPS is computed using the teid) average number of (i) common
shares outstanding, (ii) shares issuable uponngesfirestricted stock units, (iii) shares issualpen exercise of outstanding stock options,
employee stock purchase plan options and warraimg the treasury stock method; and (iv) shareguyidg Ciena’s outstanding convertible
notes.

Diluted EPS for fiscal 2010 reflects only atimn of the shares underlying the 4.0% and 3.78%8 convertible notes because they were
issued on March 15, 2010 and October 15, 2010eotisgly.

Numerator
Year Ended October 3
2008 2009 2010
Net income (loss $38,89: $(581,15:) $(333,519)
Add: Interest expense for 0.25% Convertible SeNiotes due 201 1,87¢ — —
Add: Interest expense for 0.875% Convertible SeNiotes due 201 5,51( — —
Net income (loss) used to calculate Diluted E $46,27¢ $(581,15¢) $(333,519)

Denominator

Year Ended October 3

2008 2009 2010

Basic weighted average shares outstan 89,14¢ 91,167 93,10:
Add: Shares underlying outstanding stock optiongpleyees stock purchase plan optic

warrants and restricted stock ur 761 — —
Add: Shares underlying 0.25% Convertible Seniordsatue 201 7,59( — —
Add: Shares underlying 0.875% Convertible SenioteNaue 201 13,10¢ — —
Dilutive weighted average shares outstant 110,60! 91,167 93,10:
EPS

Year Ended October 3
2008 2009 2010

Basic EP< $ 0.4¢ $ (6.37) $ (359
Diluted EPS $ 0.4: $ (6.37) $ (359

Explanation of Shares Excluded due to -Dilutive Effect

The weighted average number of certain shardsrlying outstanding stock options, employeelsmachase plan options, restricted stock
units and warrants in the table below are consilargi-dilutive because the exercise price of ttasards is greater than the average closing
price per share on the NASDAQ Stock Market durtmg period. In addition, the weighted average nunatbshares underlying Ciena’s
outstanding convertible senior notes, are consilanti-dilutive because the related interest exp@msa per common share “if converted”
basis exceeds Basic EPS for the period.
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The following table summarizes the weightedrage shares excluded from the calculation of #m@thinator for Basic and Diluted EPS
to their anti-dilutive effect for the fiscal yedmslicated (in thousands):

Weighted average shares excluded from EPS Denomimatdue to anti-dilutive effect

Year Ended October 3

2008 2009 2010
Shares underlying stock options, restricted stattsiand warrant 5,311 8,30z 7,39
3.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2( 182 — —
0.25% Convertible Senior Notes due 2( — 7,53¢ 7,454
0.875% Convertible Senior Notes due 2! — 13,10¢ 13,10¢
4.0% Convertible Senior Notes due 2( — — 11,60¢
3.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2( — — 717
Total excluded due to a-dilutive effect 5,497 28,94¢ 40,28:

(17) STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Call Spread Option

Ciena holds two call spread options on its iwam stock relating to the shares issuable uponearsion of two issues of convertible notes.
These call spread options are designed to mitigpgtesure to potential dilution from the conversidrthese notes. Ciena purchased a call
spread option relating to the 0.25% convertibléaemotes due May 1, 2013 for $28.5 million durthg second quarter of fiscal 2006. Ciena
purchased a call spread option relating to the3¥%8¢onvertible senior notes due June 15, 20174ar3million during the third quarter of
fiscal 2007. In each case, the call spread optimre purchased at the time of the notes offeriomfan affiliate of the underwriter. The cost of
each call spread option was recorded as a redductipaid-in capital.

Each call spread option is exercisable, upatunty of the relevant issue of convertible nofes such number of shares of Ciena common
stock issuable upon conversion of that series téaim full. Each call spread option has a “lowteike price” equal to the conversion price for
the notes and a “higher strike price” that sereesap the amount of dilution protection provided.ta election, Ciena can exercise the call
spread options on a net cash basis or a net shai® hhe value of the consideration of a net shatttement will be equal to the value upon a
net cash settlement and can range from $0, if tden price per share of Ciena common stock upencese is equal to or below the lower
strike price, to approximately $45.7 million (iretbase of the April 2006 call spread option) orraginately $76.1 million (in the case of the
June 2007 call spread), if the market price pereshbCiena common stock upon exercise is at ovaliwe higher strike price. If the market
price on the date of exercise is between the I@iréke price and the higher strike price, in lidlamet settlement, Ciena may elect to receive
the full number of shares underlying the call sgreption by paying the aggregate option exerciggpwhich is equal to the original principal
outstanding on that series of notes. Should therabearly unwind of the call spread option, theamt of cash or shares to be received by
Ciena will depend upon the existing overall madatditions, and on Ciena’s stock price, the vatgtdf Ciena’s stock and the remaining term
of the call spread option. The number of sharegestibo the call spread options, and the lowerlaigter strike prices, are subject to custon
adjustments.
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(18) INCOME TAXES
For the periods indicated, the provision (Bigntor income taxes consists of the following (lmousands):

October 31
2008 2009 2010

Provision (benefit) for income taxe
Current:

Federa $ (712) $ (3,489 $ (919

State 20¢ 12z 22¢

Foreign 1,50¢ 2,92t 1,93¢

Total current 1,00¢ 441 1,241

Deferred:

Federa 1,64( (860) 70C

State — (23 —

Foreign — — —

Total deferrec 1,64( (88%) 70C

Provision (benefit) for income tax $ 2,64f $ (1,329 $ 1,941

For the periods indicated, income (loss) befmovision (benefit) for income taxes consisttheffollowing (in thousands):

October 31
2008 2009 2010

United State: $32,86¢ $(591,63) $(317,899)
Foreign 8,671 9,15¢ (13,679

Total $41,53¢ $(582,479) $(331,57)

For the periods indicated, the tax provisioangfit) reconciles to the amount computed by mlyitig income or loss before income taxe:
the U.S. federal statutory rate of 35% as follows:

October 31
2008 2009 2010
Provision at statutory ra 35.0(% 35.0(% 35.0(%
State taxe 0.5(% (0.02%) (0.07%)
Foreign taxe: (3.67%) 0.05% (4.5€%)
Research and development cre (2.6(%) 0.6(% 2.5/%
Goodwill impairment 0.0(% (27.3t%) 0.0(%
Non-deductible compensation and ot 11.2(% (1.42%) (1.42%)
Valuation allowanct (34.06%) (6.6(%) (32.07%)
Effective income tax rat 6.37% 0.2% (0.5%)
The significant components of deferred taxetssand liabilities were as follows (in thousands):
October 31
2009 2010
Deferred tax asset
Reserves and accrued liabiliti $ 31,08¢ $ 30,88¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 159,85¢ 186,71¢
NOL and credit carry forwar 965,52¢ 1,107,05!
Other 42,29 38,82¢
Gross deferred tax assi 1,198,76 1,363,49:
Valuation allowanct (1,198,06) (1,363,49)
Net deferred tax ass $ 70C $ —
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A reconciliation of the beginning and endimgaunt of unrecognized tax benefits, excluding igéand penalties, is as follows (in
thousands):

Unrecognized tax benefits at October 31, 2 $ 4,43¢
Increase related to positions taken in prior pe 10¢€
Increase related to positions taken in currentopk 1,947
Reductions related to expiration of statute of tations (300
Unrecognized tax benefits at October 31, 2 6,18¢
Increase related to positions taken in prior pe 26
Increase related to positions taken in currentopk 3,38:
Reductions related to expiration of statute of tations (2,156
Unrecognized tax benefits at October 31, 2 $ 7,44

As of October 31, 2009 and 2010, Ciena haduacc$1.2 million and $1.4 million of interest, pestively, and some minor penalties related
to unrecognized tax benefits within other long-tdiabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheetsybich $0.1 million and $0.2 million of
interest was recorded to the provision for income$ during fiscal 2009 and 2010, respectivelyedbgnized, the entire balance of
unrecognized tax benefits would impact the effectax rate. Over the next 12 months, Ciena doesstimhate any material changes in the
unrecognized income tax benefits.

During fiscal 2002, Ciena established a vaduaallowance against its deferred tax assets.&0iends to maintain a valuation allowance
until sufficient positive evidence exists to sugporeversal. Any future release of valuation alose may be recorded as a tax benefit
increasing net income or as an adjustment to pa@pital, based on tax ordering requirements.foh&wving table summarizes the activity in
Ciena’s valuation allowance against its gross defetax assets (in thousands):

Year ende( Balance at beginnin Balance at en

October 31 of period Additions Deductions of period
200¢ $1,180,12: $ = $15,73¢ $1,164,38
200¢ $1,164,38 $ 33,68 $ — $1,198,06
201C $1,198,06 $165,42¢ $ — $1,363,49:

As of October 31, 2010, Ciena had a $2.7drilliet operating loss carry forward and a $0.1obilincome tax credit carry forward which
begin to expire in fiscal year 2018 and 2013, re8pely. Ciena’s ability to use net operating lass@d credit carry forwards is subject to
limitations pursuant to the ownership change rofebe Internal Revenue Code Section 382.

The income tax provision does not reflecttthesavings resulting from deductions associatéd @iena’s equity compensation and the call
spread option associated with Ciena’s convertiblet.dThe cumulative tax benefit through OctoberZi,0 of approximately $76 million will
be credited to additional paid-in capital whenim=l. For deductions associated with Ciena’s equatppensation, credits to paid-in capital
will be recorded when those tax benefits are usedduce taxes payable.

(19) SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION EXPENSE

Ciena grants equity awards under its 2008 @omincentive Plan (“2008 Plan”) and 2003 Emplo$eeck Purchase Plan (‘ESPP”). In
connection with its acquisition of the MEN BusingSgena also adopted the 2010 Inducement Equityrdwéan, pursuant to which it has
made awards to eligible persons as described below.

2008 Plan

The 2008 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “200&Blavas approved by Ciena’s Board of Directors acBmber 12, 2007 and became
effective upon the approval of Ciena’s stockholderdMarch 26, 2008. The 2008 Plan has a ten year fehe 2008 Plan reserves eight million
shares of common stock for issuance, subject re@se from time to time by the number of shar¢sulbject to outstanding awards granted
under Ciena’s prior equity compensation plans tiwamhinate without delivery of any stock (to theemttsuch shares would have been available
for issuance under such prior plan), and (ii) scibje awards assumed or substituted in connectitinttve acquisition of another company.
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The 2008 Plan authorizes the issuance of anaoiding stock options, restricted stock unRSUs), restricted stock, unrestricted stock,
stock appreciation rights (SARs) and other equity/ar cash performance incentive awards to empgyaigectors, and consultants of Ciena.
Subiject to certain restrictions, the Compensatiomf@ittee of the Board of Directors has broad dis@neto establish the terms and conditions
for awards under the 2008 Plan, including the nunobshares, vesting conditions and the requiredice or performance criteria. Options and
SARs have a maximum term of ten years, and theiroise price may not be less than 100% of fair etarklue on the date of grant. Repricing
of stock options and SARs is prohibited withoutc&tmlder approval. Certain change in control tratieas may cause awards granted under
the 2008 Plan to vest, unless the awards are emtior substituted for in connection with the teart®n.

Pursuant to Board and stockholder approvégctfe April 14, 2010, Ciena amended its 2008 Rtaf) increase the number of shares
available for issuance by five million shares; &ijdreduce from 1.6 to 1.31 the fungible sharéoratsed for counting full value awards, suct
restricted stock units, against the shares remgiamvailable under the 2008 Plan. As of October2B10, there were approximately 5.8 million
shares authorized and remaining available for imsmiander the 2008 Plan.

2010 Inducement Equity Award Plan

On December 8, 2009, the Compensation Conmemitt¢he Board of Directors approved the 2010 ledoent Equity Award Plan (the “2010
Plan”). The 2010 Plan is intended to enhance Cgeahkility to attract and retain certain key empks/gansferred to Ciena in connection with
its acquisition of the MEN Business. The 2010 Rlathorizes the issuance of restricted stock oricéstl stock units representing up to
2.25 million shares of Ciena common stock. UponMaech 19, 2011 termination of the 2010 Plan, amras then remaining available shall
cease to be available for issuance under the 2[2t0dP any other existing Ciena equity incentiverplAs of October 31, 2010, there were
approximately 0.7 million shares authorized andlatse for issuance under the 2010 Plan.

Stock Options

Outstanding stock option awards to employeeganerally subject to service-based vestingiotisins and vest incrementally over a four-
year period. The following table is a summary ofiz's stock option activity for the periods indicatgshares in thousands):

Shares Underlyin Weighted
Options Average
Outstanding Exercise Prici

Balance as of October 31, 20 5,871 $53.61
Granted 76C 28.92
Granted in exchange for WWP optic 934 7.5C
Exercisec (65€) 7.1z
Cancelec (508) 52.7¢
Balance as of October 31, 20 6,39¢ 48.8¢
Granted 234 8.6%
Exercisec (107 2.3
Cancelec (988) 61.4C
Balance as of October 31, 20 5,563¢ 45.8(
Granted 86 12.42
Exercisec (103) 5.21
Cancelec (519 95.0(C
Balance as of October 31, 20 5,00z $40.9¢

The total intrinsic value of options exercigkding fiscal 2008, fiscal 2009 and fiscal 201G4.4.7 million, $0.7 million and $0.9 million,
respectively. The weighted average fair value ahestock option granted by Ciena during fiscal 2G@&al 2009 and fiscal 2010 was $14.52,
$4.94 and $6.94, respectively.
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The following table summarizes informationtlwiespect to stock options outstanding at OctobeRB10, based on Ciena’s closing stock
price of $13.81 per share on the last trading daiena’s fiscal 2010 (shares and intrinsic valué¢hiousands):

Options Outstanding at October 31, 2( Vested Options at October 31, 2C
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number Remaining Weightec Number Remaining Weightec

Range ot of Contractue Average Aggregat of Contractue Average Aggregat
Exercise Underlyinc Life Exercise Intrinsic Underlyinc Life Exercise Intrinsic
Price Shares (Years) Price Value Shares (Years) Price Value
$001 - $ 16.52 84¢€ 6.1¢€ $ 11.1¢ $ 3,117 63¢E 5.3€ $ 11.52 $ 2,34¢
$16.5: - $ 17.4¢ 50€ 4,98 17.21 — 48C 4.8(C 17.2(€ —
$17.4¢ - $ 22.9¢ 43C 4.41 21.7¢ — 401 4.1¢ 21.8¢ —
$22.97 - $ 31.71 1,41¢ 4.1¢ 29.4¢ — 1,32¢ 3.9¢ 29.5] —
$31.7: - $ 46.9( 86t 5.52 39.3¢ — 71¢€ 5.1¢ 39.7¢ —
$46.91 - $ 73.7¢ 43¢ 2.0¢ 59.7C — 43¢ 2.0¢ 59.7C —
$73.7¢ - $1,046.5( 50% 0.91 149.8¢ — 50% 0.91 149.8¢ —
$ 0.01 - $1,046.5( 5,00z 4.3 $ 40.9¢ $ 3,11 4,504 3.9¢ $ 43.01 $ 2,34¢€

Assumptions for Option-Based Awards

Ciena recognizes the fair value of serviceeagptions as share-based compensation expenssti@ight-line basis over the requisite
service period. Ciena estimates the fair valueacheoption award on the date of grant using thelB&choles option-pricing model, with the
following weighted average assumptions:

Year ended October 3

2008 2009 2010
Expected volatility 53.0% 65.0% 61.9%
Risk-free interest rat 2.7%-3.6% 1.7%-3.1% 2.0%-3.0%
Expected term (year: 5.1-5.3 5.2-5.3 5.355
Expected dividend yiel 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Ciena considered the implied volatility andtbrical volatility of its stock price in determirg its expected volatility, and, finding both to be
equally reliable, determined that a combinatiobath would result in the best estimate of expeutddtility.

The risk-free interest rate assumption is Bagmn observed interest rates appropriate foetpected term of Ciena’s employee stock
options.

The expected life of employee stock optioqsesents the weighted-average period the stockruptire expected to remain outstanding.
Ciena uses historical information about specifiereise behavior of its grantees to determine tipeeted term.

The dividend yield assumption is based on &€ghistory and expectation of dividend payouts.

Because share-based compensation expenseihized only for those awards that are ultimagedyected to vest, the amount of share-
based compensation expense recognized reflectiiatien for estimated forfeitures. Ciena estimétefeitures at the time of grant and revises
those estimates in subsequent periods based upoarrghanged information. Ciena relies upon hisedrexperience in establishing forfeiture
rates. If actual forfeitures differ from currentiggates, total unrecognized shdrased compensation expense will be adjusted forduthange
in estimated forfeitures.

Restricted Stock Units

A restricted stock unit is a stock award #matitles the holder to receive shares of Ciena comstock as the unit vests. Ciena’s outstanding
restricted stock unit awards are subject to serbased vesting conditions and/or performance-bassting conditions. Awards subject to
service-based conditions typically vest in incretaaver a three to four-year period. Awards withfgrnancebased vesting conditions reqt
the achievement of certain operational, financiadtber performance criteria or targets as a camitf vesting, or acceleration of vesting, of
such awards.
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Ciena’s outstanding restricted stock unitdude “performance-accelerated” restricted stocksufff ARS), which vest in full four years after
the date of grant (assuming that the granteeli®siployed by Ciena at that time). At the begirgnaf each of the first three fiscal years
following the date of grant, the Compensation Cotteriestablishes one-year performance targets wifigdtisfied, provide for the
acceleration of vesting of one-third of the awakd.a result, the recipient has the opportunityjextito satisfaction of performance conditions,
to vest as to the entire award in three years.aienognizes the estimated fair value of perforradrased awards, net of estimated forfeitures,
as shardrased expense over the performance period, usaupdrvesting, which considers each performancedgberitranche separately, ba
upon Ciena’s determination of whether it is proleablat the performance targets will be achievedeakh reporting period, Ciena reassess the
probability of achieving the performance targetd #re performance period required to meet thoggetar

The aggregate intrinsic value of Ciena’s ietd stock units is based on Ciena’s closing stwate on the last trading day of each period as
indicated. The following table is a summary of Gierestricted stock unit activity for the periaddicated, with the aggregate intrinsic value
of the balance outstanding at the end of each gebmsed on Ciena’s closing stock price on thettading day of the relevant period (shares
and aggregate intrinsic value in thousands):

Weighted
Average
Restrictec Grant Date
Stock Units Fair Value Aggregate Fai
Qutstanding Per Shart Value
Balance as of October 31, 20 1,13¢ $27.9¢ $53,23¢
Granted 1,411
Vested (519)
Canceled or forfeite (189
Balance as of October 31, 20 1,84¢ 30.8¢ 17,77:
Granted 3,36¢
Vested (2,35¢)
Canceled or forfeite (139
Balance as of October 31, 20 3,71¢ 14.67 43,59
Granted 3,64:
Vested (2,846
Canceled or forfeite (322)
Balance as of October 31, 20 5,191 $13.81 $71,68:

The total fair value of restricted stock urtitat vested and were converted into common stadkgl fiscal 2008, fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2010
was $14.6 million, $14.7 million and $25.7 milliaspectively. The weighted average fair valueaaherestricted stock unit granted by Ciena
during fiscal 2008, fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2010 \$82.38, $7.02 and $13.43, respectively.

Assumptions for Restricted Stock Unit Awards

The fair value of each restricted stock umitied is estimated using the intrinsic value methvaaich is based on the closing price on the
of grant. Share-based expense for service-bastitted stock unit awards is recognized, net ofested forfeitures, ratably over the vesting
period on a straight-line basis.

Share-based expense for performance-baseittedistock unit awards, net of estimated forfeityl is recognized ratably over the
performance period based upon Ciena’s determinaftiovhether it is probable that the performancgets will be achieved. At each reporting
period, Ciena reassesses the probability of aahgetvie performance targets and the performancegesjuired to meet those targets. The
estimation of whether the performance targetslvélachieved involves judgment, and the estimaexpénse is revised periodically based on
the probability of achieving the performance tasg&evisions are reflected in the period in whiod éstimate is changed. If any performance
goals are not met, no compensation cost is ultima¢éeognized against that goal and, to the extesniously recognized, compensation cost is
reversed.

2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In March 2003, Ciena stockholders approve®0@3 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP’ighwias a ten-year term. Ciena
stockholders subsequently approved an amendmeegisiog the number of shares available to 3.6anillind adopting an “evergreen”
provision. On December 31 of each year, the nurabshares available under the ESPP will increasepbtp 0.6 million shares, provided that
the total number of shares available at that tihal 10t exceed 3.6 million. Pursuant to the eveegrprovision, the maximum number of
shares that may be added to the ESPP during trearrder of its ten-year term is 2.4 million.
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Under the ESPP, eligible employees may emalsix-month offer period during certain openadinnent periods. Prior to October 1, 2010,
new offer periods began March 16 and Septembef #6ah year and the purchase price was equal todd3Pe fair market value of Ciena
common stock on the last day of each purchasege?igor to October 1, 2010, the ESPP was non-cosgiery for purposes of share-based
compensation expense.

Beginning on October 1, 2010, the sionth offer periods begin on December 21 and Janaf 2ach year with an initial stub period runr
from October 1, 2010 through December 20, 2010.pithrehase price is equal to 85% of the lower offtfiemarket value of Ciena common
stock on the day preceding each offer period otakeday of each offer period. The current ESR#isidered compensatory for purposes of
share-based compensation expense.

The following table is a summary of ESPP afstifor the periods indicated (shares and intringitue in thousands):

Intrinsic value a

ESPP shares availablei  stock issuanc

issuance date
Balance as of October 31, 20 3,38¢
Evergreen provisio 18¢
Issued March 15, 20C (39) $99
Issued September 15, 20 (45 26
Balance as of October 31, 20 3,48¢
Evergreen provisio 83
Issued March 16, 20C (67) 23
Issued September 15, 20 (35 28
Balance as of October 31, 20 3,46¢
Evergreen provisio 10z
Issued March 15, 201 (33 27
Issued September 16, 20 (40 $3C
Balance as of October 31, 20 3,49¢

Share-Based Compensation Expense for Periods Report

The following table summarizes share-basedpamsation expense for the periods indicated (ingaods):

Year ended October 3

2008 2009 2010
Product cost $ 2,95: $ 2,11¢ $ 2,14(
Service cost 1,412 1,59¢ 1,715
Shar-based compensation expense included in cost ofsgaud 4,36¢ 3,71t 3,851
Research and developmt 7,264 10,00¢ 9,31(
Sales and marketir 10,92¢ 10,86: 10,95(
General and administrati\ 8,64¢ 10,38( 9,95¢
Acquisition and integration cos — — 1,342
Shar-based compensation expense included in operatipgnsg 26,83¢ 31,24% 31,56
Shar-based compensation expense capitalized in inventet 227 (529 142
Total shar-based compensatit $31,42¢ $34,43¢ $ 35,56(

As of October 31, 2010, total unrecognized pensation expense was $60.9 million: (i) $5.4 wnilliwhich relates to unvested stock opt
and is expected to be recognized over a weightedage period of 0.9 year; and (ii) $55.5 milliorhieh relates to unvested restricted stock
units and is expected to be recognized over a waigaverage period of 1.6 years.
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(20) SEGMENT AND ENTITY WIDE DISCLOSURES
Segment Reporting

Effective upon the March 19, 2010 completiéiCaena’s acquisition of the MEN Business, Cienarganized its internal organizational
structure and the management of its business. Biehief operating decision maker, its chief exaaubfficer, evaluates performance and
allocates resources based on multiple factorsydtiey) segment profit (loss) information for thelésling product categories:

Packe-Optical Transport —includes optical transport solutions that increaevork capacity and enable more rapid deliverst of
broader mix of high-bandwidth services. These pctalare used by network operators to facilitatectist effective and efficient
transport of voice, video and data traffic in coetworks, as well as regional, metro and accesgomks. Ciena’s principal products in
this segment include its ActivFlex 6500 Packet-GgdtPlatform (ActivFlex 6500); ActivFlex 6110 Mudgrvice Optical Platform
(ActivFlex 6110); ActivSpan 5200 (ActivSpan 5208)tivSpanCommon Photonic Layer (CPL); Optical Msstivice Edge 1000
series (OME 1000); and Optical Metro 3500 (OM 3500jis segment includes sales of Ciena’s ActivS$i200 Advanced Services
Platform (ActivSpan 4200) and its Corestre@igility Optical Transport System (Corestream). Teggment also includes sales from
legacy SONET/SDH products and legacy data netwgrginoducts, as well as certain enterprise-orietratsport solutions that
support storage and LAN extension, interconneatifotiata centers, and virtual private networks. Heigment also includes operating
system software and enhanced software featuresdetablén each of these products. Revenue from #lgisent is included in product
revenue on the Consolidated Statement of Opera

Packe-Optical Switching —includes optical switching platforms that enabléoawated optical infrastructures for the deliveryaokide
variety of enterprise and consumer-oriented netvgerkices. Ciena’s principal products in this seginmeclude its CoreDirectd?
Multiservice Optical Switch; CoreDirector FS andtikElex 5400 family of Reconfigurable Switching $sms. These products inclt
multiservice, multi-protocol switching systems tieahsolidate the functionality of an add/drop npléiker, digital cross-connect and
packet switch into a single, high-capacity intadhg switching system. These products address hetbdre and metro segments of
communications networks and support key managedceeservices, Ethernet/TDM Private Line, Triplayhnd IP services. This
segment also includes sales of operating systetwa@f and enhanced software features embeddedlinoéshese products. Revenue
from this segment is included in product revenu¢henConsolidated Statement of Operatic

Carrier Ethernet Service Delive- includes the ActivEdge 3900 family of service deliy switches and service aggregation switc
as well as the ActivEdge 5100 family. These proglscipport the access and aggregation tiers of cancations networks and have
principally been deployed to support wireless backlinfrastructures and business data servicesldying sophisticated Carrier
Ethernet switching technology, these products delguality of service capabilities, virtual locaéa networking and switching
functions, and carrier-grade operations, admirtistnaand maintenance features. This segment iesltite metro Ethernet routing
switch (MERS) product line and legacy broadbandipots, including the CNX-5 Broadband DSL System X5 which transitions
legacy voice networks to support Internet-basejit@Rphony, video services and DSL. This segmisatiacludes sales of operating
system software and enhanced software featuresdetetién each of these products. Revenue from dgisment is included in product
revenue on the Consolidated Statement of Opera

Software and Service includes Cien's integrated network and service management saftdesigned to automate and simp
network management and operation, while increas@tgork performance and functionality. These sofeasolutions can track
individual services across multiple product suifasilitating planned network maintenance, outagiction and identification of
customers or services affected by network troulilags segment also includes a broad range of ctingidnd support services,
including installation and deployment, maintenasgpport, consulting, network design and trainintyées. Except for revenue from
the software portion of this segment, which isugeld in product revenue, revenue from this segisantluded in services revenue
the Consolidated Statement of Operatic

Reportable segment asset information is not disdid®cause it is not reviewed by the chief opegatiecision maker for purposes of evalue
performance and allocating resources.
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The table below (in thousands, except pergentiata) sets forth Ciena’s segment revenue, imgutie presentation of prior periods to
reflect the change in reportable segments, forgkpective periods:

Fiscal Yeal
2008 %+ 2009 %+ 2010 %+

Revenues

Packe-Optical Transpor $447,54. 49.€ $299,08¢ 45.¢ $ 705,55: 57.C

Packe-Optical Switching 270,45¢ 30.C 165,70! 25.4 112,05¢ 9.1

Carrier Ethernet Service Delive 60,49¢ 6.7 75,12t 11.t 179,08: 14.F

Software and Service 123,94¢ 13.7 112,71: 17. 239,94 19.4
Consolidated revent $902,44¢ 100.C $652,62¢ 100.C $1,236,63! 100.C

* Denotes % of total revent

Segment Profit (Loss)

Segment profit (loss) is determined basechtermal performance measures used by the chietitxewfficer to assess the performance of
each operating segment in a given period. In caiorewith that assessment, the chief executiveceffexcludes the following items: selling
and marketing costs; general and administrativéscasquisition and integration costs; amortizatbimtangible assets; restructuring costs;
goodwill impairment; change in fair value of comfént consideration; interest and other income (im@grest expense, equity investment gains
or losses, gains or losses on extinguishment df deld provisions (benefit) for income taxes.

The table below (in thousands) sets forth €®segment profit (loss) and the reconciliatiomdnsolidated net income (loss) including the
presentation of prior periods to reflect the chaimgeportable operating segments during the resgeperiods:

Segment profit (loss
Packe-Optical Transpor
Packe-Optical Switching
Carrier Ethernet Service Delive
Software and Service

Total segment profit (los:

Other non performance iten

Selling and marketin

General and administrati\

Acquisition and integration cos

Amortization of intangible asse
Restructuring cosl

Goodwill impairment

Change in fair value of contingent considera
Interest and other financial charges,
Realized loss due to impairment of marketable del@stment:
Loss on cost method investme

Gain on extinguishment of de

(Provision) benefit for income tax

Consolidated net income (los

Fiscal Yeal

2008 2009 2010
$ 110,90¢ $ 21,53t $ 69,31¢
151,08¢ 60,30: 15,66:
(17,762 (9,575 28,74
31,67¢ 22,24¢ 56,15:
275,90« 94,511 169,87!
(152,019 (134,52) (193,51
(68,639 (47,509 (102,69:)
— — (101,379
(32,269 (24,826 (99,407
(1,110 (11,207 (8,519
— (455,67Y) —
— — 13,801
23,83t 2,081 (14,709
(5,107 — —
= (5,326 =
932 — 4,94¢
(2,645 1,324 (1,947
$ 38,89 $(581,15) $(333,519)
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Entity Wide Reportini

The following table reflects Ciena’s geograpttistribution of revenue based on the locatiothefpurchaser, with any country accounting
for greater than 10% of total revenue in the pespecifically identified. Revenue attributable &ographic regions outside of the United St
and the United Kingdom is reflected as “Other In&ional” revenue. For the periods below, Cien@&sgyaphic distribution of revenue was as
follows (in thousands, except percentage data):

Fiscal Yeal
2008 %* 2009 %* 2010 %*
United State: $590,86¢ 65.5 $419,40! 64.5 $ 744,23 60.2
United Kingdom 149,42¢ 16.5 81,78 12.t n/e —
Other Internatione 162,15¢ 18.C 151,44( 23.2 492,40 39.¢
Total. $902,44t 100.C $652,62¢ 100.( $1,236,63! 100.(

n/a Denotes revenue representing less than 10% ofrtahue for the peric
* Denotes % of total revent

The following table reflects Ciersageographic distribution of equipment, furniturel dixtures, with any country accounting for greatean
10% of total equipment, furniture and fixtures dfieally identified. Equipment, furniture and fixtes attributable to geographic regions out
of the United States and Canada are reflected dsefdnternational.” For the periods below, Ciengéographic distribution of equipment,
furniture and fixtures was as follows (in thousaredgept percentage data):

October 31
2009 %+ 2010 %+
United State: $47,87¢ 77.2 $ 63,67¢ 52.¢
Canade n/e — 45,10: 37.5
Other Internatione 13,99: 22.¢ 11,51¢ 9.€
Total $61,86¢ 100.C $120,29:- 100.(

n/a Denotes equipment, furniture and fixtures reprasgréss than 10% of total equipment, furniture &rtlires
* Denotes % of total equipment, furniture and fixa

For the periods below, customers accountingffdeast 10% of Ciena’s revenue were as folldwshpusands, except percentage data):

Fiscal Yeal
2008 %* 2009 %* 2010 %*
AT&T $227,73 25.2 $128,23: 19.€ $267,42. 21.€
BT 113,98: 12.€ n/e — n/e —
Total $341,71¢ 37.¢ $128,23: 19.€ $267,42: 21.€

n/a Denotes revenue representing less than 10% ofretahue for the peric
* Denotes % of total revent

(21) OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Effective March 1, 2010, Ciena has a Definett@bution Pension Plan that covers all of its &#abased employees who are not part ¢
excluded group. Total contributions (employee amgleyer) cannot exceed the lesser of 18% of pagiti earnings and an annual dollar limit
($22,450 CAD for 2010). This plan includes a regdiemployer contribution of 1% for all participaatsd a 50% matching of participant
contributions up to a total annual maximum of $8,@AD per employee. During fiscal 2010, Ciena mandching contributions of
approximately $2.5 million.

Ciena has a 401(k) defined contribution prsifiaring plan. The plan covers all U.S. based eyegl® who are not part of an excluded group.
Participants may contribute up to 60% of pre-tampensation, subject to certain limitations. Effeetlanuary 1, 2007, the plan includes an
employer matching contribution equal to 50% offing 6% an employee contributes each pay periogh&may also make discretionary
annual profit contributions up to the IRS reguldiedt. Ciena has made no profit sharing contribng to date. During fiscal 2008, fiscal 2009,
and fiscal 2010, Ciena made matching contributafrepproximately $3.0 million, $3.2 million and #3nillion, respectively.
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(22) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Foreign Tax Contingencie

Ciena has received assessment notices frodélian tax authorities asserting deficienciepagments between 2001 and 2005 related
primarily to income taxes and import taxes andaefutCiena has filed judicial petitions appealingsthassessments. As of October 31, 200!
2010, Ciena had accrued liabilities of $1.1 milleomd $1.4 million, respectively, related to thesetmgencies, which are reported as a
component of other current accrued liabilities.oh®ctober 31, 2010, Ciena estimates that it cbel@xposed to possible losses of up to $5.8
million, for which it has not accrued liabilitie€iena has not accrued the additional income tdslilis because it does not believe that such
losses are more likely than not to be incurredn&ieas not accrued the additional import taxesdanids because it does not believe the
incurrence of such losses are probable. Cienarogegito evaluate the likelihood of probable andaaably possible losses, if any, related to
these assessments. As a result, future increaskesiases to accrued liabilities may be necessatwvill be recorded in the period when such
amounts are estimable and more likely than notiffoome taxes) or probable (for non-income taxes).

In addition to the matters described aboven€iis subject to various tax liabilities arisinghe ordinary course of business. Ciena does not
expect that the ultimate settlement of these liidsl will have a material effect on its resultsopierations, financial position or cash flows.
Operating Lease Commitments

Ciena has certain minimum obligations under-ocancelable operating leases expiring on vari@aissdthrough 2020 for equipment and
facilities. Future annual minimum rental commitreeanhder non-cancelable operating leases at OcBIh&@010 are as follows (in thousands):

Year ended October 3

2011 $ 28,11¢
2012 22,89¢
2013 19,99:
2014 15,67
2015 12,58¢
Thereaftel 41,067
Total $140,34(

Rental expense for fiscal 2008, fiscal 2008@| fiscal 2010 was approximately $12.4 million, Flaillion and $22.2 million, respectively.
In addition, Ciena paid approximately $1.3 milli§&2.2 million and $2.2 million during fiscal 2008scal 2009 and fiscal 2010, respectively,
related to rent costs for restructured facilitiad anfavorable lease commitments, which were ofigainst Ciena’s restructuring liabilities and
unfavorable lease obligations. The amount for dpegdease commitments above does not include amag, taxes, maintenance and other
costs required by the applicable operating leaBes@& costs are variable and are not expected ®amaterial impact.

Purchase Commitments with Contract Manufacturers &appliers

As of October 31, 2010, Ciena has purchasendonents of $283.7 million. Purchase commitmentateeto purchase order obligations to
contract manufacturers and component supplierif@ntory. In certain instances, Ciena is permittedancel, reschedule or adjust these
orders. Consequently, only a portion of the ameepobrted as purchase commitments relates to fiomsaancelable and unconditional
obligations.

Litigation

On May 29, 2008, Graywire, LLC filed angplaint in the United States District Court for tRerthern District of Georgia against Ciena
and four other defendants, alleging, among othagth that certain of the parties’ products inferd.S. Patent 6,542,673 (the “673 Patent”),
relating to an identifier system and componentoftiical assemblies. The complaint, which seeksictjve relief and damages, was served
upon Ciena on January 20, 2009. Ciena filed an eanswthe complaint and counterclaims against Giayan March 26, 2009, and an
amended answer and counterclaims on April 17, 2009April 27, 2009, Ciena and certain other defetsifiled an application for inter partes
reexamination of the ‘673 Patent with the U.S. Rlaéend Trademark Office (the “PTO'Qn the same date, Ciena and the other defendéed
a motion to stay the case pending reexaminatiail @f the patents-in-suit. On July 17, 2009, tietritt court granted the defendants’ motion
to stay the case. On July 23, 2009, the PTO grahtdefendants’ application for reexamination wéhpect to certain claims of the ‘673
Patent. Ciena believes that it has valid deferséset lawsuit and intends to defend it vigorouslyhie event the stay of the case is lifted.
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As a result of our June 2002 merger with OMst8ms Corp., we became a defendant in a secuwitiss action lawsuit filed in the United
States District Court for the Southern DistrictN#w York in August 2001. The complaint named ONirtain former ONI officers, and certain
underwriters of ONI’s initial public offering (IPQJs defendants, and alleges, among other thinggsthte underwriter defendants violated the
securities laws by failing to disclose alleged cemgation arrangements (such as undisclosed conomsssi stock stabilization practices) in
ONI's registration statement and by engaging inimaative practices to artificially inflate ONI'seck price after the IPO. The complaint also
alleges that ONI and the named former officersated the securities laws by failing to discloseuhderwriters’ alleged compensation
arrangements and manipulative practices. No spemifiount of damages has been claimed. Similar @ntplhave been filed against more
than 300 other issuers that have had initial putffierings since 1998, and all of these actionsHaeen included in a single coordinated
proceeding. The former ONI officers have been dised from the action without prejudice. In July 20@llowing mediated settlement
negotiations, the plaintiffs, the issuer defenddimsluding Ciena), and their insurers entered mgettlement agreement. The settlement
agreement did not require Ciena to pay any amawdnd the settlement or to make any other paymetitde the partial settlement was
pending approval, the plaintiffs continued to liig their cases against the underwriter defendem@ctober 2004, the district court certified a
class with respect to the Section 10(b) claimsxrifecus cases’elected out of all of the consolidated cases, Wwbases did not include Cie
and which decision was appealed by the underwdiéndants to the U.S. Court of Appeals for theoSddCircuit. On February 15, 2005, the
district court granted the motion for preliminagypaoval of the settlement agreement, subject tairemodifications, and on August 31, 2005,
the district court issued a preliminary order apprg the revised stipulated settlement agreememtDE€cember 5, 2006, the U.S. Court of
Appeals for the Second Circuit vacated the distrietrt’s grant of class certification in the sixiés cases. On April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit
denied plaintiffs’ petition for rehearing. In light the Second Circuit’ decision, the parties agreed that the settlepwarid not be approved. (
June 25, 2007, the district court approved a dijun filed by the plaintiffs and the issuer defant$ terminating the proposed settlement. On
August 14, 2007, the plaintiffs filed second amehdemplaints against the defendants in the sixd@ases. On September 27, 2007, the
plaintiffs filed a motion for class certificatiorabed on their amended complaints and allegationdM&ch 26, 2008, the district court denied
motions to dismiss the second amended complaiets iy the defendants in the six focus cases, éxaef Section 11 claims raised by those
plaintiffs who sold their securities for a pricedgrcess of the initial offering price and those vpluochased outside the previously certified class
period. Briefing on the plaintiffs’ motion for clagertification in the focus cases was completdday 2008. That motion was withdrawn
without prejudice on October 10, 2008. On ApriPR09, a stipulation and agreement of settlementdesi the plaintiffs, issuer defendants and
underwriter defendants was submitted to the Caurpfeliminary approval. The Court granted theqtiffis’ motion for preliminary approval
and preliminarily certified the settlement classaslune 10, 2009. The settlement fairness hearasgheld on September 10, 2009. On
October 6, 2009, the Court entered an opinion grgriinal approval to the settlement and directimgt the Clerk of the Court close these
actions. Notices of appeal of the opinion granfingl approval have been filed. Due to the inherartertainties of litigation and because the
settlement remains subject to appeal, the ultimateome of the matter is uncertain.

In addition to the matters described aboveng€iis subject to various legal proceedings, clantslitigation arising in the ordinary course
business. Ciena does not expect that the ultintets ¢o resolve these matters will have a mateffatt on its results of operations, financial
position or cash flows.

(23) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Ciena performed an evaluation of events thathoccurred subsequent to the end of its fisal §reough the date that the consolidated
financial statements were issued. Except as desthblow, there have been no subsequent eventsathated that would require disclosure
the consolidated financial statements.

Carling Lease

On December 15, 2010, in connection with e sf its Carling campus to Publics Works and Gorent Services Canada (PWGSC),
Nortel notified Ciena of the exercise of its eadymination rights with respect to the Carling kaBhe effect of this early termination elect
is the shortening of the Carling lease term fromytears to five years. In connection with this ficdition, Ciena received a refund of
$33.5 million from the escrowed cash considera@iena paid as part of the MEN Acquisition. Thislg&ermination of the Carling lease
results in a reduction of approximately $38.5 roiilito the aggregate amount relating to Ciena’smmima obligations under non-cancelable
operating leases at October 31, 2010 set forthoite 142 above. Ciena recorded in the first quartéiscal 2011 a $3.3 million gain associated
with the change in fair value of this contingenhsideration based on the final consideration rexkiv

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéinting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedure
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by thfgorg we carried out an evaluation under the supienvand with the participation of
management, including our Chief Executive Officed &hief Financial Officer, of our disclosure cai$rand procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the SecuEtelange Act of 1934, as amended). Based uporvhisiation, our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded tloatr disclosure controls and procedures were effeas of the end of the period covered by
this report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal comtver financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13¢fland 15d-15(f) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) during the necsintly completed fiscal quarter that has matgrifflected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over finaacreporting.

As described elsewhere in this report, we medithe MEN Business on March 19, 2010. We atbénprocess of integrating the MEN
Business and we currently rely on services provittedugh an affiliate of Nortel under a transitiggrvices agreement to support, among other
purposes, certain control activities of the MEN Bass. Such services commenced during our secscal fjuarter and initially impacted our
internal controls over financial reporting duridmgat period. As a result, we have not fully evaldates internal control over financial reporting
of certain activities of the MEN Business. Speadifiig, as permitted by SEC rules and regulationsexauded from our evaluation of the
effectiveness of the internal control over finahcggporting from our Annual Report on Form 10-K faur fiscal year ended October 31, 2010
those activities of the MEN Business being perfafraeder the transition service agreement. The gsogintegrating the MEN Business into
our evaluation of internal control over financiaporting may result in future changes to our irdeoontrol over financial reporting. The MEN
Business will be part of our evaluation of the efifieness of internal control over financial repagtin our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
our fiscal year ending October 31, 2011, in whighart we will be initially required to include th@EN Business in our annual assessment.

Report of Management on Internal Control Over Finarcial Reporting

The management of Ciena Corporation is resplenfor establishing and maintaining adequaterivdkecontrol over financial reporting (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) underSleeurities Exchange Act of 1934).

The internal control over financial reportiagCiena Corporation was designed to provide regsierassurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantteagicounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. Internal contretofinancial reporting includes those policies @nolcedures that:

. pertain to the maintenance of records that, &seaable detail, accurately and fairly reflecttfamsactions and dispositions of the
assets of Ciena Corporatic

. provide reasonable assurance that transactionmree@oeded as necessary to permit preparation ofidiadstatements in accordar
with accounting principles generally accepted & thnited States of Americ

. provide reasonable assurance that receipts grehditures of Ciena Corporation are being made ionccordance with authorization
of management and directors of Ciena Corporatind:

. provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, esalisposition of assets tr
could have a material effect on the consolidatedrfcial statement

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements.

Management of Ciena Corporation assessedfiwieeness of the company’s internal control ofileancial reporting as of October 31,
2010. Management based this assessment on cfaee#ective internal control over financial regiog described in “Internal Control —
Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee afr§pring Organizations of the Treadway CommisdBased on this assessment,
management determined that, as of October 31, Z0i#ha Corporation maintained effective internaitool over financial reporting.
Management reviewed the results of its assessmiénthve Audit Committee of our Board of Directors.

In accordance with guidance issued by the SB@panies are permitted to exclude acquisitioos ftheir assessment of internal controls
over financial reporting during the year of the gisgion while integrating the acquired operatioM&nagement’s evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting excluded certain actistigf the MEN Business, which Ciena Corporation &eguon March 19, 2010. The MEN
Business accounted for $530.9 million, or 43% ¢diltcevenue, for the year ended October 31, 2008.pbrtion of the MEN Business
excluded for purposes of managemsmvaluation of internal control over financial ogjing represented approximately $427.8 million20%6
of total assets as of October 31, 2010.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent exgidtpublic accounting firm, who audited and repdiin the consolidated financial
statements of Ciena Corporation included in thisuahreport, has also audited the effectivenegdiafia Corporation’s internal control over
financial reporting as of October 31, 2010, asesta its report appearing under Item 8 of Paof lthis annual report.

/s/ Gary B. Smitt /s/ James E. Moylan, .

Gary B. Smitt James E. Moylan, J

President and Chief Executive Offic Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
December 22, 201 December 22, 201
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.
PART llI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and CorpoeaGovernance

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of FoBrK], information relating to Ciena’directors and executive officers is set fortRart | of this
annual report under the caption Item 1. “Businessrediors and Executive Officers.”

Additional information concerning our Audit Comnei&t and regarding compliance with Section 16(ahefixchange Act responsive to t
item is incorporated herein by reference to CiedaTnitive proxy statement with respect to our 2&nnual Meeting of Stockholders to be
filed with the SEC within 120 days after the endhd# fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K.

As part of our system of corporate governance board of directors has adopted a code of ®that is specifically applicable to our chief
executive officer and senior financial officers.igode of Ethics for Senior Financial Officersvedl as our Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics, applicable to all directors, officers amlpdoyees, are available on the corporate governpage of our web site at
http://www.ciena.com We intend to satisfy any disclosure requiremertteu Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendmandit waiver
from, a provision of the Code of Ethics for Serfiimancial Officers, by posting such informationaur web site at the address above.

Item 11. Executive Compensatic

Information responsive to this item is incaigted herein by reference to Ciena’s definitivexgrstatement with respect to our 2011 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEGhivi 120 days after the end of the fiscal year cegdy this Form 10-K.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiaM®ers and Management and Related Stockholder Mat!

Information responsive to this item is incaigted herein by reference to Ciena’s definitivexgrstatement with respect to our 2011 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEGhiv 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ceddy this Form 10-K.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trandaas, and Director Independenc

Information responsive to this item is incaigted herein by reference to Ciena’s definitivexgrstatement with respect to our 2011 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEGhiv 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ceddy this Form 10-K.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servic

Information responsive to this item is incaigted herein by reference to Ciena’s definitivexgrstatement with respect to our 2011 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the SEGhivi 120 days after the end of the fiscal year ceddy this Form 10-K.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul
(@) 1. The information required by this item islirded in Item 8 of Part Il of this annual rept
2. The information required by this item is includedtem 8 of Part Il of this annual repc

3.  Exhibits: See Index to Exhibits, which isanporated by reference in this Item. The Exhiliéted in the accompanying Index to
Exhibits are filed or incorporated by referencgad of this annual repol

(b) Exhibits. See Index to Exhibits, which isangorated by reference in this Item. The Exhibiggel in the accompanying Index to Exhibits
are filed or incorporated by reference as parhisf &annual repor

(c) Not applicable
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, tlegiBtrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduolp authorized on the 22nd day of December 2010.

Ciena Corporatiol

By: /s/ Gary B. Smith

Gary B. Smith

President, Chief Executive Officer and Direct

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secuitiehange Act of 1934, this report has been sidnebolw by the following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on theiddtcated.

Signatures

/s/ Patrick H. Nettles, Ph.D.

Patrick H. Nettles, Ph.L

/s/ Gary B. Smitt

Gary B. Smith
(Principal Executive Officer

/sl James E. Moylan, .

James E. Moylan, Jr.
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/s/ Andrew C. Petril

Andrew C. Petrik
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Stephen P. Bradley, Ph.
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Harvey B. Casl

/s/ Bruce L. Claflin

Bruce L. Claflin

/s/ Lawton W. Fitt

Lawton W. Fitt

/s/ Patrick T. Gallaghe

Patrick T. Gallaghe

/s/ Judith M. O'Brien

Judith M. C' Brien

/s/ Michael J. Rown

Michael J. Rowny

Title

Executive Chairman of the Board of
Directors

President, Chief Executive Officer a

Director

Sr. Vice President, Finance and Ct
Financial Officer

Vice President, Controlle

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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8-K (00C-21969)
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Represents management contract or compensatorypptamangemer

In accordance with Regulation S-T, XBRL (Exséole Business Reporting Language) related infoiomdh Exhibit No. (101) to this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q shall be deemed félmed” and not “filed” for purposes of Section f&le Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, or otherwise subject to thditiabiof that section, and shall not be incorpeddby reference into any registration
statement pursuant to the Securities Act of 1983 mendec

Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-Ka&i@ schedules and exhibits referenced in theetabtontents have been omitted. Ciena
hereby agrees to furnish supplementally a copyngfamitted exhibit or schedule to the SEC upon esgun addition, representations
and warranties included in these asset sale agrésnas amended, were made by the parties to atkearin connection with a
negotiated transaction. These representations andmties were made as of specific dates, onlpdioposes of these agreements and for
the benefit of the parties thereto. These reprasiens and warranties were subject to importaneptions and limitations agreed upon
the parties, including being qualified by confidahtisclosures, made for the purposes of allogationtractual risk between the parties
rather than establishing these matters as facteseragreements are filed with this report onlyrtivigle investors with information
regarding its terms and conditions, and not to igi®any other factual information regarding Cienamy other party thereto.
Accordingly, investors should not rely on the reqgmtations and warranties contained in these agmasor any description thereof as
characterizations of the actual state of factsooddion of any party, its subsidiaries or affigat The information in these agreements
should be considered together with C''s public reports filed with the SE

Certain portions of these documents have besttenl based on a request for confidential treatraebmitted to the SEC. The non-public
information that has been omitted from these docuskas been separately filed with the SEC. Eadficted portion of these documents
is indicated by a “[*]” and is subject to the requéor confidential treatment submitted to the SERe redacted information is



confidential information of the Registral
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AMENDED AND RESTATED CIENA CORPORATION
2003 EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The Board of Directors of Ciena Corporatidre(tCompany”) has adopted this Amended and Res2168 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(the “Plan”) to enable eligible employees of ther@any and its participating Affiliates (as defingelow), through payroll deductions, to
purchase shares of the Company’s common stockigbae $0.01 per share (the “Common Stock”). The Bdor the benefit of the employees
of the Company and any participating Affiliates.€Tlan is intended to benefit the Company by irginggthe employees’ interest in the
Company’s growth and success and encouraging eegsday remain in the employ of the Company oratsigpating Affiliates. The
provisions of the Plan are set forth below:

1. SHARES SUBJECT TO THE PLAN.

Subject to adjustment as provided in Sect@®b&ow, the aggregate number of shares of Comrtark $hat may be made available for
purchase by participating employees under the BI&571,428 shares; provided, that, beginning eadinber 31, 2005 and on each
December 31 thereafter (the “Determination Datejdlshall be added to the Plan an additional 5Blsthdres; and provided further that, the
number of shares so added on the Determination &stie year shall be reduced to the extent necesatrthe total number of shares available
for purchase under the Plan shall not at any tireeed 3,571,428 shares. Share amounts in Sectibth& Plan have been adjusted to reflect
the Company’s 1-for-7 reverse stock split on Sepgm22, 2006. The shares issuable under the Plgnimtoe discretion of the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”), be autheddut unissued shares, treasury shares or issdesuéstanding shares that are purchased
in the open market.

2. ADMINISTRATION.
The Plan shall be administered under the timeof the Compensation Committee of the Board (thommittee”).No member of the Boa
or the Committee shall be liable for any actiometermination made in good faith with respect & fan.

3. INTERPRETATION.

It is intended that the Plan will meet theuiegments for an “employee stock purchase plamder Section 423 of the Internal Revenue C
of 1986 (the “Code”), and it is to be so applied &mterpreted. Subject to the express provisiorth@Plan, the Committee shall have authority
to interpret the Plan, to prescribe, amend andndsales relating to it, and to make all otheredgtinations necessary or advisable in
administering the Plan, all of which determinatiovill be final and binding upon all persons.

4. ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES.

Any employee of the Company and its designafilates as determined by the Board of Directoray participate in the Plan, except the
following, who are ineligible to participate:
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(a) an employee who has been employed by the Compaamy of its participating Affiliates for leskan three months as of the beginning of
an Offering Period (as defined in Section 7 beld);an employee whose customary employment itefsr than five months in any calendar
year; (c) an employee whose customary employmdasssthan 21 hours per week; and (d) an employee after exercising his or her rigt

to purchase shares under the Plan, would own sh&f@smmon Stock (including shares that may be medwnder any outstanding options)
representing five percent or more of the total ciomdh voting power of all classes of stock of then®any. The term “participating Affiliate”
means any company or other trade or businesssaasubsidiary of the Company (determined in acuwrd with the principles of Sections 424
(e) and (f) of the Code and the regulations thedtedn The Board may at any time in its sole disoretif it deems it advisable to do so,
terminate the participation of the employees o#ipular participating Affiliate. The Committee gnat any time in its sole discretion, if it
deems it advisable to do so, restrict the parttmpeof officers, highly compensated employeesumhsother employees whose principal duties
consist of supervising the work of other employees.

5. PARTICIPATION IN THE PLAN.

An eligible employee may become a particigpgmployee in the Plan by completing an electiopaicipate in the Plan on a form
provided by the Company and submitting that forntheoBenefits Department of the Company. The foiithauthorize payroll deductions (as
provided in Section 6 below) and authorize the pase of shares of Common Stock for the employee’suant in accordance with the terms of
the Plan. Enrollment will become effective upon fingt day of the first Offering Period. Enrollmeintthis Plan is limited to one Offering
Period at a time.

6. PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS.

At the time an eligible employee submits hiser election to participate in the Plan (as pilediin Section 5 above), the employee shall
elect to have deductions made from his or her payach pay day following his or her enrolimenthie Plan, and for as long as he or she shall
participate in the Plan. The Committee shall hagerdtion to establish limitations on the amoun&o§ such deductions. As determined by the
Committee, such deductions may be either as a p@e or as a maximum dollar amount, but in eitlase such deductions shall not exceed
ten percent (10%) of such employee’s base saltogadile to the Offering Period. The deductions wéicredited to the participating
employee’s account under the Plan. An employee moaguring any Offering Period change his or heoamt or percentage of payroll
deduction for that Offering Period, nor may an emypk withdraw any contributed funds, other thaadoordance with Sections 15 through 20
below.

7. RECORD OF PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS.

The Company and participating Affiliates wiluse to be maintained a record of amounts crettitedch participating employee
authorizing a payroll deduction pursuant to
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Section 6. The Company will not credit interesttlo@ balance of the employees’ accounts during fifieri®g Period.

8. OFFERING AND PURCHASE PERIODS.
The Offering Periods and Purchase Period$ Bhaletermined by the Committee.

9. RIGHTS TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK; PURCHASE PRICE.

Rights to purchase shares of Common Stockbsilieemed granted to participating employees #gedirst trading day of each Offering
Period. The purchase price of each share of ConBtack (the “Purchase Priceshall be the lesser of 85 percent of the fair mavk&ie of the
Common Stock (i) on the trading day immediatelycpding the first day of the Offering Period or i) the last trading day of the Purchase
Period, unless the Purchase Price is otherwisblettad by the Committe@rovidedthat in no event shall the Purchase Price be hessthe
amount determined pursuant to subparagraphs (ifigrabove, or the par value of the Common Stook purposes of the Plan, “fair market
value” means the value of each share of CommorkStalgject to the Plan determined as follows: itlo& determination date the shares of
Common Stock are listed on an established natimnidgional stock exchange, are admitted to qumotain the National Association of
Securities Dealers Automated Quotation Systemrepablicly traded on an established securitieketathe fair market value of the shares of
Common Stock shall be the closing price of the ehaf Common Stock on such exchange or in suchehéhe exchange designated by the
Board if there is more than one such exchange dketjeon the determination date (or if there issmoh reported closing price, the fair market
value shall be the mean between the highest bidoavekt asked prices or between the high and léevéces on such trading day) or, if no
sale of the shares of Common Stock is reporteddoh trading day, on the next preceding day on lwaity sale shall have been reported. |
shares of Common Stock are not listed on such enagge, quoted on such System or traded on sudrkemfair market value shall be
determined by the Board in good faith.

10. TIMING OF PURCHASE; PURCHASE LIMITATION.

Unless a participating employee has givenrpridgtten notice terminating such employee’s p@pation in the Plan, or the employee’s
participation in the Plan has otherwise been teasithas provided in Sections 16 through 20 belash @mployee will be deemed to have
exercised automatically his or her right to pureh@@mmon Stock on the last trading day of the RagelPeriod (except as provided in
Section 15 below) for the number of shares of Com®tmck which the accumulated funds in the emplsyaecount at that time will purchase
at the Purchase Price, subject to the participattynstment provided for in Section 14 below anjett to adjustment under Section 26 bel
Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan.emaployee may purchase in any one Offering Pennablim any one calendar year under
Plan and all other “employee stock purchase plah#fie Company and its participating Affiliates sbmof Common Stock having an aggre:
fair market value in excess of $25,000, determiedf the last trading date preceding the OffeRrgod as to shares
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purchased during such period. Notwithstanding ghgroprovision of the Plan, the Committee may dgecimaximum number of shares of
Common Stock that may be purchased by any partingpamployee for such Offering Period and/or a imasn aggregate number of share
Common Stock that may be purchased by all particip@employees for such Offering Period. Effectiygon the last trading day of the
Purchase Period, a participating employee will beea stockholder with respect to the shares puechdgring such period, and will thereuy
have all dividend, voting and other ownership rigincident thereto. Notwithstanding the foregoimg,shares shall be sold pursuant to the Plan
unless the Plan is approved by the Company’s stidkhs in accordance with Section 25 below.

11. ISSUANCE OF STOCK CERTIFICATES.

As of the last trading day of the Purchaséd@lea participating employee will be credited witle number of shares of Common Stock
purchased for his or her account under the Plaimglsuch Offering Period. Shares purchased un@ePtan will be held in the custody of an
agent (the “Agent”) appointed by the Committee. Bgent may hold the shares purchased under theifPEtock certificates in nominee
names and may commingle shares held in its custodysingle account or stock certificate withowgritification as to individual participating
employees. A participating employee may, at angtiollowing his or her purchase of shares undePthe and after the expiration of the
qualifying holding period, by written notice institithe Agent to have all or part of such sharesstegd in the participating employee’s own
name and have the stock certificate deliveredécethployee.

12. WITHHOLDING OF TAXES.

To the extent that a participating employesdizes ordinary income in connection with a salether transfer of any shares of Common
Stock purchased under the Plan, the Company méald amounts needed to cover such taxes from aypyents otherwise due and owiny
the participating employee or from shares that wadherwise be issued to the participating empldyereunder. Any participating employee
who sells or otherwise transfers shares purchaseeruhe Plan within two years after the beginrahthe Offering Period in which the shares
were purchased must within 30 days of such tramsféfy the Payroll Department of the Company iriting of such transfer.

13. ACCOUNT STATEMENTS.

The Company will cause the Agent to deliveeagh participating employee a statement for eacbh@se Period during which the emplc
purchases Common Stock under the Plan, but no frexfeently than every six months, reflecting theoant of payroll deductions during the
Purchase Period, the number of shares purchaséuef@employee’s account, the price per share ofllaees purchased for the employee’s
account and the number of shares held for the graple account at the end of the Purchase Period.
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14. PARTICIPATION ADJUSTMENT.

If in any Purchase Period the number of unsbltes that may be made available for purchaserhe Plan pursuant to Section 1 above
(or, as determined by the Committee, pursuant ydiamtation on the aggregate number of shareshmsable in any Offering Period) is
insufficient to permit exercise of all rights deeatrexercised by all participating employees pursta@ection 9 above, a participation
adjustment will be made, and the number of shaneshasable by all participating employees will bduced proportionately. Any funds then
remaining in a participating employee’s accountra$tuch exercise will be refunded to the employee.

15. CHANGES IN ELECTIONS TO PURCHASE.

(a) A participating employee may, at any tipnier to the fifth business day before the last dathe Purchase Period, by written notice to
the Company, direct the Company to cease payrdlict@ns (or, if the payment for shares is beinglethrough periodic cash payments,
notify the Company that such payments will be tamated), in accordance with the following alternesiv

(i) The employee’s option to purchasdldtereduced to the number of shares which magusehased, as of the last day of the Purchast
Period, with the amount then credited to the enmgééy account; or

(i) Withdraw the amount in such emplogegccount and terminate such employee’s optiquutchase.

(b) Any participating employee may decreasedniher payroll deduction or periodic cash paymeiottake effect as soon as
administratively practicable by delivering to therffpany a new form regarding election to participatde Plan under Section 5 above.

(c) Any participating employee may increasedri her payroll deduction or periodic cash paymetiottake effect on the first day of the next
following Offering Period by delivering to the Comany a new form regarding election to participatéhim Plan under Section 5 above.
16. TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT.

In the event a participating employee voluitdeaves the employ of the Company or a partitgigpAffiliate, otherwise than by retirement
under a plan of the Company or a participating listie, or is terminated by the Company prior to léet day of the Purchase Period, the
amount in the employee’s account will be distrildudad the employee’s option to purchase will teateén

17. RETIREMENT.

In the event a participating employee whodragption to purchase shares leaves the empldyedCbompany or a participating Affiliate
because of retirement under a plan of the




Company or a participating Affiliate the participreg employee may elect, within 60 days after thie dd such retirement or termination, but
no event, later than the end of the current PueRasiod, one of the following alternatives:

(a) The employee’s option to purchase shateldeiced to the number of shares which may be psezh as of the last day of the Purchase
Period, with the amount then credited to the emgédy account; or

(b) Withdraw the amount in such employee’soaict and terminate such employee’s option to pueeha

In the event the participating employee dagtsmake an election within the aforesaid 60-dayqokthe or she will be deemed to have
elected subsection 17(b) above.

18. LAY-OFF, AUTHORIZED LEAVE OF ABSENCE OR DISABIL ITY.

Payroll deductions for shares for which aipgrating employee has an option to purchase magubpended during any period of absenc
the employee from work due to lay-off, authorizedve of absence or disability or, if the employeelscts, periodic payments for such shares
may continue to be made in cash.

If such employee returns to active servicemta the last day of the Purchase Period, the @yepls payroll deductions will be resumed and
if said employee did not make periodic cash paysdating the employee’s period of absence, the @yepl shall, by written notice to the
Company’s Payroll Department within 10 days after émployee’s return to active service, but narlgtan the last day of the Purchase
Period, elect one of the following alternatives:

(a) The employee’s option to purchase shateldeiced to the number of shares that can be psgdhaith the amount, if any, then credited
to the employee’s account plus the aggregate amibamty, of all payroll deductions to be made tadter; or

(b) Withdraw the amount in the employee’s acta@and terminate the employee’s option to purchase

A participating employee on lay-off, authodZeave of absence or disability on the last dathefPurchase Period shall deliver written
notice to his or her employer on or before the dist of the Purchase Period, electing one of ttegredtives provided in the foregoing clauses
(a) or (b) of this Section 18. If any employeedadd deliver such written notice within 10 daysathe employes'return to active service or
the last day of the Purchase Period, whicheveauigee, the employee shall be deemed to have elestibsection 18(b) above.

If the period of a participating employee’g-laff, authorized leave of absence or disabilitglsterminate on or before the last day of the
Purchase Period, and the employee shall not resotivee employment with the Company or a participp#ffiliate, the employee shall
receive a distribution in accordance with the ps@ris of Section 17 of this Plan.
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19. DEATH.

In the event of the death of a participatingpioyee while the employee’s option to purchaseeshis in effect, the legal representatives of
such employee may, within 60 days after the emm@sydeath (but no later than the last day of thelfase Period) by written notice to the
Company or participating Affiliate, elect one oétfollowing alternatives:

(a) The employee’s option to purchase shateldeiced to the number of shares which may be psezh as of the last day of the Purchase
Period, with the amount then credited to the emgédy account; or

(b) Withdraw the amount in such employee’soaict and terminate such employee’s option to pueeha

In the event the legal representatives of smployee fail to deliver such written notice te tiompany or participating Affiliate within the
prescribed period, the election to purchase stsdra@isterminate and the amount, then crediteddcethployee’s account shall be paid to such
legal representatives.

20. TERMINATION OF PARTICIPATION.

A participating employee will be refunded mlbneys in his or her account, and his or her pp&iion in the Plan will be terminated if eitt
(a) the Board elects to terminate the Plan as geavin Section 25 below, or (b) the employee cetsbs eligible to participate in the Plan
under Section 4 above. As soon as practicableviodip termination of an employee’s participatiortlie Plan, the Company will deliver to the
employee a check representing the amount in théogegg's account and a stock certificate represgritie number of whole shares held in the
employee’s account. Once terminated, participatiay not be reinstated for the then current OffeRegiod, but, if otherwise eligible, the
employee may elect to participate in any subseqOéeting Period.

21. ASSIGNMENT.

No participating employee may assign his arrtghts to purchase shares of Common Stock utePtan, whether voluntarily, by
operation of law or otherwise. Any payment of caslissuance of shares of Common Stock under therRéy be made only to the
participating employee (or, in the event of the lyee’s death, to the employee’s estate). Onceck stertificate has been issued to the
employee or for his or her account, such certiigaty be assigned the same as any other stockceeeti

22. APPLICATION OF FUNDS.

All funds received or held by the Company uritie Plan shall be deposited with the Agent ferabcount of the participating employees.
Participating employees’ accounts will not be sggted.




23. NO RIGHT TO CONTINUED EMPLOYMENT.

Neither the Plan nor any right to purchase @am Stock under the Plan confers upon any emplaggeight to continued employment w
the Company or any of its participating Affiliatemr will an employee’s participation in the Plastrict or interfere in any way with the right
of the Company or any of its participating Affiket to terminate the employee’s employment at ang.ti

24. AMENDMENT OF PLAN.

The Board may, at any time, amend the Plaminrespect (including an increase in the percensagcified in Section 9 above used in
calculating the Purchase Price). An amendmentadrtan shall be contingent on approval of the stolders of the Company only to the ext
required by applicable law, regulations or ruleasprovided by the Board.

25. EFFECTIVE DATE; TERM AND TERMINATION OF THE PLA N.

The Plan shall be effective as of the datadufption by the Board, which date is set forth elsubject to approval of the Plan by a majc
of the votes present and entitled to vote at a Halgd meeting of the shareholders of the Compamyhath a quorum representing a majority of
all outstanding voting stock is present, eithepénson or by proxy; provided, howevehat upon approval of the Plan by the shareholokers
the Company as set forth above, all rights to pasetshares granted under the Plan on or afteffdatiee date shall be fully effective as if the
shareholders of the Company had approved the Plaineceffective date. If the shareholders failgprave the Plan on or before one year after
the effective date, the Plan shall terminate, agiyts to purchase shares granted hereunder shalllband void and of no effect and all
contributed funds shall be refunded to participgptmployees. The Board may terminate the Planyatiare and for any reason or for no
reason, provided that such termination shall ng@aimany rights of participating employees thaténagsted at the time of termination. In any
event, the Plan shall, without further action af Board, terminate ten (10) years after the dasdloption of the Plan by the Board or, if ear
at such time as all shares of Common Stock thatlmeaypade available for purchase under the Plarupotdo Section 1 above have been
issued.

26. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN CAPITALIZATION.
(@) Changes in Stock

If the number of outstanding shares of Comi@totk is increased or decreased or the sharesrofmoo Stock are changed into or
exchanged for a different number or kind of sharesther securities of the Company by reason ofrangpitalization, reclassification, stock
split, reverse split, combination of shares, exdeanf shares, stock dividend, or other distribufjagable in capital stock, or other increase or
decrease in such shares effected without receiprgideration by the Company occurring after fifrecéve date of the Plan, the number and
kinds of shares that may be purchased under thmeshkl be adjusted proportionately and accordibglyhe Company. In addition, the num
and kind of shares for which rights are outstandingll be similarly adjusted so that the proposdieninterest of a participating
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employee immediately following such event shallthte extent practicable, be the same as immediptady to such event. Any such
adjustment in outstanding rights shall not chamgeaiggregate Purchase Price payable by a parii@paiployee with respect to shares sut
to such rights, but shall include a correspondirgpprtionate adjustment in the Purchase Price hpees

(b) Reorganization in Which the Company Is the Survivig Corporation.

Subject to Subsection (c) of this SectioniPthe Company shall be the surviving corporatinrany reorganization, merger or consolidation
of the Company with one or more other corporatiafisyutstanding rights under the Plan shall partaiand apply to the securities to which a
holder of the number of shares of Common Stockesuithp such rights would have been entitled immtedidollowing such reorganization,
merger or consolidation, with a corresponding prippate adjustment of the Purchase Price per Swtleat the aggregate Purchase Price
thereafter shall be the same as the aggregate &erétrice of the shares subject to such rights @ratedy prior to such reorganization, merger
or consolidation.

(c) Reorganization in Which the Company Is Not the Suriving Corporation or Sale of Assets or Stock

Upon any dissolution or liquidation of the Guemy, or upon a merger, consolidation or reorgdioizaf the Company with one or more
other corporations in which the Company is notgheviving corporation, or upon a sale of all orsalntially all of the assets of the Company
to another corporation, or upon any transactiodlsing, without limitation, a merger or reorgartina in which the Company is the surviving
corporation) approved by the Board that resultsnin person or entity owning more than 80 percemh®@icombined voting power of all classes
of stock of the Company, the Plan and all rightsstanding hereunder shall terminate, except t@xtent provision is made in writing in
connection with such transaction for the contimarathf the Plan and/or the assumption of the rigtesetofore granted, or for the substitution
for such rights of new rights covering the stoclacfuccessor corporation, or a parent or subsithengof, with appropriate adjustments as to
the number and kinds of shares and exercise piit@gd)ich event the Plan and rights theretoforenggd shall continue in the manner and ui
the terms so provided. In the event of any suahitetion of the Plan, all current Purchase Peran$ Offering Periods shall be deemed to
have ended on the last trading day prior to suchitetion, and in accordance with Section 10 alibeeights of each participating employee
then outstanding shall be deemed to be automatiea#ircised on such last trading day. The Board sbad written notice of an event that v
result in such a termination to all participatingoyees not later than the time at which the Campgves notice thereof to its stockholders.

(d) Adjustments.

Adjustments under this Section 26 relateddolsor securities of the Company shall be madthbyCommittee, whose determination in
respect shall be final, binding, and conclusive.
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(e) No Limitations on Company.

The grant of a right pursuant to the Planlsiatl affect or limit in any way the right or powef the Company to make adjustments,
reclassifications, reorganizations or changessofaipital or business structure or to merge, catetel, dissolve or liquidate, or to sell or
transfer all or any part of its business or assets.

27. GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION.

The Company’s obligation to issue, sell anlivde shares of Common Stock pursuant to the Raubject to such approval of any
governmental authority and any national securgieshange or other market quotation system as magchgred in connection with the
authorization, issuance or sale of such shares.

28. STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS.

Any dividends paid on shares held by the Camdar a participating employegaccount will be transmitted to the employee. Thenpan
will deliver to each participating employee who ghaises shares of Common Stock under the Planpagfly as practicable by mail or
otherwise, all notices of meetings, proxy statemgmtoxies and other materials distributed by tbenfiany to its stockholders. Any shares of
Common Stock held by the Agent for an employeetoant will be voted in accordance with the empldyekily delivered and signed proxy
instructions. There will be no charge to participgtemployees in connection with such notices, @®and other materials.

29. RULE 16B-3.

Transactions under this Plan are intendedmopty with all applicable conditions of Rule 16mBany successor provision under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Ifpgayision of the Plan or action by the Board f&dso comply, it shall be deemed null and
void to the extent permitted by law and deemedsable by the Board. Moreover, in the event the Btaas not include a provision required
Rule 16b-3 to be stated herein, such provisionefatiian one relating to eligibility requirementsttoe price and amount of awards) shall be
deemed automatically to be incorporated by refexémio the Plan.

30. PAYMENT OF PLAN EXPENSES.

The Company will bear all costs of administgrand carrying out the Plan; provided howevertigipating employees shall bear all costs
incurred subsequent to the issuance of stock ivatéfs pursuant to Section 11.

* k%
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This Plan was duly adopted and approved bytiad of Directors on January 24, 2003 and amebgeattion of the Board or a committee
thereof on December 8, 2004, March 3, 2005, May2806 and September 10, 2010. This Plan, as amewdsdapproved by action of the
stockholders on March 12, 2003 and March 16, 2005.

/s/ David M. Rothenstein
Secretary of the Compan
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Exhibit 10.23

CIENA CORPORATION
AMENDED AND RESTATED
CHANGE IN CONTROL SEVERANCE AGREEMENT

This Amended and Restated Change in Contnéraace Agreement (the “ Agreeménis made by and betweeZiena Corporation, a
Delaware corporation (as hereinafter defined, tR®thpany’) and Gary B. Smith (the “ Executive’), and shall become effective on the date
of its execution by the Executive.

WHEREAS, the Company considers it essential to foster timtimoous employment of key management personnetecafnizes that the

possibility of a Change in Control (as hereinaftefined) of the Company exists and that such poiggjland the uncertainty that it may cause,
may result in the departure or distraction of kegnagement personnel of the Company, to the dettinfehe Company and its stockholders;

WHEREAS, the Executive is a key management employee of tmepgany;

WHEREAS, the Company desires to encourage the continuedogmpgit of the Executive by the Company and wardarasice that it
will have the continued dedication, loyalty andveeg of, and the availability of objective adviaedacounsel from, the Executive
notwithstanding the possibility, threat or occutemf a Change in Control; and

WHEREAS, in the event that the Company and the Executivgarges to an existing Amended and Restated Chiangentrol Severanc
Agreement (the “ Original Agreemet)t this Agreement will be deemed to amend andatesthe Original Agreement so that the Original
Agreement will be terminated and superseded ieritgety by this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and remtasions contained herein and the mutual berdsgityed
herefrom, and other good and valuable considerati@nreceipt and sufficiency of which are herebgr@wledged, the Company and the
Executive hereby agree as follows:

1. Certain Definitions. In addition to those terms defined elsewhere heveiren used herein, the following capitalized teshall have the
meanings indicated:

1.1."Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company, astitated from time to time.

1.2."Cause” means the occurrence of any one or more of thevioig:

(i) the Executive’s willful and continued fark substantially to perform the duties of the Exime’s position (other than as a result of
Disability or as a result of termination by the Entive for Good Reason) after written notice to Eh@cutive by the Governance and
Nominations Committee of the Board (or any othecigl committee or subcommittee appointed by thar8dor such purpose) (the “
Governance Committeé® specifying such failure, provided that such “salishall have been found by a majority vote of@wernance
Committee after at least seven daysitten notice to the Executive specifying the diafl on the part of the Executive and after an cpipity
for the Executive to be heard at a meeting of tbeeBhance Committee;
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(i) any willful act or omission by the Exeot# in connection with his or her responsibilitessan employee of the Company constituting
dishonesty, fraud or other malfeasance, immoratiaonor gross misconduct;

(i) any willful material violation by the Eecutive of the Compang’Code of Business Conduct and Ethics or the Rytgpyi Informatior
Inventions and Non-Solicitation Agreement betwden@ompany and the Executive; or

(iv) the Executive’s conviction of, or pleamdlo contendere to, a felony or a crime of mangbitude under the laws of the United States
or any state thereof or any other jurisdiction imiet the Company conducts business.

For purposes of this definition, no act ofueg to act by the Executive shall be deemed “ufillunless effected by the Executive not in g
faith and without a reasonable belief that suctoaéailure to act was in or not opposed to the any’s best interests.

1.3.“Change in Control” means the occurrence of any one of the followirgnés:

(i) the direct or indirect sale or exchangettiy stockholders of the Company of all or subgdntall of the stock of the Company where
the stockholders of the Company before such sadxahtange do not retain, directly or indirectlylestst a majority of the beneficial interest
in the voting stock of the surviving, continuingicsessor, or purchasing corporation or parent catjpm thereof, as the case may be (the “
Acquiring Company) after such sale or exchange;

(i) a merger or consolidation where the stuillers of the Company before such merger or catet@n do not retain, directly or
indirectly, at least a majority of the beneficiatérest in the voting stock of the Acquiring Compaifter such merger or consolidation;

(iii) the sale, exchange, or transfer of alkobstantially all of the assets of the Compartlggothan a sale, exchange, or transfer to one ot
more subsidiary corporations of the Company);

(iv) a change in the composition of the Boacdurring within a two year period, as a resulivbich less than a majority of the directors
are Incumbent Directors. “Incumbent Directors” sina¢an directors who either (A) are directors & @ompany as of the date hereof or
(B) are elected, or nominated for election, toBloard with the affirmative votes of at least a nnigyoof the directors of the Company at the
time of such election or nomination (but will natiude an individual whose election or nominatigimi connection with an actual or
threatened proxy contest relating to the electiotirectors to the Company);

(v) a liquidation or dissolution of the Companr
(vi) any other event that the Board, in itkestiscretion, shall determine constitutes a Changgontrol.

In each case the determination of whetheiobarfChange in Control” is deemed to have takewglkhall be made without regard to
whether such events or occurrences constitutin@tiege in Control were hostile or against thetmsbf the Board, or were approved or
concurred in by the Board.
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1.4."Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
1.5."Company” means Ciena Corporation, its affiliates and subsies, and any successor as provided in Section 7.5

1.6.“Disability” means either (i) “total disability” as defined fourposes of the Company’s long-term disability i¢qéan; or (i) the
Executive’s inability, as a result of physical oemtal incapacity, to perform the Executive’s dufisa period of six consecutive months or for
an aggregate of six months in any twelve conseeutienth period.

1.7 “Effective Date” means the date on which a Change in Control beceffgive. In the event of a subsequent Changeointrol within
one year of the prior Change in Control, “Effectate” shall be adjusted to mean the date on wihielsubsequent Change in Control occurs.
Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwtdrgding, if a Change in Control occurs, and if Executive’s employment with the
Company had terminated prior to the date on wHiehGhange in Control occurred, and if it is reabbndemonstrated by the Executive that
such termination of employment either was at tlygiest of a third party who had taken steps readpmalculated to effect the Change in
Control or otherwise arose in connection with oaimicipation of the Change in Control, then, fbiparposes of this Agreement, the term
“Effective Date” shall mean, with respect to sucteé&utive only, the date immediately prior to théedaf such termination of employment.

1.8, “Good Reasc” means

(i) removal from, or failure to be reappointadreelected to the Executive’s principal positimmmediately prior to the Effective Date
(other than as a result of a promotion);

(if) material diminution in the Executive’s gition, duties or responsibilities, or the assigntite the Executive of duties that are
inconsistent, in a material respect, with the saafpduties and responsibilities associated withBkecutive’s position immediately prior to
the Effective Date;

(iif) material reduction in base salary or asvapportunity under any corporate incentive planany successor to any such plan), or a
material reduction in the level of participationlémg-term incentive, benefit and other plans famier executives as in effect immediately
preceding the Effective Date, or their equivalents;

(iv) relocation of the Executive’s principabvkplace without the Executive’s consent to a lmgatvhich is more than 50 miles from the
Executive’s principal workplace on the Effectivet®eor

(v) any failure by the Company to comply wathd satisfy the requirements of Section 7.5, pexithat the successor shall have received
at least ten days’ prior written notice from then@many or the Executive of the requirements of $acii.5;

provided, howevethat (A) the Executive has provided notice to tloenpany of any of the foregoing conditions within®gys of the
initial existence of the condition; (B) the Compdms been given at least 30 days to cure suchtemmdand (C) the Executive actually
terminates employment within two years following fhitial existence of the condition.
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1.9.“Options” means the Executive’s options to purchase comnumk stf the Company (or to receive cash or propgyamount or value
of which is determined by reference to the pricéhefCompany’s common stock) that are validly issueder any of the Company’s equity
incentive or stock option plans and outstandingfdke Effective Date.

1.10.“Performance-Adjusted Restricted Stoakieans the Executive’s restricted stock (includirestricted stock units” or other rights to
receive common stock of the Company) that is walisued under any of the Company’s equity incengilans, outstanding as of the Effective
Date and subject to time-based vesting combineld thé possibility of accelerated vesting if perfarmme-based targets are achieved.

1.11“Performance-Based Restricted Stoakieans the Executive’s restricted stock (includirestricted stock units” or other rights to
receive common stock of the Company) that is walisued under any of the Company’s equity incenpilans, outstanding as of the Effective
Date and subject to performance-based vesting.

1.12°Time-Based Restricted Stockiieans the Executive’s restricted stock (includirestricted stock units” or other rights to receive
common stock of the Company) that is validly issuader any of the Company’s equity incentive plangstanding as of the Effective Date
and subject to time-based vesting.

1.13.Triggering Event” means termination of the Executive’'s employmenhwlie Company without Cause by the Company, oGfood
Reason by the Executive, on or within one year dlfte Effective Date. For purposes of this defaritian Executive’s employment with the
Company will be deemed to have terminated on thieeeaf the date the Executive’s employment wile Company ceases or the date that
written notice of any such termination is receibgdhe Executive or by the Company, as the casebmagven though the parties may agree in
connection therewith that the Executive’'s employhweith the Company will continue for a specifiedipe thereafter. The failure by the
Executive or the Company to set forth in any suafice sufficient facts or circumstances showing G&Beason or Cause, as the case may be,
shall not waive any right of the Executive or then@pany or preclude either party from asserting acts or circumstances in the enforcen
of any such right.

2. Term of Agreement.

This Agreement shall commence on the datesahiecution by the Executive and shall continueffect through October 31, 2013 (the “
Term”), and may be extended upon mutual written coneétite Executive and the Company (as authorizethéyBoard or the Compensation
Committee of the Board). Notwithstanding the foriego

(a) the Term shall be automatically extended witrany further action if the Company is in activgogations for, or has entered into, a
definitive agreement regarding a Change in CoriadlPending Transactidh, until the earliest to occur of (i) the date which such
negotiations have terminated without entry inteéirdtive agreement, (ii) the date on which sucfirdéive agreement has terminated
pursuant to its terms without occurrence of a ClangControl, or (iii) 12 months following the Effeve Date of such Pending Transaction;

(b) in the event that a Change in Control occurinduthe Term, this Agreement shall continue ireefffor a period of 12 months following
the Effective Date; and
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(c) if the Executive becomes entitled to severdraefits under Section 3 during the Term, this Agrent will not terminate until all of the
obligations of the parties hereto with respectie Agreement have been satisfied.

3. Severance Benefits Upon Triggering Event.

Upon a Triggering Event, and provided thatExecutive satisfies the conditions precedentatt fin Sections 4.1 and 4.2 hereof, the
Company shall (in addition to any compensationeandfits to which the Executive may otherwise bétledtunder any other agreement, pla
arrangement with the Company, other than amourdlsiéed by Section 6.2) pay the Executive the follmmamounts and provide the
Executive with the following benefits:

3.1 Salary and Bonud'he Company shall pay to the Executive a lump aomunt, subject to any applicable payroll or othges required
to be withheld, equal to two and one-half timesghm of (i) the Executive’s base salary as in ¢ffi@mediately prior to either the date of the
Executive’s termination of employment with the Canp or the Effective Date, whichever is higher, éijdhe Executive’s bonus amount(s)
under any incentive plan(s) or program(s) in whtod Executive participated immediately prior tdheitthe date of the Executive’s termination
of employment with the Company or the Effective &athichever is higher. The above bonus amount bedlased on an assumed
achievement of 100% of the targeted performancggdar such award. Upon receipt of the above Iscenmmount, neither the Executive nor
any other person claiming any payment by reasdheoExecutives participation in the applicable annual bonus glaall have any right to ar
payment under such plan(s) or program(s) with retsjeeany applicable award thereunder;

3.2 Welfare Benefit and D&O Insurancéhe Company shall continue the Executive’s (avitgre applicable, the Executive’s spouse and
eligible dependents’) participation in the groupdical, dental and vision plans maintained by thenBany, on substantially the same basis as
if the Executive were an employee of the Companyi| the earlier of 18 months following the Exemaétis termination of employment with tl
Company or the last day of the month in which tledtitive commences employment with another emplfmliwing the Executive’s
termination of employment with the Company (thedv€rage Period). In the event that the Company is unable for esason to provide for
the Executive’s (and, where applicable, the Exeelgispouse and eligible dependents’) continuetigiaation in one or more of such plans
during the Coverage Period, the Company shall pgyavide at its expense equivalent benefit covefag the remainder of the Coverage
Period. The Coverage Period shall be taken intowrdcas a period of continuation coverage for psegaof Part 6 of Title | of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amer(&RISA "), and for purposes of any other obligation of @@mpany to provide any
continued coverage to the Executive (and, wheréicgiye, the Executive’s spouse and eligible depeats) under any group medical, dental or
vision plan. The Company shall continue to maintiifector and officer insurance covering the Exaeytand shall maintain in effect any
indemnification agreements providing for indemration of the Executive by the Company, until thelaable statute of limitations has end

3.3 Options and Restricted Stodkotwithstanding the terms of any plan, programmangement maintained by the Company,

(&) upon the Effective Date, (i) the Execuf's Options that are subject to performe-based vesting, to the extent unvested, ¢
immediately be converted into Options with timedzhsesting conditions, and (ii) the Executive'sfBenance-Based Restricted
Stock, Performan«-Adjusted Restricted Stock and any other sin
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instruments of equi-based compensation that are subject to perforr-based vesting, to the extent unvested, shall imatelgt be
converted into Time-Based Restricted Stock; in ezage, with vesting as to the equity awards coadeabove being deemed to
have commenced on the date of grant and vestitm H46t" of the grant at the end of each threenth period following the date
grant;

(b) upon a Triggering Event, all of the Exeeats Options and Time-Based Restricted Stock (diclg any performance-based equity
awards converted pursuant to Section 3.3(a) abtwv#)e extent unvested, shall become immediatetyad and exercisable in full;
and

(c) upon a Triggering Event, the Executive nalstt to exercise any unexercised and exercigaplimns within the time period set
forth in the applicable plan, program or arrangenuerder which they were granted, subject to thiefahg requirements

(i) If the exercise of any Option within theng period described in this Section 3.3 is prewebtethe requirements of federal
or state securities laws or as provided undereirag of the applicable plan, program or arrangentbah the Option shall
remain exercisable until three months after the tla Executive is notified by the Company that@mion is exercisable,
but in no event later than ten years after the daggant of the Option; ar

(i) If the exercise of any Option within this time metiwould subject the Executive to suit under Secli6(b) of the Securitir
Exchange Act of 1934, the period for exercise dhaléxtended until the earliest to occur of (a)tédmth day following the
date on which the Executive would no longer beetiito such suit, (b) the 190day after the end of the salary
continuation period, or (c) ten years after theedsdtgrant of the Optior

3.4 Exclusivity. The severance benefits provided by the Comparsuput to this Section 3 shall be deemed to besingt of any notice,
payments or benefits to which the Executive magfté@led under the federal Worker Adjustment antt&eing Notification (WARN) Act or
other applicable plant or facility closing or méagoff law, theEmployment Standards Act, 2080other applicable employment standards
legislation, or any other statutory or regulataeguirement to provide notice of employment termarabr entittiement to severance payments.

3.5 Savings ClausdEach of the cash payments provided pursuanttiol&®B of the Agreement shall be treated for psgmoof Section 40¢
of the Code as a right to a series of separatelstidct payments. If the Executive is a “specif@adployee,’as such term is defined pursuar
Section 409A of the Code and the regulations andagee issued thereunder, and an amount payabée thid Agreement constitutes deferred
compensation (within the meaning of Section 409Ahef Code) the payment of which is required to &laykd pursuant to the six-month delay
rule set forth in Section 409A of the Code in orteavoid taxes or penalties thereunder, then pagiments shall not be made until the earlier
of the Executive’s death or six months and oneafter the Executive’s last day of employment.
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4. Conditions Precedent.

4.1. Release and WaiveFhe parties agree that, as a condition to thelkee’s right to receive the severance benefits set farBection 2
the Executive shall execute a general waiver aledse (a “ Releas®, in form and substance reasonably satisfactotypé Company, within
45 days following the last day of the Executivaispoyment with the Company, of all claims relatioghe Executive’s employment by the
Company and the termination of such employmentudiog but not limited to discrimination claims, ployment-related tort claims, contract
claims and claims under this Agreement (other taims with respect to benefits under the Compatagsqualified retirement plans,
continuation of coverage or benefits solely as ireglby Part 6 of Title | of ERISA, or any obligati of the Company to provide future
performance under Section 3). No severance bendgfitee paid or provided until after the last dayy which the Executive could rescind all or
any part of the Release and the Release has befteutve, and the Company will make the lump s@vesance payment pursuant to
Section 3.1 within ten days thereafter.

4.2. NorCompetition and NotSolicitation. The parties agree that, as a condition to thelkee’s right to receive the severence benefits
set forth in Section 3, the Executive agrees fioaia period of 18 months following the Executividst day of employment with the Company,
the Executive will not, whether alone or as a panrtofficer, director, consultant, agent, emplogestockholder of any company or other
commercial enterprise, directly or indirectly, watit the prior written consent of the Company:

(a) be employed or engaged by or associated withngage or invest in, own, manage, operate, fimacantrol or participate in the
ownership, management, operation, financing orrobof, any business or other commercial activityose products compete, in whole
or in part, with the products of the Company; pded, that the Executive may purchase or otherwigaiee as a passive investment u
(but not more than) one percent of any class afritgoof any enterprise (but without otherwise pap&ating in the activities of such
enterprise) if such securities are listed on artipnal or regional securities exchange or have begistered under Section 12(g) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; or

(b) (i) solicit or induce any employee of the Comyp#o leave the employ of the Company, (ii) solmisiness of the same or similar type
being carried on by the Company from any persominby to the Executive to have purchased productevices from the Company
within the 12 months prior to the Executive’s lday of employment with the Company, (iii) unlawjuihterfere with the Company’s
relationship with any person, including any peradi was an employee, contractor, supplier or custarfithe Company, or

(iv) disparage the Company or any of its sharehrs|directors, officers, employees or agents.

4.3._ConstructionSection 4.2 is intended to provide the greatesitiction allowable under Cal. Bus. & Prof. Cod®@01. In the event any
provision hereof is determined by a court of corapejurisdiction to violate any provision of Calu & Prof. Code 816601, that provision
shall be modified to the least extent necessargnder it enforceable and the remainder of the &gent shall remain in full force and effect.

4.4. Remediesin the event of a breach of Section 4.2 by thediXve, then the Executive shall immediately rainsk the Company the
entire gross amount of the severance benefitstpdlte Executive pursuant to Section 3 up to the dasuch breach. The forfeiture provisions
of this Section
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4.4 shall be in addition to, and not in limitatiofy any other remedies available to the Compargvabr in equity.

5. Limitation on Payments by the Company.

5.1. In the event it shall be determined #rat payment or distribution by the Company to ortfe benefit of the Executive (whether paid
or payable or distributed or distributable pursuarthe terms of this Agreement or otherwise) (yfant” or “ Payments’) (i) constitutes a
“parachute payment” within the meaning of Secti80@ of the Code and (ii) but for this Section 5udobe subject to the excise tax imposed
by Section 4999 of the Code, or any interest oafies with respect to such excise tax (such exeisetogether with any such interest or
penalties, are hereinafter collectively referredsdahe “ Excise Ta¥, then the Payments shall be either:

(i) paid or distributed in full, o

(i) paid or distributed as to such lesser extent whichld result in no portion of such Payments beinlgject to the Excise Ta

whichever of the foregoing amounts, taking intocact the applicable federal, state and local inctares and the Excise Tax, results in the

receipt by the Executive (on an after-tax basighefgreatest amount of Payments, notwithstandiagall or some portion of such Payments
may be taxable under Section 4999 of the Code.

5.2. Unless the Company and the Executiveraibe agree in writing, all determinations requitede made under this Section 5 shall be
made in writing by the independent public accoutst@ppointed for this purpose by the Company (tAecountants) immediately prior to
the Triggering Event, whose determination shalttweclusive and binding upon the Company and the ke for all purposes. For purposes
of making the calculation required by this Sectiothe Accountants may make reasonable assumgi@happroximations concerning
applicable taxes and may rely on reasonable, gaithl ihterpretations concerning the applicatiorsettions 280G and 4999 of the Code. The
Company and the Executive shall furnish to the Aitants such information and documents as the Ateots may reasonably request in
order to make a determination under this Sectiorhg. Company shall bear all costs the Accountamtg leasonably incur in connetion with
any calculations contemplated by this Section 5.

6. Terms and Conditions of Participation.

6.1. AtWill Employment Status The Executive acknowledges and agrees that easapiay otherwise be expressly provided under any
other executed agreement between the Executivéhan@dompany, nothing contained in this Agreementliding, but not limited to using the
term “Cause” to determine benefits under this Agreset) is intended to change the fact that the eympdmt of the Executive by the Company
is “at will” and may be terminated by either theeExtive or the Company at any time.

6.2._NorDuplication. Notwithstanding any other agreement to the copttae Executive acknowledges and agrees thatiiject to
Section 3.3, the payments under this Agreement Badahe only severance or similar payments thapayable by the Company under any
plan, program, policy or agreement, and (ii) exdepamounts payable under any retirement plarstank purchase plans of the Company in
which the Executive may participate, the paymentden this Agreement are in full and
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complete satisfaction of all liabilities of the Cpany with respect to the Executive under all sutieioplans, programs and agreements.
7. General.

7.1._Prior Agreements; Inconsistent Provisiofi@pplicable, this Agreement shall replace amgessede in its entirety the Original
Agreement, which agreement is hereby terminatedo&nd further force and effect. With that exceptithis Agreement shall be in addition to,
and have no effect on, the provisions of any ottlggeements, including without limitation indemndfion agreements and proprietary
information, inventions and non-solicitation agress that may exist between the Company and theufixe. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
to the extent that the terms and conditions of Mlgseement are inconsistent with those found inatiner agreement or plan to which the
Company and the Executive are each a party, thestand conditions of this Agreement shall control.

7.2._ AmendmentThis Agreement may not be amended or termindted the Effective Date. Prior to the Effective Bathe Board may, in
its sole discretion, modify or amend this Agreeniarany respect, provided such actions do not redilne amount or defer the receipt of any
payment or benefit provided under this Agreement.

7.3. Payment Obligations; Overdue PaymeBishject to satisfaction of the conditions preceédet forth in Sections 4.1 and 4.2, the
Company'’s obligations to make the payments andigeothe benefits to the Executive under this Agreeinshall be absolute and
unconditional and shall not be affected in any Wgyany circumstances, including, without limitati@my offset, counterclaim, recoupment,
defense or other right which the Company may hgeénst the Executive or anyone else. Each and e@amnent made hereunder by the
Company shall be final and the Company will noksteerecover all or any part of such payment fréwve Executive or from whosoever may be
entitled thereto, except as otherwise provideddati®n 4.4. The Executive shall be entitled to nexnterest at the prime rate of interest
published from time to time by The Wall Street Jwlon any payments under this Agreement that are 88 @zerdue, provided, however, t
no payments shall be deemed to be overdue untitxleeutive executes the Release and any rescigsitod with respect to such Release has
expired.

7.4. No Mitigation The Executive shall not be obligated to seekrotheployment in mitigation of the amounts payablamangements
made under any provision of this Agreement, andtitaining of any such other employment shall irement effect any reduction of the
Company’s obligations to make the payments andigeathe benefits required under this Agreementepkas provided in the first sentence of
Section 3.2.

7.5._Successordll rights under this Agreement are personahi® Executive and, without the prior written consefrthe Company, shall
not be assignable by the Executive otherwise tlyamilh or the laws of descent and distribution. §Kigreement shall inure to the benefit of
and be enforceable in the event of the Executigeath or disability by the Executive’s legal regmstive. This Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and be binding upon the Company andutsessors and assigns. The Company will requirsaecessor (whether direct or indirect,
by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwis@)ltor substantially all of the business and/arets of the Company to assume expressly and
agree to perform this Agreement in the same maameto the same extent that the Company woulddpgireel to perform it if no such event
resulting in a successor had taken place.

7.6._Controlling Law This Agreement shall in all respects be govelmgdand construed in accordance with, the laws®fState of
Delaware (without regard to the principles of cané of laws).
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7.7. ArbitrationDISPUTES REGARDING THE EXECUTIVE’'S EMPLOYMENT WITHHE COMPANY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION, ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER, WHICH CANNOT BERESOLVED BY NEGOTIATIONS BETWEEN THE COMPANY
AND THE EXECUTIVE SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO, AND SOLELYDETERMINED BY, FINAL AND BINDING ARBITRATION
CONDUCTED BY JUDICIAL ARBITRATION AND MEDIATION SERVICES (*JAMS”) OR ANY SUCCESSOR THERETO, IN
ACCORDANCE WITH JAMS’ ARBITRATION RULES FOR EMPLOYMNT DISPUTES THEN IN EFFECT, AND THE PARTIES
AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE FINAL AWARD OF THE ARBITRAOR IN ANY SUCH PROCEEDING. THE ARBITRATOR SHALL
APPLY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE WITH RESPHCTO THE INTERPRETATION OR ENFORCEMENT OF ANY
MATTER RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT. ARBITRATION MAYBE HELD IN BALTIMORE, MARYLAND OR SUCH OTHER
PLACE AS THE PARTIES HERETO MAY MUTUALLY AGREE, ANCSHALL BE CONDUCTED SOLELY BY A FORMER JUDGE.
JUDGMENT UPON THE AWARD BY THE ARBITRATOR MAY BE ENERED IN ANY COURT HAVING JURISDICTION THEREOF.
THE PREVAILING PARTY IN THE ARBITRATION, AS DETERMNED BY THE ARBITRATOR, SHALL BE ENTITLED TO
REIMBURSEMENT OF REASONABLE ATTORNEY’S FEES AND DBBJRSEMENTS INCURRED IN SUCH PROCEEDINGS BY THE
NON-PREVAILING PARTY.BY SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT, THE PARTIES ARE GIVING U P ANY RIGHT THEY MIGHT
HAVE TO SUE EACH OTHER IN COURT AND HAVE THEIR CASE DECIDED BY A JUDGE OR JURY, AND AGREE TO
RESOLVE ANY AND ALL DISPUTES BY ARBITRATION.

7.8._Severability Any provision in this Agreement which is prohéitor unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall,@such jurisdiction, be
ineffective only to the extent of such prohibitionunenforceability without invalidating or affeatj the remaining provisions hereof, and any
such prohibition or unenforceability in any juristion shall not invalidate or render unenforcealeh provision in any other jurisdiction.

7.9. CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in counterpaat$) ef which shall be deemed an original, but &llleich together wil
constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have execuated delivered this Agreement on the date writtdovbe

CIENA CORPORATION EXECUTIVE
BY: /s/ David M. Rothenstei /s/ Gary B. Smitt
Name David M. Rothenstei Gary B. Smitr
Title: Senior VP & General Couns
20 Dec. 201(
Date
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Exhibit 10.24

CIENA CORPORATION
AMENDED AND RESTATED
CHANGE IN CONTROL SEVERANCE AGREEMENT

This Amended and Restated Change in Contnéraace Agreement (the “ Agreeménis made by and betweeZiena Corporation, a
Delaware corporation (as hereinafter defined, t@®fhpany’) and (the “ Executive’), and shall become effective on the
date of its execution by the Executive.

WHEREAS , the Company considers it essential to fostectminuous employment of key management persomtetecognizes that the
possibility of a Change in Control (as hereinaftefined) of the Company exists and that such piigjland the uncertainty that it may cause,
may result in the departure or distraction of kegnagement personnel of the Company, to the dettinfehe Company and its stockholders;

WHEREAS , the Executive is a key management employee o€tmapany;

WHEREAS , the Company desires to encourage the continugibgment of the Executive by the Company and wasstirance that it
will have the continued dedication, loyalty andveeg of, and the availability of objective adviaedacounsel from, the Executive
notwithstanding the possibility, threat or occutemf a Change in Control; and

WHEREAS , in the event that the Company and the Executiggarties to an existing Amended and Restated gghanControl
Severance Agreement (the “ Original Agreenignthis Agreement will be deemed to amend andatesthe Original Agreement so that the
Original Agreement will be terminated and supersdddts entirety by this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the mutual covenants andesgmtations contained herein and the mutual berddiived
herefrom, and other good and valuable considerati@nreceipt and sufficiency of which are herebgr@wledged, the Company and the
Executive hereby agree as follows:

1. Certain Definitions. In addition to those terms defined elsewhere heveiren used herein, the following capitalized teshall have the
meanings indicated:

1.1."Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company, ast@ated from time to time.

1.2."Cause” means the occurrence of any one or more of theviog:

(i) the Executive’s willful and continued faik substantially to perform the duties of the Exime’s position (other than as a result of
Disability or as a result of termination by the Entive for Good Reason) after written notice to Ehe@cutive by the Governance and
Nominations Committee of the Board (or any othecigl committee or subcommittee appointed by thar8dor such purpose) (the “
Governance Committeé® specifying such failure, provided that such “salishall have been found by a majority vote of@wernance
Committee after at least seven daysitten notice to the Executive specifying the diafl on the part of the Executive and after an cpipity
for the Executive to be heard at a meeting of tbeeBhance Committee;
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(i) any willful act or omission by the Exeot# in connection with his or her responsibilitessan employee of the Company constituting
dishonesty, fraud or other malfeasance, immoratiaonor gross misconduct;

(i) any willful material violation by the Eecutive of the Compang’Code of Business Conduct and Ethics or the Rytgpyi Informatior
Inventions and Non-Solicitation Agreement betwden@ompany and the Executive; or

(iv) the Executive’s conviction of, or pleamdlo contendere to, a felony or a crime of mangbitude under the laws of the United States
or any state thereof or any other jurisdiction imiet the Company conducts business.

For purposes of this definition, no act otuee to act by the Executive shall be deemed “whilliunless effected by the Executive notin g
faith and without a reasonable belief that suctoaéailure to act was in or not opposed to the any’s best interests.

1.3.“Change in Control” means the occurrence of any one of the followirgnés:

(i) the direct or indirect sale or exchangettiy stockholders of the Company of all or subgdntall of the stock of the Company where
the stockholders of the Company before such sadxahtange do not retain, directly or indirectlylestst a majority of the beneficial interest
in the voting stock of the surviving, continuingicsessor, or purchasing corporation or parent catjpm thereof, as the case may be (the “
Acquiring Company) after such sale or exchange;

(i) a merger or consolidation where the stuillers of the Company before such merger or catet@n do not retain, directly or
indirectly, at least a majority of the beneficiatérest in the voting stock of the Acquiring Compaifter such merger or consolidation;

(iii) the sale, exchange, or transfer of alkobstantially all of the assets of the Compartlggothan a sale, exchange, or transfer to one ot
more subsidiary corporations of the Company);

(iv) a change in the composition of the Boacdurring within a two year period, as a resulivbich less than a majority of the directors
are Incumbent Directors. “Incumbent Directors” sina¢an directors who either (A) are directors & @ompany as of the date hereof or
(B) are elected, or nominated for election, toBlard with the affirmative votes of at least a migyoof the directors of the Company at the
time of such election or nomination (but will natiude an individual whose election or nominatigimi connection with an actual or
threatened proxy contest relating to the electiotirectors to the Company);

(v) a liquidation or dissolution of the Companr
(vi) any other event that the Board, in itkestiscretion, shall determine constitutes a Changgontrol.

In each case the determination of whetheiobvariChange in Control” is deemed to have takewglkhall be made without regard to

whether such events or occurrences constitutin@tiege in Control were hostile or against thetmysbf the Board, or were approved or
concurred in by the Board.

1.4.“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
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1.5.“Company” means Ciena Corporation, its affiliates and subsiels, and any successor as provided in Section 7.5

1.6.“Disability” means either (i) “total disability” as defined faurposes of the Company’s long-term disability i¢qéan; or (ii) the
Executive’s inability, as a result of physical oemtal incapacity, to perform the Executive’s dufmsa period of six consecutive months or for
an aggregate of six months in any twelve conseeutienth period.

1.7 ."Effective Date” means the date on which a Change in Control beceffedive. In the event of a subsequent Changgointrol within
one year of the prior Change in Control, “Effectivate”shall be adjusted to mean the date on wiielstibsequent Change in Control occurs.
Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwtdrgding, if a Change in Control occurs, and if Executive’s employment with the
Company had terminated prior to the date on whiehQhange in Control occurred, and if it is reabbndemonstrated by the Executive that
such termination of employment either was at tlygiest of a third party who had taken steps readpakculated to effect the Change in
Control or otherwise arose in connection with oaimicipation of the Change in Control, then, fihiparposes of this Agreement, the term
“Effective Date” shall mean, with respect to sucte€utive only, the date immediately prior to théedaf such termination of employment.

1.8. “Good Reasofimeans;

(i) removal from, or failure to be reappointatreelected to the Executive’s principal positionmediately prior to the Effective Date
(other than as a result of a promotion);

(i) material diminution in the Executive’s gition, duties or responsibilities, or the assigntrte the Executive of duties that are
inconsistent, in a material respect, with the saafpduties and responsibilities associated withEkecutive’s position immediately prior to
the Effective Date;

(iif) material reduction in base salary or asvapportunity under any corporate incentive planany successor to any such plan), or a
material reduction in the level of participationlédmg-term incentive, benefit and other plans femisr executives as in effect immediately
preceding the Effective Date, or their equivalents;

(iv) relocation of the Executive’s principabvkplace without the Executive’s consent to a lmeatvhich is more than 50 miles from the
Executive’s principal workplace on the EffectivetBeor

(v) any failure by the Company to comply wéthd satisfy the requirements of Section 7.5, prexbithat the successor shall have received
at least ten days’ prior written notice from then@mny or the Executive of the requirements of 8acii.5;

provided, howevethat (A) the Executive has provided notice to tloenpany of any of the foregoing conditions within®gys of the
initial existence of the condition; (B) the Compams been given at least 30 days to cure suchtommdand (C) the Executive actually
terminates employment within two years following thitial existence of the condition.

1.9.“Options” means the Executive’s options to purchase comnumk stf the Company (or to receive cash or propigyamount or value
of which is determined by reference to the pricéhef Company’s common stock) that are validly issueder any of the Company’s equity
incentive or stock option plans and outstandingfdke Effective Date.
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1.10.“Performance-Adjusted Restricted Stoakieans the Executive’s restricted stock (includirestricted stock units” or other rights to
receive common stock of the Company) that is walisued under any of the Company’s equity incentilans, outstanding as of the Effective
Date and subject to time-based vesting combineld thé possibility of accelerated vesting if perfarmme-based targets are achieved.

1.11 “Performance-Based Restricted Stoakieans the Executive’s restricted stock (includirestricted stock units” or other rights to
receive common stock of the Company) that is walisued under any of the Company’s equity incenpilans, outstanding as of the Effective
Date and subject to performance-based vesting.

1.12“Time-Based Restricted Stockieans the Executive’s restricted stock (includirestricted stock units” or other rights to receive
common stock of the Company) that is validly issuader any of the Company’s equity incentive plangstanding as of the Effective Date
and subject to time-based vesting.

1.13.Triggering Event” means termination of the Executive’s employmenhwlie Company without Cause by the Company, oGfood
Reason by the Executive, on or within one year dlfte Effective Date. For purposes of this defonitian Executive’s employment with the
Company will be deemed to have terminated on thieeeaf the date the Executive’s employment whl Company ceases or the date that
written notice of any such termination is receibgdhe Executive or by the Company, as the casebmagven though the parties may agree in
connection therewith that the Executive’s employtweith the Company will continue for a specifiediipe thereafter. The failure by the
Executive or the Company to set forth in any suafice sufficient facts or circumstances showing G&Beason or Cause, as the case may be,
shall not waive any right of the Executive or then@pany or preclude either party from asserting $acts or circumstances in the enforcen
of any such right.

2. Term of Agreement.

This Agreement shall commence on the datesahiecution by the Executive and shall continueffect through October 31, 2013 (the “
Term”), and may be extended upon mutual written coneétite Executive and the Company (as authorizeth&yBoard or the Compensation
Committee of the Board). Notwithstanding the foliego

(a) the Term shall be automatically extended withaoy further action if the Company is in activegogations for, or has entered into, a
definitive agreement regarding a Change in CorfadlPending Transactiol), until the earliest to occur of (i) the date which such
negotiations have terminated without entry intcefirdtive agreement, (ii) the date on which sucfirdiive agreement has terminated
pursuant to its terms without occurrence of a ClandControl, or (iii) 12 months following the Efféve Date of such Pending Transaction;

(b) in the event that a Change in Control occurnduthe Term, this Agreement shall continue ireefffor a period of 12 months following
the Effective Date; and

(c) if the Executive becomes entitled to severdraeefits under Section 3 during the Term, this Agrent will not terminate until all of the
obligations of the parties hereto with respechie Agreement have been satisfied.
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3. Severance Benefits Upon Triggering Event.

Upon a Triggering Event, and provided thatExecutive satisfies the conditions precedentatt fin Sections 4.1 and 4.2 hereof, the
Company shall (in addition to any compensationedjits to which the Executive may otherwise bétledtunder any other agreement, pla
arrangement with the Company, other than amourdlsiéed by Section 6.2) pay the Executive the follmpamounts and provide the
Executive with the following benefits:

3.1 Salary and Bonud'he Company shall pay to the Executive a lump aomount, subject to any applicable payroll or othges required
to be withheld, equal to one and one-half timesstira of (i) the Executive’s base salary as in e¢fimenediately prior to either the date of the
Executive’s termination of employment with the Canp or the Effective Date, whichever is higher, éijdhe Executive’s bonus amount(s)
under any incentive plan(s) or program(s) in whtod Executive participated immediately prior tdheitthe date of the Executive’s termination
of employment with the Company or the Effective ®athichever is higher. The above bonus amount bhdlased on an assumed
achievement of 100% of the targeted performancggdar such award. Upon receipt of the above Iscenmmount, neither the Executive nor
any other person claiming any payment by reasdheoExecutives participation in the applicable annual bonus glaall have any right to ar
payment under such plan(s) or program(s) with retsjeeany applicable award thereunder;

3.2 Welfare Benefit and D&O Insurancéhe Company shall continue the Executive’s (avitgre applicable, the Executive’s spouse and
eligible dependents’) participation in the groupdical, dental and vision plans maintained by thenBany, on substantially the same basis as
if the Executive were an employee of the Companyi| the earlier of 18 months (not to exceed 18 thepfollowing the Executive’s
termination of employment with the Company or thst lday of the month in which the Executive comnesremployment with another
employer following the Executive’s termination ahployment with the Company (the “ Coverage Petjodh the event that the Company is
unable for any reason to provide for the Execuiahd, where applicable, the Executive’s spoudestigible dependents’) continued
participation in one or more of such plans durimg €overage Period, the Company shall pay or pecaidts expense equivalent benefit
coverage for the remainder of the Coverage PeTibd.Coverage Period shall be taken into accouatpsiod of continuation coverage for
purposes of Part 6 of Title | of the Employee Ratient Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (SBR), and for purposes of any other
obligation of the Company to provide any contingeglerage to the Executive (and, where applicab&eFxecutive’s spouse and eligible
dependents) under any group medical, dental oovigian. The Company shall continue to maintaieaor and officer insurance covering the
Executive, and shall maintain in effect any indefination agreements providing for indemnificatiditloe Executive by the Company, until
applicable statute of limitations has ended;

3.3 Options and Restricted Stodkotwithstanding the terms of any plan, programmangement maintained by the Company,

(@) upon the Effective Date, (i) the Executs/&ptions that are subject to performance-basethge$o the extent unvested, shall
immediately be converted into Options with timedzhsesting conditions, and (ii) the Executive'sfBenance-Based Restricted
Stock, Performance-Adjusted Restricted Stock arydo#tmer similar instruments of equity-based compéina that are subject to
performance-based vesting, to the extent unvesked, immediately be converted into Time-Based Raestl Stock; in each case,
with vesting as to the equity awards converted eliming deemed to have commenced on the datemtfayrd vesting as to 1/16
of the grant at the end of each tt-month period following the date of gra
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(b) upon a Triggering Event, all of the Exeeats Options and Time-Based Restricted Stock (iiolg any performance-based equity
awards converted pursuant to Section 3.3(a) abtv#)e extent unvested, shall become immediatetyed and exercisable in full;

and

(c) upon a Triggering Event, the Executive neistt to exercise any unexercised and exercigpili®ons within the time period set
forth in the applicable plan, program or arrangenuerder which they were granted, subject to thiofdhg requirements

(i) If the exercise of any Option within the time peridescribed in this Section 3.3 is prevented byd¢lgelirements of feder.
or state securities laws or as provided underafmag of the applicable plan, program or arrangentkeh the Option shall
remain exercisable until three months after the tla Executive is notified by the Company that@mion is exercisable,
but in no event later than ten years after the daggant of the Option; ar

(i) If the exercise of any Option within this time patiwould subject the Executive to suit under Secli6(b) of the Securitis
Exchange Act of 1934, the period for exercise dhaléxtended until the earliest to occur of (a)témh day following the
date on which the Executive would no longer beesttitio such suit, (b) the 190day after the end of the salary
continuation period, or (c) ten years after theeddtgrant of the Optior

3.4 Exclusivity. The severance benefits provided by the Comparsupat to this Section 3 shall be deemed to besiet of any notice,
payments or benefits to which the Executive magfué@led under the federal Worker Adjustment anttr&eing Notification (WARN) Act or
other applicable plant or facility closing or méesgoff law, theEmployment Standards Act, 2080other applicable employment standards
legislation, or any other statutory or regulataguirement to provide notice of employment ternigrabr entitlement to severance payments.

3.5_Savings ClausdéEach of the cash payments provided pursuantticl&iB8 of the Agreement shall be treated for psgsoof Section 40¢
of the Code as a right to a series of separatel&tidct payments. If the Executive is a “specif@dployee,’as such term is defined pursuar
Section 409A of the Code and the regulations andagee issued thereunder, and an amount payabés thiid Agreement constitutes deferred
compensation (within the meaning of Section 4094hef Code) the payment of which is required to élaykd pursuant to the six-month delay
rule set forth in Section 409A of the Code in orteavoid taxes or penalties thereunder, then pagiments shall not be made until the earlier
of the Executive’s death or six months and oneafter the Executive’s last day of employment.
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4. Conditions Precedent.

4.1. Release and WaiveFhe parties agree that, as a condition to thelkee’s right to receive the severance benefits set farBection 2
the Executive shall execute a general waiver aledse (a “ Releas®, in form and substance reasonably satisfactotypé Company, within
45 days following the last day of the Executivaispoyment with the Company, of all claims relatioghe Executive’s employment by the
Company and the termination of such employmentudiog but not limited to discrimination claims, ployment-related tort claims, contract
claims and claims under this Agreement (other taims with respect to benefits under the Compatagsqualified retirement plans,
continuation of coverage or benefits solely as ireglby Part 6 of Title | of ERISA, or any obligati of the Company to provide future
performance under Section 3). No severance bendgfitee paid or provided until after the last dayy which the Executive could rescind all or
any part of the Release and the Release has befteutve, and the Company will make the lump s@vesance payment pursuant to
Section 3.1 within ten days thereafter.

4.2. NorCompetition and NotSolicitation. The parties agree that, as a condition to thelkee’s right to receive the severence benefits
set forth in Section 3, the Executive agrees fioaia period of 12 months following the Executividst day of employment with the Company,
the Executive will not, whether alone or as a panrtofficer, director, consultant, agent, emplogestockholder of any company or other
commercial enterprise, directly or indirectly, watit the prior written consent of the Company:

(a) be employed or engaged by or associated withngage or invest in, own, manage, operate, fimacantrol or participate in the
ownership, management, operation, financing orrobof, any business or other commercial activityose products compete, in whole
or in part, with the products of the Company; pded, that the Executive may purchase or otherwigaiee as a passive investment u
(but not more than) one percent of any class afritgoof any enterprise (but without otherwise pap&ating in the activities of such
enterprise) if such securities are listed on artipnal or regional securities exchange or have begistered under Section 12(g) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; or

(b) (i) solicit or induce any employee of the Comyp#o leave the employ of the Company, (ii) solmisiness of the same or similar type
being carried on by the Company from any persominby to the Executive to have purchased productevices from the Company
within the 12 months prior to the Executive’s lday of employment with the Company, (iii) unlawjuihterfere with the Company’s
relationship with any person, including any peradi was an employee, contractor, supplier or custarfithe Company, or

(iv) disparage the Company or any of its sharehrs|directors, officers, employees or agents.

4.3._ConstructionSection 4.2 is intended to provide the greatesitiction allowable under Cal. Bus. & Prof. Cod®@01. In the event any
provision hereof is determined by a court of corapejurisdiction to violate any provision of Calu & Prof. Code 816601, that provision
shall be modified to the least extent necessargnder it enforceable and the remainder of the &gent shall remain in full force and effect.

4.4. Remediesin the event of a breach of Section 4.2 by thediXve, then the Executive shall immediately rainsk the Company the
entire gross amount of the severance benefitstpdlte Executive pursuant to Section 3 up to the dasuch breach. The forfeiture provisions
of this Section 4.4
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shall be in addition to, and not in limitation afiy other remedies available to the Company ablaiw equity.

5. Limitation on Payments by the Company.

5.1. In the event it shall be determined #rat payment or distribution by the Company to ortfe benefit of the Executive (whether paid
or payable or distributed or distributable pursuarthe terms of this Agreement or otherwise) (yfant” or “ Payments') (i) constitutes a
“parachute payment” within the meaning of Secti80@ of the Code and (ii) but for this Section 5udobe subject to the excise tax imposed
by Section 4999 of the Code, or any interest oafies with respect to such excise tax (such exeisetogether with any such interest or
penalties, are hereinafter collectively referredsdahe “ Excise Ta¥, then the Payments shall be either:

(i) paid or distributed in full, o

(i) paid or distributed as to such lesser extent whichld result in no portion of such Payments beinlgject to the Excise Ta

whichever of the foregoing amounts, taking intocact the applicable federal, state and local inctares and the Excise Tax, results in the

receipt by the Executive (on an after-tax basighefgreatest amount of Payments, notwithstandiagall or some portion of such Payments
may be taxable under Section 4999 of the Code.

5.2. Unless the Company and the Executiveraibe agree in writing, all determinations requitede made under this Section 5 shall be
made in writing by the independent public accoutst@ppointed for this purpose by the Company (tAecountants) immediately prior to
the Triggering Event, whose determination shalttweclusive and binding upon the Company and the ke for all purposes. For purposes
of making the calculation required by this Sectiothe Accountants may make reasonable assumgi@happroximations concerning
applicable taxes and may rely on reasonable, gaithl ihterpretations concerning the applicatiorsettions 280G and 4999 of the Code. The
Company and the Executive shall furnish to the Aitants such information and documents as the Ateots may reasonably request in
order to make a determination under this Sectiorhg. Company shall bear all costs the Accountamtg leasonably incur in connetion with
any calculations contemplated by this Section 5.

6. Terms and Conditions of Participation.

6.1. AtWill Employment Status The Executive acknowledges and agrees that easapiay otherwise be expressly provided under any
other executed agreement between the Executivéhan@dompany, nothing contained in this Agreementliding, but not limited to using the
term “Cause” to determine benefits under this Agreset) is intended to change the fact that the eympdmt of the Executive by the Company
is “at will” and may be terminated by either theeExtive or the Company at any time.

6.2._NorDuplication. Notwithstanding any other agreement to the copttae Executive acknowledges and agrees thatiiject to
Section 3.3, the payments under this Agreement Badahe only severance or similar payments thapayable by the Company under any
plan, program, policy or agreement, and (ii) exdepamounts payable under any retirement plarstank purchase plans of the Company in
which the Executive may participate, the paymentden this Agreement are in full and
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complete satisfaction of all liabilities of the Cpany with respect to the Executive under all sutieioplans, programs and agreements.
7. General.

7.1._Prior Agreements; Inconsistent Provisiofi@pplicable, this Agreement shall replace amgessede in its entirety the Original
Agreement, which agreement is hereby terminatedo&nd further force and effect. With that exceptithis Agreement shall be in addition to,
and have no effect on, the provisions of any ottlggeements, including without limitation indemndfion agreements and proprietary
information, inventions and non-solicitation agress that may exist between the Company and theufixe. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
to the extent that the terms and conditions of Mlgseement are inconsistent with those found inatiner agreement or plan to which the
Company and the Executive are each a party, thestand conditions of this Agreement shall control.

7.2._ AmendmentThis Agreement may not be amended or termindted the Effective Date. Prior to the Effective Bathe Board may, in
its sole discretion, modify or amend this Agreeniarany respect, provided such actions do not redilne amount or defer the receipt of any
payment or benefit provided under this Agreement.

7.3. Payment Obligations; Overdue PaymeBishject to satisfaction of the conditions preceédet forth in Sections 4.1 and 4.2, the
Company'’s obligations to make the payments andigeothe benefits to the Executive under this Agreeinshall be absolute and
unconditional and shall not be affected in any Wgyany circumstances, including, without limitati@my offset, counterclaim, recoupment,
defense or other right which the Company may hgeénst the Executive or anyone else. Each and e@amnent made hereunder by the
Company shall be final and the Company will noksteerecover all or any part of such payment fréwve Executive or from whosoever may be
entitled thereto, except as otherwise provideddati®n 4.4. The Executive shall be entitled to nexnterest at the prime rate of interest
published from time to time by The Wall Street Jwlon any payments under this Agreement that are 88 @zerdue, provided, however, t
no payments shall be deemed to be overdue untitxleeutive executes the Release and any rescigsitod with respect to such Release has
expired.

7.4. No Mitigation The Executive shall not be obligated to seekrotheployment in mitigation of the amounts payablamangements
made under any provision of this Agreement, andtitaining of any such other employment shall irement effect any reduction of the
Company’s obligations to make the payments andigeathe benefits required under this Agreementepkas provided in the first sentence of
Section 3.2.

7.5._Successordll rights under this Agreement are personahi® Executive and, without the prior written consefrthe Company, shall
not be assignable by the Executive otherwise tlyamilh or the laws of descent and distribution. §Kigreement shall inure to the benefit of
and be enforceable in the event of the Executigeath or disability by the Executive’s legal regmstive. This Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and be binding upon the Company andutsessors and assigns. The Company will requirsaecessor (whether direct or indirect,
by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwis@)ltor substantially all of the business and/arets of the Company to assume expressly and
agree to perform this Agreement in the same maameto the same extent that the Company woulddpgireel to perform it if no such event
resulting in a successor had taken place.

7.6._Controlling Law This Agreement shall in all respects be govelmgdand construed in accordance with, the laws®fState of
Delaware (without regard to the principles of cané of laws).
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7.7. ArbitrationDISPUTES REGARDING THE EXECUTIVE’'S EMPLOYMENT WITHHE COMPANY, INCLUDING, WITHOUT
LIMITATION, ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER, WHICH CANNOT BERESOLVED BY NEGOTIATIONS BETWEEN THE COMPANY
AND THE EXECUTIVE SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO, AND SOLELYDETERMINED BY, FINAL AND BINDING ARBITRATION
CONDUCTED BY JUDICIAL ARBITRATION AND MEDIATION SERVICES (*JAMS”) OR ANY SUCCESSOR THERETO, IN
ACCORDANCE WITH JAMS’ ARBITRATION RULES FOR EMPLOYMNT DISPUTES THEN IN EFFECT, AND THE PARTIES
AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE FINAL AWARD OF THE ARBITRAOR IN ANY SUCH PROCEEDING. THE ARBITRATOR SHALL
APPLY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE WITH RESPHCTO THE INTERPRETATION OR ENFORCEMENT OF ANY
MATTER RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT. ARBITRATION MAYBE HELD IN BALTIMORE, MARYLAND OR SUCH OTHER
PLACE AS THE PARTIES HERETO MAY MUTUALLY AGREE, ANCSHALL BE CONDUCTED SOLELY BY A FORMER JUDGE.
JUDGMENT UPON THE AWARD BY THE ARBITRATOR MAY BE ENERED IN ANY COURT HAVING JURISDICTION THEREOF.
THE PREVAILING PARTY IN THE ARBITRATION, AS DETERMNED BY THE ARBITRATOR, SHALL BE ENTITLED TO
REIMBURSEMENT OF REASONABLE ATTORNEY’S FEES AND DBBJRSEMENTS INCURRED IN SUCH PROCEEDINGS BY THE
NON-PREVAILING PARTY.BY SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT, THE PARTIES ARE GIVING U P ANY RIGHT THEY MIGHT
HAVE TO SUE EACH OTHER IN COURT AND HAVE THEIR CASE DECIDED BY A JUDGE OR JURY, AND AGREE TO
RESOLVE ANY AND ALL DISPUTES BY ARBITRATION

7.8._Severability Any provision in this Agreement which is prohéitor unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall,@such jurisdiction, be
ineffective only to the extent of such prohibitionunenforceability without invalidating or affeatj the remaining provisions hereof, and any
such prohibition or unenforceability in any juristion shall not invalidate or render unenforcealeh provision in any other jurisdiction.

7.9. CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in counterpaat$) ef which shall be deemed an original, but &llleich together wil
constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have execuated delivered this Agreement on the date writtdovbe

CIENA CORPORATION EXECUTIVE
By:
Name Name
Title:
Date
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EXHIBIT 12.1

Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Bied Charges

Year Ended October 31,

2008 2009 2010

Pre-tax income (loss) from continuing operatic $41,53¢ $(582,479) $(331,57))
Fixed charges

Interest expens 12,92; 7,40¢ 18,61¢

Portion of rental expense representative of intdeesor 4,10¢ 4,111 7,32¢

Total fixed charge 17,03: 11,515 25,94
Pre-tax income (loss) from continuing operations pined charge: $58,57( $(570,96) $(305,63()

Ratio of earnings (loss) to fixed char¢ 3.44 — (1) — (1)

(1) Pretax losses from continuing operations plus fixedrges were inadequate to cover total fixed cha



EXHIBIT 21.1

Subsidiary Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organizati

CIENA Communications, Inc Delaware



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTIN&RM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémd¢lee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8:-38131, 333-30900, 333-72474, 333-
91294, 333-102462, 333-103328, 333-113872, 333-94,5233-121110, 333-123509, 333-123510, 333-149528,149929, 333-163927 and
333-166125) and on Form S-3 (No. 333-108476 and13®%19) of Ciena Corporation of our report datest@&nber 22, 2010 relating to the
financial statements and the effectiveness of r@lecontrol over financial reporting, which appeiarshis Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
December 22, 2010



EXHIBIT 31.1

CIENA CORPORATION
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Gary B. Smith, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report of Ciena Goapon;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegos presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financegdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitigt occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registramtourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyabm® that has materially affected, or is reasondikely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commiti&the registrant’s board of directors (or pesspearforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 22, 2010
/s/ Gary B. Smith

Gary B. Smith
President and Chief Executive Offic




EXHIBIT 31.2

CIENA CORPORATION
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
[, James E. Moylan, Jr., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report of Ciena Goapon;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financegdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitigt occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registramtourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyabm® that has materially affected, or is reasondikely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commiti&the registrant’s board of directors (or pesspearforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 22, 2010
/sl James E. Moylan, Jr

James E. Moylan, Ji
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offic




EXHIBIT 32.1

CIENA CORPORATION

Written Statement of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

The undersigned, the Chief Executive Office€Cena Corporation (the “Company”), hereby ceesfihat, to his knowledge, on the date
hereof:

(a) the Report on Form 10-K of the Company forytear ended October 31, 2010 filed on the date leritlo the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with thequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiegrExchange Act of 1934; and

(b) information contained in the Report fairly peess, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Gary B. Smith

Gary B. Smith

President and Chief Executive Offic
December 22, 201!

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906, or other document authenticaticgnowledging, or otherwise adopting the
signature that appears in typed form within thetetaic version of this written statement requibgdSection 906, has been provided to Ciena
Corporation and will be retained by Ciena Corparatind furnished to the Securities and Exchangen@ission or its staff upon request.




EXHIBIT 32.2

CIENA CORPORATION

Written Statement of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

The undersigned, the Chief Financial Office€@na Corporation (the “Company”), hereby ceesfthat, to his knowledge, on the date
hereof:

(a) the Report on Form 10-K of the Company forythar ended October 31, 2010 filed on the date l@ritlo the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with thequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiegrExchange Act of 1934; and

(b) information contained in the Report fairly peess, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ James E. Moylan, Jr
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
December 22, 201!

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906, or other document authenticaticgnowledging, or otherwise adopting the
signature that appears in typed form within thetetanic version of this written statement requibgdSection 906, has been provided to Ciena
Corporation and will be retained by Ciena Corparatind furnished to the Securities and Exchangen@ission or its staff upon request.



